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POSITION STATEMENT REGARDING DENIALS OF CERTAIN EXCLUSION 

PETITIONS SUBMITTED TO THE EAGLE SHADOWS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 

NO. 1 AND TODD CREEK VILLAGE PARK AND RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 Sec. 2-3 Phoenix LLC (the “Petitioner”) is the fee simple owner of certain real property 

located in Adams County, Colorado (the “County”) that consists of approximately 97 acres, more 

particularly described in the Petitions for Exclusion (the “Property”).  The Property is currently 

located within the boundaries of Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District No. 1 (“ESMD”) and Todd 

Creek Village Park and Recreation District (“TCVPRD”) (collectively, the “Districts”) and 

constitutes less than ten percent of the overall property currently included within each of the 

Districts.  A map of the Property is attached hereto as Exhibit A for your reference.    

Procedural Background 

This matter comes before the Board of County Commissioners of Adams County (the 

“Commissioners”) on appeal, pursuant to § 32-1-501(5)(b)(I), C.R.S.  On April 26, 2018, 

Petitioner submitted its Petitions for Exclusion of Certain Real Property (the “Petitions for 

Exclusion”) to the Districts.  Following the Petitioner’s submittal of the Petitions for Exclusion, 

the Districts published their Notice of Hearings on Petitions of Exclusion in the Brighton Standard 

Blade on June 13, 2018 in accordance with § 32-1-501(2), C.R.S.  The Petitions for Exclusion 

were subsequently denied by the Districts on June 19, 2018 and such denials were reflected in 

certain Resolutions Denying Petitions for Exclusion (the “Denial Resolutions”).  Following 

adoption of the Denial Resolutions, legal counsel to the Petitioner, who was in attendance at the 

meeting, requested that copies of the Denial Resolutions be provided as quickly as possible.  Legal 
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counsel to the Petitioner again requested, via an email to the Districts’ legal counsel, Russ Dykstra, 

on June 25, 2018, that the Denial Resolutions be provided.  After not receiving a response from 

Mr. Dykstra, on June 27, 2018, legal counsel to the Petitioner submitted a Colorado Open Records 

Act request to the Districts seeking copies of the Denial Resolutions.  Petitioner made this request 

through legal counsel out of concern that the Denial Resolutions would not be provided within the 

thirty (30) day appeal window provided by § 32-1-501(5)(b)(I), C.R.S. and therefore jeopardize 

the ability of the Petitioner to have this matter heard by the Commissioners.  On June 28, 2018, 

the Districts finally provided the Denial Resolutions to legal counsel for the Petitioner.  

Record of Exclusion Hearings 

At the June 19, 2018 meeting of the Districts, legal counsel for the Petitioner created an 

audio recording of the exclusion hearing portion of the meeting.  That audio recording was then 

sent to Transcription Outsourcing, LLC for the purpose of creating a written transcript of the audio 

recording (the “Transcript”).  The Transcript was created to ensure that the entire discussion of 

the Districts’ Boards of Directors was accurately reflected and available for review as meeting 

minutes are typically quite terse and there was no way for the Petitioner to know what portions of 

the public record would be reflected in the Denial Resolutions.  On August 3, 2018, Mr. Dykstra 

provided an email response to Doug Edelstein, Deputy County Attorney, stating that, “…the 

alleged transcript from Mr. Dickhoner is not an official record of the proceedings…and therefore 

should not be considered or otherwise forwarded or presented in any manner in this process.”  Mr. 

Dykstra continued to state that, “[t]he statute clearly contemplates the official record of the district 

meeting which is constituted by the minutes approved by the District board and the resolution of 

the board in regard to the exclusion” (emphasis added).  It is important for the Commissioners to 

not be misled as to what can and should be reviewed as part of this appeal.  Section 32-1-
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501(5)(b)(II), C.R.S. provides that the Commissioners shall base their decision “…on the record 

developed at the hearing before the special district board.”  Conspicuously missing from the 

statutory language, and particularly noteworthy due to the above statement from Mr. Dykstra, is 

the word “official.”  There is no legal authority limiting the public record solely to the meeting 

minutes and the Denial Resolutions.  Furthermore, there is certainly no prohibition stating that 

discussion among a public body, occurring in a public meeting, shall not be considered by the 

Commissioners in this appeal.  In fact, doing so would frustrate the stated purpose of the Colorado 

Open Meetings Law which provides that, “[i]t is declared to be a matter of statewide concern and 

the policy of this state that the formation of public policy is public business and may not be 

conducted in secret.”  C.R.S. § 24-6-401.  Disregarding the Transcript frustrates the goal of 

developing policy of the Districts in public and not in secrecy.  Finally, the Colorado Open 

Meetings Law provides a vehicle for confidential, non-public conversations, under limited 

circumstances, via its executive session provisions.  While potentially in the best interest of his 

client, it is concerning that Mr. Dykstra is now arguing that public deliberations by elected officials 

are not part of the public record and that only the potentially self-serving paper-thin record of 

meeting minutes and the Denial Resolutions is all that should be considered by the Commissioners. 

In his August 3, 2018 email to Mr. Edelstein, Mr. Dykstra stated that, “[l]ikewise, our 

office has not received any correspondence from Mr. Dickhoner in this matter other than an email 

request for copies of the resolution for exclusion.”  In addition to the referenced email request, 

there was the CORA requested described above, as well as an email to Mr. Dykstra on June 29, 

2018 stating, “[t]hank you Russ.  I wanted to let you know that we’ve been in touch with the 

County Attorney’s Office and will be submitting an appeal of the exclusion denials to the County 
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Commissioners.”  Furthermore, the Notice of Appeal described below provided a CC to Mr. 

Dykstra.                

Pursuant to § 32-1-501(5)(b)(II), C.R.S., the record established for review by the 

Commissioners shall be “...the record developed at the hearing before the special district board.”  

The following documents have been determined to constitute the record developed by the Boards 

of Directors of ESMD and TCVPRD and therefore shall be subject to review by the 

Commissioners for the purposes of this appeal (collectively, the “Record”): 

1. Petition for Exclusion of Property submitted to ESMD on April 26, 2018 - See 

Exhibit B; 

2. Petition for Exclusion of Property submitted to TCVPRD on April 26, 2018 - See 

Exhibit C; 

3. Notice of Hearings on Petitions for Exclusion published on June 13, 2018 in the 

Brighton Standard Blade - See Exhibit D; 

4. Resolution of the Board of Directors of ESMD denying the Petition for Exclusion 

of Property dated June 19, 2018 (the “ESMD Resolution”) - See Exhibit E; 

5. Resolution of the Board of Directors of TCVPRD denying the Petition for 

Exclusion of Property dated June 19, 2018 (the “TCVPRD Resolution”) - See 

Exhibit F;  

6. ESMD Meeting Minutes from June 19, 2018 - See Exhibit G; 

7. TCVPRD Meeting Minutes from June 19, 2018 - See Exhibit H; and 

8. Transcription of Public Hearing on Petitions for Exclusion held on June 19, 2018 - 

See Exhibit I. 

Basis for Appeal 
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Petitioner provided its Notice of Appeal to the Commissioners on June 29, 2018 (the 

“Notice of Appeal”).  See Exhibit J.  The filing of the Notice of Appeal was proper under § 32-

1-501(5)(b)(I), C.R.S. because the original petitions for organization of both ESMD and TCVPRD 

were filed with the Adams County District Court.  The filing of the Notice of Appeal with the 

Commissioners was timely pursuant to § 32-1-501(5)(b)(I), C.R.S. as it was taken within thirty 

(30) days of the decisions by the Districts to deny the Petitions for Exclusion.          

The Petitioner is submitting this appeal of the denial of the Petitions for Exclusion because 

the statutory factors, found at § 32-1-501(3)(a)-(h), C.R.S., and which are to be considered in this 

appeal, weigh heavily in favor of exclusion of the Property.   

STANDARD OF REVIEW 

 The statute is silent on the standard of review that the Commissioners should apply to this 

appeal, but the statute does state that, “[t]he board shall consider the factors set forth in subsection 

(3)…and shall make a determination…based on the record developed at the hearing before the 

special district board.”  C.R.S. § 32-1-501(5)(a)(II).   Based on the statutory language, the standard 

of review applied in this matter should be de novo, which provides the Commissioners with a great 

deal of leeway in making their determination.   

ARGUMENT 

Section 32-1-501(3), C.R.S. provides the list of factors that the Districts’ Boards of 

Directors were required to consider and on which they were required to base their determination 

of whether to grant the Petitions for Exclusion. It is these same factors that the Commissioners 

shall base their decision.  These factors are outlined below: 

(a) The best interests of all of the following: (I) The property to be excluded; (II) 
The special district from which the exclusion is proposed; and (III) The 
county or counties in which the special district is located; 
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(b) The relative cost and benefit to the property to be excluded from the provision 
of the special district's services; 

 
(c) The ability of the special district to provide economical and sufficient service 

to both the property to be excluded and all of the properties within the special 
district's boundaries; 

 
(d) Whether the special district is able to provide services at a reasonable cost 

compared with the cost that would be imposed by other entities in the 
surrounding area to provide similar services in the surrounding area or by the 
fire protection district or county fire improvement district that has agreed to 
include the property to be excluded from the special district; 

 
(e) The effect of denying the petition on employment and other economic 

conditions in the special district and surrounding area; 
 
(f) The economic impact on the region and on the special district, surrounding 

area, and state as a whole if the petition is denied or the resolution is finally 
adopted; 

 
(g) Whether an economically feasible alternative service may be available; and 
 
(h) The additional cost to be levied on other property within the special district 

if the exclusion is granted. 
 

 Considering each factor in turn, it is apparent that the factors, in their totality, weigh heavily 

in favor of granting the Petitions for Exclusion.  The Petitioner therefore requests that the 

Commissioners overturn the Denial Resolutions and grant the Petitions for Exclusion. 

Best Interests 

Regarding the first factor, as documented in the Denial Resolutions, the Districts simply 

made conclusory statements that exclusion was not in the best interests of the Property, the 

Districts, or the County.  These statements were more or less recitations of the statutory factors 

rather any serious application of the facts or thorough analysis of the Petitions for Exclusion.  

Furthermore, the Denial Resolutions do not address any of the concerns raised by the Petitioner’s 

legal counsel at the exclusion hearings and as documented in the Transcript.  Simply put, the 

Record does not support the Districts’ findings on this factor. 
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Best Interests of the Property 

With respect to the best interests of the Property, the Denial Resolutions simply state, 

“Exclusion is not in the best interests of the property to be excluded.” See Denial Resolutions, 

Page 1.  Petitioner argues, and the Record, as reflected in the Transcript, clearly shows that 

exclusion is in the Property’s best interest.  Exclusion would enable the Petitioner to improve and 

develop the Property in a manner that is uniformly consistent with an adjacent parcel of property 

that is owned by the Petitioner but not within the Districts (the “Non-District Property”).  The 

Petitioner’s plan is to develop the Property and the Non-District Property in unison and impose 

uniform taxes across both the Property and the Non-District Property.  See Transcript ¶¶ 13, 24, 

135, 137, 139, 149.  Uniform development of the Property and the Non-District Property is 

essential to creation of a successful community as it will not only allow for uniform taxation across 

the community but will also allow future residents to be represented by a single metropolitan 

district board of directors.  The confusion and inefficiencies created by bifurcating the community 

will cause administrative problems for the Districts, the County and any new metropolitan district 

that may be created.  If half of the community is within the Districts and half is within a new 

metropolitan district, there will need to be two sets of consultants, two sets of contractors for snow 

removal, landscaping and other matters, two sets of administrative filings, and neighbors within 

the community would receive services from two different entities despite residing next-door to one 

another.  The Non-District Property is anticipated to be included in a new metropolitan district and 

in the event this new district requires future cooperation from the Districts, it will almost certainly 

not receive such cooperation as the Districts have repeatedly shown an unwillingness to work with 

the Petitioner or any entities, districts, or individuals associated with the Petitioner.   Absent 

exclusion, due to the burdens placed on the Property by the Districts, the Petitioner lacks the 
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flexibility necessary to develop the Property and Non-District Property uniformly and in unison 

and the exclusion denial will effectively hamper future development of the Property.  

The Districts have been in existence for almost 20 years and yet the Districts have not 

constructed any Public Improvements on the Property, but the Property has, and continues, to pay 

the same tax rate as all other property within the Districts.  This might be an acceptable 

arrangement if there was a willingness on the part of the Districts to assist with financing future 

public improvements within the Property, but such an offer has not (and will not) be made by the 

Districts.  Additionally, the Property has been paying the Districts’ operations and maintenance 

mill levy without receiving benefit from the Districts.   In its May 31, 2018 decision in Landmark 

Towers Association Inc. v. UMB Bank, N.A.., the Colorado Court of Appeals found that the 

inclusion of property within a district where the property does not “receive any special benefit 

from the improvements” was an unconstitutional violation of the property owners’ due process 

rights. 2018COA75 p. 16-17. 

   The Petitioner has no representation on the Districts’ Boards of Directors, and in fact the 

Districts’ Board of Directors has repeatedly exhibited hostility towards the Petitioner, and thus has 

no control over the future development of the Property.  At the end of the exclusion hearing, Mr. 

Dykstra offered that the Petitioner could approach the Districts for approval of a sub-district to 

service the Property.  Mr. Dykstra explained that another developer had recently done this for 

another area of the Districts (the “Baseline Lakes Sub-District”).  See Transcript ¶¶ 234-243. 

Unfortunately, an arrangement along the lines of the Baseline Lakes Sub-District is not a suitable 

solution in this case.  First, as will be shown throughout this appeal, the Boards of Directors of the 

Districts have a long history of attempting to frustrate and obstruct any efforts of the Petitioner 

and its related entities.  A sub-district would be controlled by a board that is comprised of the 
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current Boards of Directors of the Districts.  There is too much risk to the Petitioner that the board 

of the sub-district would not be cooperative or take the steps necessary to develop the property in 

the most effective and efficient manner possible.  Second, ESMD has approximately four million 

dollars ($4,000,000) in debt capacity remaining under its Service Plan.  It is our understanding that 

the Baseline Lakes Sub-District will be utilizing the full $4,000,000 amount to support its 

development.  That would leave the petitioner with a sub-district it cannot be guaranteed to control 

and no additional debt capacity to finance its improvements.  For those reasons, this is not a tenable 

alternative to granting the Petitions for Exclusion.        

The intention has always been for the Property to be developed in coordination with the 

Non-District Property and the Denial Resolutions frustrate this effort greatly. Exclusion provides 

a realistic opportunity for the Petitioner to develop the Property in unison with the Non-District 

Property. 

Best Interests of the Special District 

 Regarding the best interests of the Districts, the Denial Resolutions state, “[e]xclusion is 

not in the best interests of the District as it would result in a substantial reduction in revenue due 

to the loss of fees and operation and maintenance mill levy the District would realize if the property 

is excluded from the District.  In addition, the District has incurred expenses to build infrastructure 

that serves the property in anticipation of receiving revenues from the property to reimburse such 

expenses and bonds.  See Denial Resolutions, Page 1. The Districts’ Resolutions are identical, but 

the Districts’ fee structures, maintenance responsibilities, and constructed infrastructure are not 

identical. This demonstrates a lack of factual basis or serious analysis in support of the Denial 

Resolutions.  The Districts simply adopted identical, generic resolutions, further supporting the 
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fact that their decisions were not based on a reasoned analysis of the facts but rather driven by their 

general antipathy towards the Petitioner and the efforts of the Petitioner to developer the Property.   

At the Public Hearing, the Directors for the Districts raised a question of whether granting 

the Petitions for Exclusion would mean that the Districts were unable to collect the $4,000.00 per 

lot development fees (the “Development Fees”). See Transcript ¶¶ 98-100, 125-28. In response to 

this concern, Mr. Dykstra explained that he and the accountant for the Districts, Diane Wheeler, 

are in agreement that the development fees would remain due and would not be lost as a result of 

granting the Petitions for Exclusion.  See Transcript ¶ 170.  Additionally, legal counsel for the 

Petitioner informed the Districts that the Petitioner is not objecting to paying the Development 

Fees that are due and owing to the Districts.  See Transcript ¶¶ 196.  The Districts also indicated 

that they intended to put the development fees towards the early retirement of their debt, rather 

than towards operations and maintenance. See Transcript ¶¶ 100-06. Currently the Districts do not 

impose any fees other than the Development Fees.  This is important to note as granting the 

Petitions for Exclusion would not harm the Districts with respect to fee revenue as stated in the 

Denial Resolutions and the Districts could continue to apply such revenue to the retirement of their 

debt.   Therefore, neither the Record nor the factual reality of the Districts supports the Districts’ 

conclusion that exclusion would go against the Districts’ best interests due to the reduction in 

revenues from fees. 

With respect to the other source of revenue pledged to the debt of the Districts, the debt 

service mill levy, the Districts would benefit greatly if they were to grant the Petitions for 

Exclusion.  Despite being excluded from the boundaries of the Districts, the Property would remain 

subject to the debt service mill levy of the Districts for as long as the current debt is outstanding.  

As explained throughout this appeal, the Petitioner will be better able to develop the Property in 
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unison with the Non-District Property if the Petitions for Exclusion are granted.  A successful 

development of the Property will result in significantly higher assessed valuations that will 

generate considerably more tax revenue from the debt service mill levy.  This is of great benefit to 

the Districts because this will make them more fiscally sound with respect to their debt load and 

reduce the burden and risk presently borne solely by the current taxpayers of the Districts.  

Additionally, the Districts state that they will be disadvantaged by exclusion because they have 

built infrastructure in anticipation of revenue from the Property to reimburse bonds. See the Denial 

Resolutions, Page 1. This assertion also lacks support in the Record and legally the Property would 

remain subject to the Districts’ debt service mill levies, so the District would still receive all of the 

anticipated revenues from the Property to reimburse the bonds. See Transcript ¶ 31. Therefore, the 

Districts’ ability to repay their debts related to financing Public Improvements would not be 

impacted by exclusion.  Not only would granting the Petitions for Exclusion benefit the bottom 

line of the Districts, but it is in the best interests of the taxpaying constituency the Directors of the 

Districts purport to represent.  These benefits were clearly stated at the hearing and disregarded by 

the Districts in their adoption of the Denial Resolutions.  See Transcript ¶¶ 6, 24, 26, 31, 149.  

The Districts claim that the loss of revenue generated by the operations and maintenance 

mill levy will be harmful to them.  See Denial Resolutions, Page 1. However, the loss of operations 

and maintenance revenue due to granting the Petitions for Exclusion would be de minimus and the 

Districts acknowledged as much in the exclusion hearing.  See Transcript ¶¶ 38, 77, 94, 96, 110.  

The Districts were not clear on the exact amount of revenue that would be lost as their discussion 

bounced between amounts but it is clear that they were considering the loss, in current tax revenues 

not future unknown revenues, of a few hundred dollars per year, in total.  The Petitioner has 

reviewed the tax records for the Property and determined that, in present day tax revenues, ESMD 
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would lose $150.05 and TCVPRD would lose $595.20 per year in operations and maintenance 

revenue.  This is hardly a crippling lose to ESMD which has an annual budget for 2018 of $397,024 

or TCVPRD which has an annual budget for 2018 of $883,484.  Especially in light of the fact that 

neither of the Districts provides any operations and maintenance benefit to the Property.  The 

Record clearly reflects, as acknowledged by the Districts and stated by legal counsel to the 

Petitioner, that there is no significant public infrastructure specifically benefitting the Property or 

located on the Property and being maintained by the Districts.  See Transcript ¶¶ 6, 8, 10, 12, 13, 

48, 97, 140.  The constitutional due process violation created by such a situation was recently 

established in the Landmark decision and should provide pause to the Districts when arguing that 

the Denial Resolutions were appropriate and should be upheld.  All of this begs the question of 

why the Districts would deny the Exclusion Petitions when there is clearly a great benefit to be 

derived from the successful development of the Property.  Such a decision flies in the face of the 

fiduciary duty of the Directors to act in the best interests of the community and residents they 

represent.  As has been alluded to throughout this appeal and is further detailed below, the only 

logical explanation for making a decision that so clearly goes against the best interests of the 

Districts is that there are other vindictive motivations at play.   

Best Interests of the County 

 In the Denial Resolutions, the Districts cursorily stated that “[e]xclusion is not in the best 

interests of Adams County.” See Denial Resolutions, Page 1.  However, the Record includes no 

discussion of the impact of exclusion on the County.  If the Districts had given sufficient 

consideration to this factor, they would have concluded that granting the Petitions for Exclusion 

would result in great benefit to the County.  As previously explained, the Petitioner intends to 

develop the Property in unison with the Non-District Property.  Successfully developing the 
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Property will result in additional housing supply for a quickly growing county that, like most areas 

along the Front Range, desperately needs more housing supply to keep up with the extremely 

strong demand of the current market.  Additionally, the increased assessed valuations that would 

result from development of the Property will drive higher tax revenues to the County that benefit 

the wide range of services provided throughout the County.  Development of the Property will also 

result in additional construction jobs within the County that bring the direct added benefits from 

increased sales and use taxes as well as the indirect benefit of construction workers supporting 

local businesses with their patronage over the lunch hour and after leaving the job site.  The 

economic benefits to the County are overwhelmingly obvious and weigh in favor of granting the 

Petitions for Exclusion.    

Relative Cost and Benefit to the Property if Excluded 

 As stated in the Record, the Property currently receives no meaningful benefit in exchange 

for the operations and maintenance mill levy it has been paying to the Districts since their 

inception.  See Transcript ¶¶ 6, 8, 12, 13.  As explained above, this is problematic in light of the 

Landmark ruling but also means that exclusion from the Districts would be quite beneficial to the 

Property because a grant of the Petitions for Exclusion would result in the elimination of property 

tax liability that produces no direct benefit for the Property.  Since tax costs to the Property would 

be eliminated and the already non-existent services would remain non-existent, the cost-benefit 

analysis of this factor weighs in favor of granting the Petitions for Exclusion. 

Ability of Districts to Provide Economical and Sufficient Service to the Property and the 

Remaining Properties in the Districts 

 For this factor, the Districts finding was, “[t]he ability of the District to provide economical 

and sufficient service to both the property to be excluded and all of the properties within the 
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District’s boundaries will be affected and there will be an increased financial impact to the 

customers of the District.” See Denial Resolutions, Page 1.  The Districts’ statement implies that 

the level of services the Districts currently provide would not be proportionately reduced if the 

Property were excluded. This statement supports the Petitioner’s argument that the Districts are 

not providing services specific to the Property, even though the Property is taxed for those services.  

See ¶ 6.  If the Districts were providing an equal level of services to all properties within their 

boundaries, including the Property, then the services and their related costs would decrease 

proportionately with the Property’s exclusion and the proportional burden on the remaining 

properties would be minimal.  

The fact of the matter is that the Districts are not providing any meaningful level of services 

to the Property, let alone “economical and sufficient” services.  Therefore, exclusion of the 

Property would have no impact on this portion of the factor.  As explained above, because the 

Property receives no services, it is essentially subsidizing services to other properties within the 

Districts.  The Districts can make the argument that exclusion would result in lost revenue that the 

Districts rely on, but in doing so they concede that the Property is being taxed without the benefit 

of those same services.  Furthermore, as detailed above, and substantiated by the Record, the 

budgetary impacts to the Districts resulting for a grant of the Petitions for Exclusion is negligible 

and will have no meaningful impact on the ability of the Districts to provide “economical and 

sufficient” services to the property remaining in the Districts.  For these reasons, this particular 

factor weighs in favor of granting the Petitions for Exclusion.   

Ability of Districts to Provide Services at a Reasonable Cost Compared with the Cost Imposed 

by Other Entities in the Area 
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Regarding this factor, the Districts found, “[t]he exclusion will affect the District’s ability 

to fund services and improvements at a reasonable cost compared with the cost that would be 

imposed by other entities in the surrounding area to provide similar services and improvements.  

The loss of revenue will lead to increased costs to the customers of the District, both current and 

present.  No other districts have agreed to provide the services.” See Denial Resolutions, Page 1.   

For a couple of reasons, the above statement is not accurate or a valid basis for denying the 

Petitions for Exclusion.   The Districts state that the exclusion will affect their ability to provide 

services and improvements.  First, as repeatedly mentioned throughout this appeal, the Property 

will remain subject to the debt service mill levy of the Districts and therefore any development 

resulting in an increase to assessed valuation will improve the ability of the Districts to service 

their debt.  This is debt that was issued to pay for improvements benefitting the Districts.  In fact, 

Mr. Dykstra stated for the Record that, “…for Eagle Shadow, since there are no ongoing services, 

it is no one else can go back and do the improvements you’ve already done that have helped that 

property, like the interchange, like the drainage improvements, all of that stuff.  So that’s foregone.  

So no one else can go back retroactively and do those.” See Transcript ¶ 144.  The improvements 

referenced by Mr. Dykstra, which have no direct benefit to the Property and would’ve been built 

regardless of the existence of the Property in order to serve the other areas of ESMD, were paid 

for by ESMD bonds that are being repaid by the debt service mill levy.  This is the same debt 

service mill levy the Property will continue to be responsible for.    Furthermore, the Property is 

not currently receiving any services from the Districts but is still paying taxes.  The fact that the 

Districts are transparently admitting that they denied the Petitions for Exclusion because they need 

to tax the Property and utilize that revenue to provides services, not to the Property itself but to 
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other areas of the Districts, is troubling, to say the least.  This use of tax revenue also directly 

contradicts the Court of Appeals holding in Landmark.    

The Districts go on to state that, “[n]o other districts have agreed to provide the services.”  

While that may be true, it is also true that no other districts have agreed to tax the Property either.  

That puts the Districts in the position of arguing that somehow it is in the best interests of the 

Property to remain in the Districts where it is responsible for a tax liability but receives no services 

in exchange for payment of those taxes.  In the opinion of the Districts, this arrangement is 

preferential to granting the Petitions for Exclusion, which would result in the Property continuing 

to not receive services but being freed from the operations and maintenance mill levies.  The only 

way this makes sense is if the Districts view the taxation of the Property as a means to subsidize 

their activities in other areas of the Districts.  Clearly this has been their past practice and they 

intend it to be their future practice as well.  For the foregoing reasons, it would be inappropriate to 

uphold the Denial Resolutions, and the Petitioner requests that the Commissioners grant the 

Petitions for Exclusion. 

Effect of Denying the Exclusion on Economic Conditions in the Special District and 

Surrounding Area 

With regard to this factor, the Districts found that, “[t]he effect of denying the petition on 

employment and other economic conditions in the District and the surrounding area is negligible.”  

See Denial Resolutions, Page 2.  Note that even the Districts here acknowledge there is an effect 

on employment and other economic conditions.  As previously explained above and repeatedly 

stated in the Record, this effect is more than negligible.  In order to develop the Property in its 

most valuable form, the Petitioner submitted the Petitions for Exclusion in order that the Property 

and Non-District Property be developed in unison.  The Denial Resolutions jeopardize the ability 
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of the Petitioner to carry out this uniform plan of development.  If the Property fails to develop as 

a result of the Denial Resolutions, or develops at a lower total value because of the Denial 

Resolutions, then both the Districts and the surrounding area will be harmed economically.  First, 

the Districts will be harmed because the reduction in developed values will result in less tax 

revenues.  Second, the surrounding area will be harmed because the other entities currently 

imposing taxes on the property will see less tax revenue as well.  This reduction in tax revenue 

will decrease the ability of the Districts, the County and other taxing entities to carry out the same 

scope of services and improvements that would otherwise be possible if the Property were 

excluded and developed to its greatest potential.  As with the other factors, the Districts ignored 

the impact their decision would have on development of the Property and made a cursory and 

conclusory statement in the Denial Resolutions without providing any due consideration to the 

statutory factor.  For these reasons, an examination of this factor results in the conclusion that the 

Petitions for Exclusion should be granted and the Denial Resolutions overturned.   

Economic Impact on the Region, Special District, Surrounding Area, and State as a Whole 

With regard to this factor, the Districts stated the following, “[t]he Board’s decision to deny 

the petition will not have an impact on the region or on the District, surrounding area, or state as a 

whole, except to the extent the District will be impacted from the retained revenue.”  See Denial 

Resolutions, Page 2.  Similar to the previous factors, the Districts did not engage in much 

substantive discussion on the Record and provided little more than a restatement of this statutory 

factor in the Denial Resolutions.  Again, the fact that the Districts did not conduct a thorough 

review of the relevant facts and apply those facts in their analysis is telling and ultimately 

supportive of the Petitioner’s argument that the Petitions for Exclusion should have been granted. 
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Similar to the analysis under the previous factor, the Denial Resolutions will negatively 

impact the ability of the Petitioner to develop the Property and the Non-District Property in a 

uniform manner.  While repetitive, it is important to restate that the consequences of the Denial 

Resolutions are economic in nature because they jeopardize the ability to develop the Property to 

its greatest value.  The economic impact is not merely felt by the Petitioner but is felt by the 

Districts, the County, the surrounding area and the State of Colorado.  The Denial Resolutions 

potentially inhibit increases in assessed valuations that will result in lost property tax revenues for 

the entities taxing the Property.  Additionally, the diminished construction activity will have a 

negative impact on sales and use tax, as they relate to construction within the Property, as well as 

reducing the funds expended by construction workers and others in the area surrounding the 

Districts.  Finally, failure to develop the Property to its fullest potential will result in less homes 

being built for a market, county and state in desperate need for more housing options.  By 

effectively limiting the housing supply in this area, the Districts’ actions are exacerbating the 

current housing affordability problems being felt along the Front Range.      

The parties can argue over how great this impact would be but no serious analysis of the 

Petitions for Exclusion would rightly conclude that the Denial Resolutions will have no economic 

impact.  In the previous factor, the Districts acknowledged that there would be a “negligible” effect 

on employment and economic conditions.  While Petitioner contends that the impact will be much 

more than “negligible” there is at least an admission by the Districts of some impact.  By the time 

the Districts arrived at their “analysis” of this current factor, there was no longer an economic 

impact to be had.  This inconsistency in conclusions further clarifies that the Districts did not 

engage in a serious examination of the Petitions for Exclusion but rather issued the Denial 

Resolutions due to their animosity towards the Petitioner and not because a fair reading of the facts 
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led them to their conclusions.   For these reasons, the Denial Resolutions should be overturned and 

the Petitions for Exclusion granted. 

Whether Economically Feasible Alternative Service Available 

 With respect to this factor, as with the others, the Denial Resolutions simply reflect a 

conclusory statement.  In this case, the Districts stated, “[a]n economically feasible alternative 

service is not available.”  Presumably, the statute expects an analysis along the lines of whether 

the Property can receive the same services it is currently receiving from another source and do so 

in an economically feasible manner.  As detailed multiple times already, the Property is not 

receiving any services from the Districts.  Granting the Petitions for Exclusion would have resulted 

in the Property continuing to not receive services but would have been done so without a cost to 

the Districts.  It seems reasonable that if a service is not being provided, a cost should not be 

charged.  The Districts adopted the Denial Resolutions maintaining the status quo and taking the 

position that the Property should be responsible for paying taxes, not receiving any services, and 

subsidizing the other areas of the Districts.  The Petitions for Exclusion should have been granted, 

thereby putting an end to this unreasonable arrangement.  For these reasons, the Petitioner requests 

that the actions of the Districts evidenced in the Denial Resolutions be overruled by the 

Commissioners.   

Additional Costs to Property Remaining in the Districts if Exclusion Granted 

 This factor examines the cost impact an exclusion will have on property that is not 

excluded.  In resolving this factor, the Districts stated, “[t]here will be additional costs levied on 

the property remaining in the District if the Board grants the petition.”  See Denial Resolutions, 

Page 2.  Again, all that is produced by the Districts is a simple recitation of the statutory language 

rather than a serious review of the facts.  It is not entirely clear what additional costs the Districts 
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are referring to.  As mentioned above, the Property encompasses less than ten percent (10%) of 

the entire area of the Districts, and exclusion of the Property would not impose a substantial impact 

on the area of the Districts.  Additionally, the Property is currently responsible for about $750 per 

year in taxes that would no longer be available to the Districts upon exclusion.  However, the 

Property enjoys zero benefit of services provided in exchange for the $750 in taxes.  This is likely 

the exact point the Districts are making.  The Districts view the grant of exclusion as a $750 per 

year hit to their bottom lines.  Since they do not spend any of that $750 on the Property itself, this 

is truly a net loss to the Districts.  In other words, the Districts lose the ability to subsidize services 

in areas other than the Property if they grant the Petitions for Exclusion.  This is not only a legally 

questionable rationale for denying the Petitions for Exclusion but is an unacceptable way to treat 

taxpayers of your community.  The Districts are providing no services to the Property, in light of 

this reality the Petitioner is seeking exclusion of the Property, the Districts are admitting they 

provide no services, the Districts are stating in the Denial Resolutions that it is irrelevant what the 

Petitioner wants, and finally the Districts are taking the position that it is okay for the Property to 

be taxed without receiving any services.  For these reasons, analysis of the above factor clearly 

weighs in favor of granting the Petitions for Exclusion.   

ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 The development of the Todd Creek Village project began in 1994 (the “Development”).  

At the time, the only paved road west of the South Platte River was Highway 7.  The Development 

encompasses an overall area of approximately 4,000 acres and a final PUD for the entire area was 

approved in 1999.  Prior to approval of the development plans, the Commissioners requested that 

the developer seek services from either the City of Thornton (“Thornton”) or the City of Brighton 

(“Brighton”).  Brighton was unwilling to provide services west of the South Platte River and 
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Thornton would not commit to provide services before 2020.  Based on the responses received 

from Brighton and Thornton, the developer began working with the County on how public 

improvements and services could be provided in this area.   

The provision of public improvements to such a large area lacking basic infrastructure was 

a massive undertaking for the developer.  The needed improvements included upgrades to 

Highway 7, construction of new parkways, preparations for joining the proposed E-470 Highway 

system, drainage studies and improvements, state approved water and wastewater improvements 

and many other items.  In order to finance the enormous costs associated with these improvements, 

the County and the developer worked out an approach with two layers of local government.   

The first layer was the creation of Todd Creek Village Metropolitan District (“TCVMD”).   

TCVMD would be established as a special district providing water and sewer infrastructure for the 

entire Development.  The Commissioners approved a Service Plan for TCVMD that allowed for 

fees to be imposed to pay for public infrastructure and water and sewer service but would not allow 

for imposition of a mill levy.  The second layer of local government, as agreed to by the 

Commissioners and the developer, would be a series of metropolitan districts for each subdivision 

within the greater Development.  The metropolitan districts would have the ability to tax the 

residents of the particular subdivision and, as metropolitan districts routinely do, to reimburse the 

developer for financing and constructing certain public improvements.  The plan was for the 

metropolitan districts to provide all public improvements, except for water and sewer that was 

being provided by TCVMD.  As each of these metropolitan districts paid off their respective debt, 

they would then have the opportunity to dissolve and discontinue their mill levies.  Todd Creek 

Farms Metropolitan District No. 2 (“Todd Creek Farms”) was the first district to complete this 
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life cycle and was recently dissolved.  The developer established three other metropolitan districts 

to operate in the same manner as Todd Creek Farms, one of those districts was ESMD. 

Due to the crash in the housing market, there was virtually no new home construction 

between 2007 and 2015 in the planned subdivisions referred to as Riverside and Shook.  The 

Property encompasses the area referred to as Shook.  The Riverside development was recently 

completed and ESMD received over $130,000 in System Development Fees plus the increased 

property tax revenue resulting from 165 new homes with an average value of $550,000.  Despite 

repeated requests, the infusion of substantial sums of cash, and the clear intent by the County in 

allowing the metropolitan districts, ESMD refused to participate in or contribute to the financing 

of the public infrastructure needed to complete the Riverside subdivision.  The refusal by ESMD 

is contrary to the purpose for which the County allowed ESMD to be created and has frustrated 

the development ability and timing of the Riverside subdivision. 

As mentioned previously, the Shook subdivision is encompassed by the Property.  Due to 

the history of ESMD refusing to participate in the financing of public improvements for Riverside, 

the Petitioner has requested that the Property be excluded from ESMD so that it can be developed 

and the public improvements can be financed in accordance with the vision of the developer and 

the County that has been in place since the development began in 1994.  ESMD may not wish to 

incur debt for additional public improvements, but in order for the Property and the Non-District 

Property to be developed in a consistent and uniform manner the Petitioner needs to have the 

financing support of a metropolitan district.  This support is necessary to take on the large public 

improvement costs, was intended to be provided since the County put this approach in place in 

1994, and can be simply accomplished through a grant of exclusion.  The lack of cooperation by 

ESMD puts the Petitioner in a bind because ESMD will not assist with financing the public 
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improvements that are needed, but the Petitioner cannot obtain the necessary metropolitan district 

financing support elsewhere so long as the Property remains in the Districts.   

CONCLUSION 

 The Districts adopted their Denial Resolutions based on an insufficiently sparse analysis 

of the statute and the facts relating to the Petitions for Exclusion.  The adoption of the Denial 

Resolutions frustrates the ability to develop the Property and is contrary to the intent of the County 

established in 1994.  The Property continues to bear a property tax burden that it does not benefit 

from and the Districts are unwilling to support the financing of public improvements that would 

benefit the Property.  For the reasons stated above, the decision of the Districts to deny the Petitions 

for Exclusion was not in the best interests of the taxpayers of the Districts, the Property, the 

Districts, the County or the State of Colorado.  Therefore, the Petitioner respectfully requests that 

the Commissioners thoroughly review the statutory factors and the facts established by the Record 

and come to the conclusion that the Districts erred when denying the Petitions for Exclusion.   

 

Respectfully Submitted to the Adams County Board of County Commissioners on August 17, 
2018. 

 

Blair M. Dickhoner  

Legal Counsel to Petitioner  
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EXHIBIT B 

(ESMD Petition for Exclusion) 
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EXHIBIT C 

(TCVPRD Petition for Exclusion) 
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EXHIBIT D 

(Notice of Hearing) 
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EXHIBIT E 

(Denial Resolution of ESMD) 
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EXHIBIT F 

(Denial Resolution of TCVPRD) 
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EXHIBIT G 

(ESMD Meeting Minutes) 
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EXHIBIT H 

(TCVPRD Meeting Minutes) 
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EXHIBIT I 

(Hearing Transcript) 

  



 1 

TRANSCRIPT OF EAGLE SHADOWS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 AND 
TODD CREEK VILLAGE PARK AND RECREATION DISTRICT EXCLUSION 

HEARINGS TAKING PLACE ON JUNE 19, 2018 
 

1 
SPEAKER 1:  After any public has commented on the petition requests, and then you can 

go ahead and consider after this week and have this back by then.  
2 
SPEAKER 2: Very well.  So let’s commence opening a public hearing regarding 

exclusion of the Shook property, as called by “the Shook property” from 
both the Park and Rec District as well as the Eagle Shadow Metro District.  
So Mr. Dickhoner, what say you?  We have no public.  

3 
MR. DICKHONER: Just here to answer questions if you have them.  I think you’ve got the 

petition and everything you need.  
4 
SPEAKER 1: You can ask questions. 
5 
SPEAKER 3: Why do you want to be excluded? 
6 
MR. DICKHONER:   The property owners are looking at forming a metro district, and they’d 

like to not be subject to the current operations and maintenance mill levy.  
Obviously they’ll remain subject to the debt-service levy, but they’d like 
to form a district that they can use and not be subject to and are not really 
getting any benefit from. 

7 
SPEAKER 3: Why do they believe they’re not getting any benefit from it? 
8 
MR. DICKHONER: It’s my understanding that there aren’t really improvements serving the 

area, so… 
9 
SPEAKER 3: Can you be more specific? 
10 
MR. DICKHONER: Well are there improvements that are serving that property that have been 

financed by district debt? 
11 
SPEAKER 4: Yes, we have several parks throughout the area. 
12 
SPEAKER 3: Serving the metro district but not that specific property.  
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13 
MR. DICKHONER: Right.  I’m sure they’re serving the metro district, but I don’t think they’re 

benefitting the property, and they’d like to move forward with 
development of an adjacent property that’s not in the district, and so 
they’re trying to get… 

14 
SPEAKER 3: Which property is that? 
15 
MR. DICKHONER: The Wiegant property; it is right next to it.  
16 
SPEAKER 3:  That’s just to the west? 
17 
MR. DICKHONER: Yeah, there’s drilling going on.  
18 
SPEAKER 4:  Yeah, th… 
19 
MR. DICKHONER: It’s just a pad site, not the property.  So they’re… 
20 
SPEAKER 4:  Wiegant was always to be included in this district, is that not correct? 
21 
MR. DICKHONER: It’s not in the district.  
22 
SPEAKER 4: I think they were looking at including it at one point.  I think maybe they 

changed their mind.  
23 
CROSSTALK 
24 
MR. DICKHONER: Yeah.  So they’d like to have uniform mill levy across the two and 

obviously, we can’t get away from the debt service levy, but we’ve talked 
about a sub-district to balance out the mill levy so that residents in 
Wiegant have the same total mill levy as those in Shook. So in order to 
have control of that, they would like to exclude this property.  

25 
SPEAKER 3:  So now that you’ve explained it, what does that mean “we can’t get out of 

the debt service?”  Does that mean they’ll still pay the… 
26 
SPEAKER 4: They’ll still have to pay the rest of the debt service mill levy, yes. 
27 
SPEAKER 1: The debt on the mil levy service stays in place until the bonds are paid.  
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28 
SPEAKER 3: So all of the property owners would be subject to that plus… 
29 
SPEAKER 2: Plus whatever mill levies they set. 
30 
SPEAKER 4: Right. 
31 
MR. DICKHONER: So you still get the benefit to repay your debt from whatever development 

occurs there.  They’re trying to develop it all uniformly.  
32 
SPEAKER 4: So Eagle Shadow would [2:43] 2.5%, 2.5 mils… 
33 
SPEAKER 1: About three. 
34 
SPEAKER 2:  That’s the main conc… 
35 
SPEAKER 4: For 32 lots.  Right now there’s really no excess value out there.  We’ll lose 

about $150.00 in taxes assuming billed out at $450,000/per home, which is 
probably low.  

36 
SPEAKER 1: So a typical house at time built, how much is their debt service mil that we 

know? 
37 
CROSSTALK 
38 
SPEAKER 4: We are currently at 2.5 General Fund and 22.25 in the Debt Service Fund, 

so 22.25.  To give you a dollar market value, $400. 
39 
SPEAKER 2:  So the 22.25 is the debt service?  Correct? 
40 
SPEAKER 4: Well, about $640, yeah. 
41 
SPEAKER 2: So that we’re not excluding that.  
42 
SPEAKER 3: So at 22.25, they would still have to pay? 
43 
SPEAKER 4: Right, to Eagle Shadows. 
44 
SPEAKER 1: That’s just to Eagle Shadow, then you have department… 
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45 
SPEAKER 2: And that’s on their individual tax bills.  It’s not like the developer 

would… 
46 
SPEAKER 1: Is there a debt service on the Parks and Rec proposal? 
47 
SPEAKER 4: No, so it’s just the time bills and the Park and Rec, so the Park and Rec 

would stand to lose the most because of… 
48 
SPEAKER 2: The Park and Rec total overall, right now we’re not spending funds on that 

property, but… 
49 
SPEAKER 4: Well… 
50 
SPEAKER 2: What have we been collecting for that property? 
51 
SPEAKER 4: We put in that new trail for the whole area. 
52 
SPEAKER 2:  Right.  
53 
SPEAKER 1: Is there gonna be a park in the new development?  
54 
MR. DICKHONER: I don’t think so.   
55 
SPEAKER 2:  It looked like a detention pond.  
56 
CROSSTALK 
57 
MR. DICKHONER: I think there’s detention, yeah.  
58 
SPEAKER 2: I thought Adams County required a certain percentage of ground to be 

dedicated towards a park.  
59 
MR. DICKHONER: I’m not sure.  I haven’t seen the development plans for it.  
60 
SPEAKER 2: Have they platted it?  I see the road markers… 
61 
MR. DICKHONER: I think they platted and they may be doing a re-plat or plat amendment to 

it.  
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62 
SPEAKER 4: So it’s not what it looked like in the petition? 
63 
MR. DICKHONER:  That’s what it looks like right now.  
64 
SPEAKER 4: Okay.  Because I didn’t see a park.  Do you see a park?  I just saw a 

retention pond.  
65 
MR. DICKHONER: I didn’t get a chance to [05:29] it.  
66 
CROSSTALK 
67 
SPEAKER 2:  Are they gonna have curb and gutter, sewer?  Are they cozying up to 

Highland Acres and getting their water from them? 
68 
MR. DICKHONER: They’ll be getting their water from Todd Creek Village.  
69 
SPEAKER 2:  Or from the metro district? 
70 
MR. DICKHONER: Yeah, from the metro district.  That’s the metro district service area.  
71 
SPEAKER 2: The amount of culverting and all that that’s going on over there, I was 

like, it almost like curb and gutter was [05:59] and, you know, hooking up 
with Highland Acres.  I was just curious.   

72 
MR. DICKHONER:  They’re in the Todd Creek service area.  
73 
SPEAKER 4: So assuming a $450,000 house is, which is what I used, the levy or 

property taxes department amount that billed out would be about $10,000.  
74 
SPEAKER 3: Per lot? 
75 
SPEAKER 2: No!  $10,000 a year for the 32 lots.  There’s 32 lots over there.  
76 
CROSSTALK 
77 
SPEAKER 4: $485 per household.  
78 
SPEAKER 3: To Parks and Rec? 
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79 
SPEAKER 4: Yes.  
80 
CROSSTALK 
81 
SPEAKER 1 And what about the Eagle Shadow’s? 
82 
SPEAKER 4: So it would be 2.5 mils that we’re losing, so… 
83 
CROSSTALK 
84 
SPEAKER 3: Well we all know it’s gonna be more than $400,000 homes.  There’s some 

third value revenue.  
85 
CROSSTALK 
86 
MR. DICKHONER: I think they are, yeah, 1-acre lots, so septic.   
87 
SPEAKER 3: Septic has gotta be run in town.  
88 
SPEAKER 2: Okay so then they won’t be cozying up to Highland Acres for their sewer.  
89 
MR. DICKHONER: Yeah.  
90 
SPEAKER 5: They look like good-sized… 
91 
SPEAKER 2: So we’re not collecting that now though.  We’re not going to see a loss.  
92 
SPEAKER 4: Right.  
93 
SPEAKER 2: We’re just never going to realize that additional.  
94 
SPEAKER 4: Well, we’re gonna lose a little bit, about $150.  
95 
SPEAKER 2: Okay, so that’s what our actual loss is from our today’s… 
96 
SPEAKER 4: Today’s.  So $72 for the 2.5 mils is what Eagle Shadow would lose per 

home.  
 
 



 7 

97 
MR. DICKHONER: Presumably you’d provide maintenance if you didn’t let it out too, so it’s 

not a, there’s costs that are offset there too.  It’s not just net revenue.  
98 
SPEAKER 2: Do we do development fees from that, from Shook?  How much per home, 

like when they pop a house up?  How much then? 
99 
SPEAKER 4: They were $4000.   
100 
SPEAKER 2: So that’d be over $120,000 that we’d be losing then, and that’s for us to 

use for whatever.  
101 
SPEAKER 3: And there is trans-participation of early retirement of your debt. 
102 
SPEAKER 2: Right.  
103 
SPEAKER 1: So, you know, if you don’t collect those [08:41] potentially, or you do, 

those would go towards, most likely toward early retirement of your debt.  
104 
SPEAKER 3: Okay.  I see what you’re saying.  So we use the $4000 towards the debt 

service.  
105 
SPEAKER 4: Wait, now it’s not placed in the debt but… 
106 
SPEAKER 2: But it could be.  
107 
MR. DICKHONER: You probably, maybe, remember better than I, but wasn’t there some 

discussion on paying those?  I know I saw some email traffic from 
probably a few years ago about the developer paying those.  Does that ring 
a bell to you?  No?  Okay.  

108 
CROSSTALK 
109 
MR. DICKHONER: They haven’t been paid, I know, but I thought there was some discussion 

about resolving payment on those lots but not on others.  I have to go back 
and pull the…  okay.  All right.  

110 
SPEAKER 2: Not on Shook.  There’s been, I don’t think there's been any conversation 

about development fees for the Shook property.   
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 So what we’ve got looking at us right now is exclusion would make us 

wholly unresponsible for whatever they do in that particular area on that 
32 acres, I’m assuming it’s about 32 maybe a little more if there is room 
for a park, correct?  So, which means it would result in a loss to us right 
this minute of $150 a year from what we’ve been collecting from these 
lots.  Is that just park and rec?  $150 about?  Or was that the Eagle 
Shadow? 

111 
SPEAKER 4: $150 overall from all the lots.  
112 
SPEAKER 2: Overall? 
113 
SPEAKER 4: Yeah, park and rec because it’s a bigger mil levy; it’s about $650.   
114 
SPEAKER 2: Okay, so $750 we would lose from right now that we wouldn’t gain… 
115 
CROSSTALK 
116 
SPEAKER 1: 101.5 acres. 
117 
SPEAKER 3: Only 32 lots? 
118 
SPEAKER 2: Is that both pieces? 
119 
SPEAKER 1: [10:40] 
120 
SPEAKER 2: And Shook’s [10:42] 
121 
SPEAKER 4: Yeah.  
122 
SPEAKER 3: Yeah.  
123 
SPEAKER 2: Well you could even take some out.  
124 
CROSSTALK 
125 
SPEAKER 2: $4000 x 32 would be $128,000 we would not realize, so... 
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126 
SPEAKER 1: Rough, rough numbers.  You’re probably giving up $300,000 to $400,000 

over the remaining duration of the bond.  That’s a significant amount.  
127 
SPEAKER 2: Right.  
128 
SPEAKER 3: Plus the development fees--$300,000 to $400,000 
129 
CROSSTALK 
130 
SPEAKER 2: But we don’t see a park platted in there.  I mean, they specifically mention 

exclusion.  
131 
SPEAKER 1: They’ve got one big enough, outlot B, but it’s really not showing anything 

on their landscape CAD as far as landscape being recommended for this.  
132 
SPEAKER 2: And so you mentioned that they were gonna re-plot this?  Are they gonna 

re-plat it to more sites? 
133 
MR. DICKHONER: I think they were planning on re-platting.  They may be going to plat 

amendment.  
134 
SPEAKER 1: One more time, why did they feel they were not getting any benefit from 

the districts? 
135 
MR. DICKHONER: They’re paying debt service. I don’t think there are any public 

improvements out there.  They’re paying operations and they’re not 
getting anything for it. They want to be able to control their own 
development, like I said, and have the two properties’ development be in 
unison.   

136 
SPEAKER 3: So it’s two properties or one property?  Why is it one and you say two? 
137 
MR. DICKHONER: Well, there’s one that’s in the district and there’s one that’s not. They’ll be 

developed uniformly.  
138 
SPEAKER 2: The Wiegant? 
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139 
MR. DICKHONER: Yeah.  They’ll be developed uniformly, and they want to be able to have 

control over both, development of both, and have uniform mill levies 
across.  

140 
SPEAKER 1: And just to clarify for the record when you say there’s no benefit.  The 

district paid for this whole interchange and all the lights, everything else.  
That definitely is a benefit to that property.  They paid for parts of Havana, 
improvements along the upper drainage and everything else that directly 
benefitted that property, they put in parks and rec, that whole benefit 
especially if you know the park and rec amenities.  Park and rec maintains 
all of the fencing and prepping along that property as well.   

141 
SPEAKER 2: So part of the exclusion factors, as I understand, is that this district could 

provide services at a more beneficial cost to the future residents?  Is that 
right?  So if we could do it cheaper, better, for the future residents, that’s 
part of our consideration.  So what do we know about the mils you are 
proposing on those?  I mean, if you’re gonna form your own special 
district, what… 

142 
SPEAKER 1: To be clear, for the record, you can’t consider what potentially they might 

do someday… 
143 
SPEAKER 2: I just mean that the reasonable cost compared with the cost that would be 

imposed by other entities. That’s what I’m reading.  
144 
SPEAKER 1:  So right now, and just to bifurcate the discussion a little bit, for Eagle 

Shadow, since there are no ongoing services, it is no one else can go back 
and do the improvements you’ve already done that have helped that 
property, like the interchange, like the drainage improvements, all of that 
stuff.  So that’s foregone.  So no one else can go back retroactively and do 
those.   

145 
SPEAKER 2: For Eagle Shadow, petitioner has not presented and asked for this district 

to provide any improvements on that property, so as far as the record in 
the district is concerned, no one else is providing those improvements 
because we haven’t been asked to do it either.  So you can only do what 
you’ve been asked to do.  You haven’t received such request.  For Park 
and Rec, it’s a different discussion, because we’re not looking backwards, 
we’re looking forwards.  We’re looking backwards to an extent that, yes, 
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you’ve invested in parks and trails and everything else that are gonna 
benefit these residents, but you also are providing ongoing services such 
as maintaining all of the fences throughout the entire community that 
provide the image that benefits their property.  You’re gonna keep 
maintaining those properties.  You’re maintaining regional drainage.  
You’re doing a lot of things that benefit that property as well.  So for those 
purposes, again, no one else can provide those services because you’re the 
only one having jurisdiction to do that at this point, and we haven’t, again, 
heard anything saying, “We’ve got X, Y, Z, who’s willing to come in an 
provide Park and Rec services to this property in lieu of your district doing 
it?” 

146 
SPEAKER 2: So should we consider this information at this time incomplete and table 

this? 
147 
SPEAKER 1: No, don’t.  They’re asking for this exclusion right now, so we have to 

answer that right now.   
148 
SPEAKER 3: So the metro district that you’re considering forming, have you 

determined how much of the mill you’d put on the new property owner for 
that? 

149 
MR. DICKHONER: I think we’re looking at about 50 mils, so you’ve got the 22 that would be 

existing, and we would--basically the idea would be to have a district over 
both properties that is 28 mils--so 22+28 to 50--sub-district on the other 
one to make it up to get that to 50 as well, so it would be uniform 50 
across both properties so homeowners don’t see a difference across the 
street in their tax dollars.  You guys benefit from the debt service still, 
which 

150 
  MR. DICKHONER: [cut off recording] and all the rest.  
151 
SPEAKER 3: So if this was considered and agreed, we basically would take down all of 

the fence in front of this thing so it doesn’t look part of our district? 
152 
SPEAKER 1: That would be [00:12]. 
153 
SPEAKER 3: Okay.  But we could do that then? 
154 
SPEAKER 1: Sure. It’s you’re fence.  
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155 
SPEAKER 3: Good.  
156 
SPEAKER 5: How far does it go? 
157 
CROSSTALK 
158 
SPEAKER 3:  We haven’t gotten that far in the discussion yet.  We haven’t gotten to part 

of the exclusion yet.  
159 
SPEAKER 5: I know, I’m just saying. Someone’s gonna have to put it back on if we… 
160 
SPEAKER 1: Correct.  Somebody’s gotta put it back up right now.  
161 
SPEAKER 5: If we don’t [00:37] 
162 
SPEAKER 2: You guys feel like you have enough information to make a decision at this 

point? 
163 
SPEAKER 3: Could we just go into executive to talk about this and [00:51] to it?  So 

when do we have to make our decision? 
164 
SPEAKER 1:  If, after we close the public hearing, if you have specific legal questions 

regarding this, then we can go into executive session and I can answer 
those questions for you and then we can come back out, if you like.  

165 
SPEAKER 3: When do we have to make our decision? 
166 
SPEAKER 1: Today.  
167 
SPEAKER 3: Okay, well… 
168 
SPEAKER 1: We could continue this until the next board meeting if you like as well.  
169 
SPEAKER 3: Okay.  So we’re still down to, what you’re saying is, we’d lose the 

$300,000 to $400,000 for the development fees? 
170 
SPEAKER 1: And to be clear, the development fee issue, Diane and I were speaking 

about it, technically, I believe and Diane believes that they are due, and we 
have a lien on that property because the resolution imposing those fees 
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says they are due at the time of first transfer.  They have been transferred 
previously, so… 

171 
SPEAKER 2: Same as we have before.  
172 
SPEAKER 3: So they can’t even move forward until that lien is resolved?  Or selling 

them down to the homeowner? 
173 
SPEAKER 1: They’d have to pay them just like anybody else. 
174 
SPEAKER 3: Whether they’re excluded or not? 
175 
SPEAKER 1: Correct.  
176 
SPEAKER 2: So that transfer of that money is basically already the $120,000… 
177 
SPEAKER 3: That’s due now.  
178 
SPEAKER 4: That was due in 20… 
179 
SPEAKER 4: That was when the property first changed hands. 
180 
CROSSTALK 
181 
SPEAKER 2: Gene is well aware of that. 
182 
SPEAKER 4: He should be.  It’s okay [02:33] the rest of his life.  
183 
SPEAKER 2: So how do we, can we… 
184 
SPEAKER 1: What I would suggest is if you have some specific legal questions… 
185 
SPEAKER 2: I do.  
186 
SPEAKER 1: Okay, so what I would suggest then is we go ahead and close the public 

hearing and then go into executive session briefly to answer specific legal 
questions and then come back out.  

187 
SPEAKER 2: Let’s do that, but I shouldn’t just blare those out [02:59] 
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188 
CROSSTALK 
189 
MR. DICKHONER: It’s probably easier for me to step out.  
190 
CROSSTALK 
191 
MR. DICKHONER:  I will go get some fresh air.  Let me know when I can come back.   
192 
CROSSTALK 
193 
SPEAKER 2: Okay, well, welcome back.  We have wrapped up the executive session.  

Now back to the matter at hand.   
194 
MR. DYKSTRA:  And just for the record, [00:17] that the topic discussed in executive 

session [00:21] statute.  
195 
 Okay, so [00:28] across the board regarding exclusion of… 
196 
MR. DICKHONER: And I was gonna add, I talked to my client on the phone while I was 

outside and they did not have any objection to paying the 4,000 SDFs that 
are owed.  So I know Russ said you guys believe that they are due already 
and there’s a lien, but it wasn’t something that they were… 

197 
MR. DYKSTRA:  I think it will be significantly more than that because of interest, probably 

double that.  
198 
MR. DICKHONER: Okay.  
199 
SPEAKER 4: Yes, a little bit more than double, due today.  
200 
SPEAKER 2: Very well.  So any help we can get from you, Russ, at this point, we’d 

appreciate it, in terms of procedure.  
201 
MR. DYKSTRA: So a previously [01:17], you have the statutory criteria in them.  There’s 

discussion about the specific criteria; I think we discussed most of them 
previously during the public hearing portion and during the question and 
answer.  If there’s any other questions regarding that or discussion, else 
the next action from the board would be to consider a motion either 
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approve or deny the exclusion petition based on the criteria set forth in 
those resolutions.   

202 
SPEAKER 2: So do I call for a motion either way and we can have a discussion? 
203 
MR. DYKSTRA: Yes.  
204 
SPEAKER 2: So, do I have a motion on either direction? 
205 
SPEAKER 5: I’ll make the motion.   
206 
SPEAKER 2: Either including or excluding.  So what are you calling for? 
207 
SPEAKER 5: Excluding. 
208 
SPEAKER 2: You want to exclude it? 
209 
MR. DYKSTRA: To exclude it or to deny exclusion? 
210 
SPEAKER 5: To deny excluding.  
211 
MR. DYKSTRA: And that’s for both districts?  For Eagle Shadow? 
212 
SPEAKER 5: For both districts.  
213 
MR. DYKSTRA: Okay, so just so the board is clear. I want to quickly run through the 

criteria.  
214 
SPEAKER 3: Can I take a second, Jeff? 
215 
MR. DYKSTRA: Yes.  
216 
SPEAKER 2: So Fred has made a motion to deny exclusion for both of the districts 

being Park and Rec and Eagle Shadows. 
217 
SPEAKER 3: I second that motion. 
218 
SPEAKER 2: Darrel (ph) has seconded, all those in favor? 
219 
CROSSTALK 
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220 
MR. DYKSTRA: Yes, I just want to run them through the criteria so that if there’s any 

additional discussion--I know the board has all seen this before, but the 
criteria of exclusion:  It is not in the best interests of the property to be 
excluded.  Exclusion is not in the best interests of the district as it would 
result in a substantial reduction of revenue due to loss of fees and 
operation and maintenance ability the district would realize if the property 
is excluded from the district.  Exclusion is not in the best interest of 
Adams County.  The relative cost from the district services to the property 
to be excluded and the benefit from the district services to the property is 
significant.  The ability of the district to provide economical and sufficient 
service to both the property to be excluded and all of the properties within 
the districts properties will be affected, and there will be an increased 
financial impact on their taxpayers and residents of the district.  The 
exclusion will affect the district’s ability to fund services and 
improvements.  The effect of denying the petition on employment and 
other economic conditions in the district and other surrounding areas is 
negligible.  The board’s decision to deny the petition will not have an 
impact on the region or on the district, surrounding area, or state as a 
whole, except to the extent the district will be impacted from the lost 
revenue.  If an economically feasible alternative service is not available, 
there will be additional cost levied on the property remaining in the district 
if the board grants the petition for exclusion.   

221 
 So those are the statutory criteria findings.  By voting in favor of this, you 

are making those findings.  If there is any discussion you would like to 
have regarding the backing of those findings, now’s the time to do it, or 
you can [04:57]. 

222 
SPEAKER 2: Does anyone have any discussion about those items? 
223 
SPEAKER 3: I don’t have anything for discussion.  
224 
CROSSTALK 
225 
SPEAKER 5: He said, “Yeah, he doesn’t have any.” 
226 
SPEAKER 2: Okay, so Christine.  
 
 



 17 

227 
 All right, so we have a motion and a second.  So at this point we are 

voting to deny exclusion.  If you agree, please say correct.  If you agree 
with Jeff and Darrell’s motion, please say “I.” 

228 
SPEAKER 1: For the record, it’s Fred and Jeff.  
229 
SPEAKER 2: Fred and Jeff’s…oh, okay.   
230 
CROSSTALK 
231 
SPEAKER 2: May I have a vote?  All those in favor of those motions please say “I.” 
232 
SEVERAL RESPONSES:   “I.” 
233 
MR. DICKHONER: Russ would you please provide me with a copy of that resolution?  

Thanks.  
234 
MR. DYKSTRA: Before you go, FYI, for your information, we have very similar requests 

from Baseline Lakes over here.  Instead of the exclusion, because of the 
reasons and the findings of the board to deny that exclusion, we instead 
did a sub-district with them, so you might want to discuss with your 
clients if that’s something of interest.  That way, they have control over it.  
This board just blesses the issuance of the bonds, that’s it.   

235 
MR. DICKHONER: Okay. Well, your board would be the board of that sub-district.   
236 
MR. DYKSTRA: We can appoint your clients to serve on a committee that… 
237 
MR. DICKHONER: The committee that talks to them… 
238 
MR. DYKSTRA: The committee that runs everything since the board doesn’t have 

interest… 
239 
MR. DICKHONER: Hope they, then they’d hope that they follow the direction of the 

committee.  
240 
MR. DYKSTRA: Yeah.  
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241 
MR. DICKHONER: We’ve talked about that option.  I’ll run it by them again and see if their 

mind has changed.  
242 
MR. DYKSTRA: I know it was a pretty simple economical way to do it because we’re 

actually forming that sub-district [07:05] 
243 
MR. DICKHONER: Okay, I’ll bring it up with them and then if you could just send that 

resolution to me, that would be great.  
244 
CROSSTALK 
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Adams County Attorney 
Attn: Doug Edelstein  
4430 S. Adams County Parkway 
Brighton, CO 80601 
dedelstein@adcogov.org  

 
RE: Notice of Appeal of Denial of Petitions for Exclusion from Eagle Shadow 

Metropolitan District No. 1 and Todd Creek Village Park and Recreation District Filed by 
Petitioner Sec. 2-3 Phoenix, LLC  

 
Dear Mr. Edelstein: 
 

Our firm serves as legal counsel to Sec. 2-3 Phoenix, LLC (the “Petitioner”) in 
connection with the Petitions for Exclusion of Certain Real Property (“Petitions for Exclusion”) 
submitted to Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District No. 1 (“ESMD”) and Todd Creek Village Park 
and Recreation District (“TCVPRD”).  Pursuant to § 32-1-501(5)(b)(I), C.R.S. Petitioner hereby 
appeals ESMD and TCVPRD’s denial of the Petitions for Exclusion.  The filing of this appeal 
with the Board of County Commissioners of Adams County (the “Commissioners”) is proper 
under § 32-1-501(5)(b)(I), C.R.S. because the original petitions for organization of both ESMD 
and TCVPRD were filed with the Adams County District Court.  The filing of this appeal with 
the Commissioners is timely pursuant to § 32-1-501(5)(b)(I), C.R.S. as it is taken within thirty 
(30) days of the decisions by ESMD and TCVPRD to deny the Petitions for Exclusion, which 
occurred on June 19, 2018. 

 
Petitioner is the fee owner of certain property consisting of approximately 97 acres, more 

particularly described in the Petitions for Exclusion (the “Property”).  The Property is currently 
located within the boundaries of ESMD and TCVPRD and constitutes less than ten percent of the 
overall property currently included within ESMD and constitutes less than ten percent of the 
overall property currently included within TCVPRD.  Petitioner submitted the Petitions for 
Exclusion to both ESMD and TCVPRD on April 26, 2018.  ESMD and TCVPRD held public 
hearings on the Petitions for Exclusion on June 19, 2018.  Following the hearings, the Boards of 
Directors for both ESMD and TCVPRD denied the Petitions for Exclusion. 

 
Petitioner is appealing the denial of the Petitions for Exclusion because the statutory 

factors, found at § 32-1-501(3)(a)-(h), C.R.S. and which are to be considered in connection with 
this appeal, weigh heavily in favor of exclusion of the Property.   

 
We are in the process of obtaining a full record of the denials of the Petitions of 

Exclusion issued by ESMD and TCVPRD.  However, at this time, we have enclosed with this 

mailto:dedelstein@adcogov.org
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Appeal of Exclusion Denial 
June 29, 2018 
 

    1470.2000 912148 

 
 

Notice of Appeal the following documents that comprise a portion of the record developed by 
the Boards of Directors of ESMD and TCVPRD and therefore shall also be part of the record for 
the purposes of this appeal: 

 
1. Petition for Exclusion of Property submitted to ESMD on April 26, 2018 
2. Petition for Exclusion of Property submitted to TCVPRD on April 26, 2018 
3. Resolution of the Board of Directors of ESMD denying the Petition for Exclusion of 

Property dated June 19, 2018 
4. Resolution of the Board of Directors of TCVPRD denying the Petition for Exclusion 

of Property dated June 19, 2018 
 
 We expect to have additional documentation establishing the full record of actions taken 
by ESMD and TCVPRD in the coming weeks, but we wanted to submit this letter along with the 
enclosed documents to commence the appeal process within the required statutory timeframe. 
 

At this point, we request that the Commissioners establish a timeline for the following 
procedural steps that we believe to be necessary and appropriate for this appeal: (1) deadline for 
submitting all documents establishing the record (we should have transcripts in our possession 
within two weeks); (2) deadline for Petitioner to submit its initial brief on this matter; (3) 
deadline by which both ESMD and TCVPRD must submit their response briefs; (4) deadline by 
which Petitioner must submit its reply brief; and (5) date upon which the Commissioners will 
hear this matter.  The foregoing is an efficient procedure that should provide the Commissioners 
the necessary information to make an informed decision. 

 
Finally, as previously mentioned, § 32-1-501(5)(b)(I), C.R.S. provides that this appeal 

must be taken within thirty (30) days of the June 19, 2018 denials by ESMD and TCVPRD.  In 
addition to providing a written timeline for the procedural steps outlined above, we request that 
you provide written acknowledgment that this Notice of Appeal was timely filed within the thirty 
(30) days prescribed by statute and that the Commissioners have jurisdiction over this matter.  

 
If you have any questions or concerns regarding this matter or require the submission of 

additional information, please feel free to contact me at your earliest convenience.   
 

   Sincerely, 
 
   WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
   Attorneys at Law 

    
Blair M. Dickhoner, Esq. 

 
Enclosures 
 
CC: Russ Dykstra 































MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DffiECTORS OF 

EAGLE SHADOW METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 

HELD: Tuesday, the 191
h day of June, 2018, at 4:00p.m. in the Community Room of the Greater 

Brighton Fire Protection District Station 55, 15959 Havana Street, Brighton, Colorado 

ATTENDANCE: 

A regular meeting ofthe Board of Directors of the Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District No. I, Adams 
County, Colorado, was held as shown above and in accordance with the applicable statutes of the 
State of Colorado, with the following directors present and acting: 

Cheryl A. Gibson, President 
Fred Brown, Asst. Secretary 

George A. Nightingale, Asst. Secretary (via telephone) 
Darrell S. Jennings, Treasurer/Asst. Secretary 

Jeffery A. Walsh, Asst. Secretary 

Also present were Barney Fix of Merrick and Company, Diane Wheeler of Simmons and Wheeler 
P.C., Josh Schultz of Schultz Industries, Inc., Blair Dickhoner of White Bear Ankele Tanaka and 
Waldron P.C. and Russell W. Dykstra of Spencer Fane LLP. 

CALL TO ORDER: 

Director Gibson noted that a quorum was present for the purpose of conducting a meeting of the 
Board of Directors of the Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District No. I and called the meeting of the 
Board of Directors of the District to order at 4:00p.m. 

AGENDA: 

The Directors reviewed the agenda for the meeting. Upon motion duly made, seconded and upon 
vote unanimously carried, the Board approved the Agenda as amended moving the public hearing on 
petition for exclusion of property from Attorney's Items on the agenda to the beginning of the 
meeting 

DISCLOSURE OF POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST: 

Mr. Dykstra noted that transactional disclosure statements had been filed on behalf of the members 
of the Board of Directors with the office of the Colorado Secretary of State and with the Secretary of 
the District. Upon motion duly made, seconded and upon vote unanimously carried, the Board 
directed that said Disclosures be incorporated herein. The members noted for the record that the only 
conflict each ofthem has is ownership of a home and property with-in the District. 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

There was none. 

PUBLIC HEARING ON EXCLUSION: 

Mr. Dykstra reported that proper publication of notice for the exclusion petition hearing had been 
made in order to allow the Board to hold a public hearing on the petition for exclusion of 
property. The hearing was opened and public comment was taken in regard to the exclusion 
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petition after which the hearing was closed. Mr. Dykstra reviewed the petition for exclusion of 
property and reviewed the statutory requirements with the Board. The Board requested an 
executive session to receive specific legal advice regarding the exclusion requirements. 

The Board entered into executive session pursuant to 24-6-402(4)(b) in order to obtain specific 
legal advice from Mr. Dykstra pertaining to the requirements for exclusion of property within the 
district boundaries. Upon motion duly made, seconded and upon vote unanimously carried, the 
board exited the executive session and re-convened the regular board meeting proceedings. Mr. 
Dykstra certified for the record that the matters discussed in executive session were appropriate 
and specific to legal advice as required by statute. 

Upon further discussion by the Board regarding the specific statutory requirements for exclusion 
and motion duly made, seconded and upon vote unanimously carried, the Board moved to 
approve the resolution denying the petition for exclusion of property noting that there are 
adequate services currently provided by the Todd Creek Village Park and Recreation District 
improvements to the property and that the exclusion of such property would be a financial 
hardship on the existing residents and taxpayers of the District and exclusion would not be in the 
District's best interest. The Resolution Denying the Petition for Exclusion is incorporated into 
these minutes. Mr. Dickhoner left the meeting. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

The Board reviewed the minutes of the regular meeting held on May 15, 2018. Upon motion 
duly made, seconded, and upon vote unanimously carried, the Board approved the minutes as 
presented and authorized the execution of the Minutes as constituting a true and correct record of 
the proceedings of the meeting. 

FINANCIAL REPORT: 

a. Disbursements. Ms. Wheeler presented the interim and current claims for approval 
with accompanying documentation for checks numbered 3578 through 3584 in the amount of 
$8,564.75. Discussion ensued. Upon motion duly made, seconded and upon vote 
unanimously carried, the Board approved and authorized the disbursement of check numbers 
3578 through 3584 in the amount of$8,564.75. 

b. Accountant's Reports. Ms. Wheeler reviewed the monthly accountant's report and 
cash position dated May 3 I, 20 I 8 with the Board and discussion ensued. Upon motion duly 
made, seconded and upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board accepted and approved the 
cash and accountant's report as presented. 

ENGINEER'S ITEMS: 

Mr. Fix reported that there are no current projects within the District at this time. 

ATTORNEY'S ITEMS: 

Mr. Dykstra presented his monthly report and noted that proper publication had been made in order 
to hold a public hearing on the petition for formation of a sub-district. Director Gibson opened the 
public hearing. There being no public present to comment, the public hearing was closed. Upon 
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motion duly made, seconded and upon vote unanimously carried, the board approved the petition for 
the fonnation of a sub-district and executed the authorizing resolution. 

OLD BUSINESS: 

There was none. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

There was none. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

Following discussion, upon motion duly made, seconded and upon vote unanimously carried, the 
Board moved to adjourn the meeting at 5:30p.m. 

The foregoing Minutes constitute a true and correct copy of the Minutes of the above-referenced 
regular meeting and were approved by the Board of Directors of the Eagle Shadow Metropolitan 
District No. 1. 
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INTRODUCTION 

SERVICE PLAN FOR THE PROPOSED 

EAGLE SHADOW 

METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Special District Control Act, Section 32-1-201, 

et seq. , Colorado Revised Statutes, this Service Plan consists of a fmancial analysis and an 

engineering plan showing how the proposed facilities and services of the proposed Eagle Shadow 

Metropolitan District No. 1 ("District") will be provided and fmanced. The following items are 

included in this Service Plan: 

1. A description of the proposed services; 

2. A financial plan showing how the proposed services are to be financed, 

including the proposed operating revenue derived from property taxes for the first budget year of 

the District; 

3. A preliminary engineering or architectural survey showing how the proposed 

services are to be provided; 

1 



D 
0 
0 
0 
0 
D 
0 
0 
D 
u 
0 
0 
u 
0 
0 

J 
J 

4. A map of the proposed District boundaries and an estimate of the population 

and valuation for assessment of the proposed District; 

5. . A general description of the facilities to be constructed and the standards of 

such construction, including a statement of how the facility and service standards of the proposed 

District are compatible with facility and service standards of Adams County, Colorado ("County") 

and of any municipalities and special districts which are interested parties pursuant to Section 32-

l-204(1), Colorado Revised Statutes; 

6. A general description of the estimated cost of acquiring land, engineering 

services, legal services, administrative services, initial proposed indebtedness and estimated 

proposed maximum interest rates and discounts, and other major expenses related to the 

organization and initial operation of the proposed District; and 

7. A description of any arrangement or proposed agreement with any political 

subdivision for the performance of any services between the proposed District and such other 

political subdivision, and if applicable a form of the agreement is attached hereto. 
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PURPOSE OF THE DISTRICT 

Services will be provided to the approximately 289-acre Eagle Shadow development 

(the "Development") by a metropolitan district that will be created pursuant to Section 32-1-101, 

et mJ., C.R.S. The district will be named Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District No. 1 ("the 

District"). The District will provide the following: (1) street improvements, (2) parks and 

recreation, (3) safety protection, (4) transportation, (5) mosquito control, (6) water service to 

property within its boundaries, (7) sanitary sewer services to property within its boundaries and 

any other services that may be provided by a metropolitan district within and without the District's 

boundaries as will be determined by the District's Board of Directors to be in the best interest of 

the District. 

The major purpose of the District is to finance and construct public improvements 

and to dedicate, when appropriate, such public improvements to the County or to such other entity 

as appropriate for the use and benefit of the District's taxpayers. 

The District is expected to finance the construction of improvements and provide 

such other services as are described in this Service Plan. 
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PROPOSED DISTRICT BOUNDARIES/MAPS 

The area to be initially served by the proposed District is located in the County 

generally north of State Highway 7, south of 168th Avenue, east of Holly Street and west of 

Quebec Street. The total area to be initially included in the proposed District is approximately 289 

acres (the "Initial District Boundaries"). A legal description of the Initial District Boundaries is 

attached hereto as Exhibit A. A map of the Initial District Boundaries and vicinity of the District 

is attached as Exhibit B-1. See Exhibits B-2 through B-4 for a map showing the zoning; the 

location of other special districts, municipalities and counties within a three mile radius of the 

proposed District; a list of services provided by the other entities and a list of property owners. 

It is anticipated that as property is acquired and/or processed for development, it will be included 

in the boundaries of the proposed District. 

PROPOSED LAND USE/POPULATION PROJECTIONS 

At present, the Development is zoned A-1 by the County, which allows for a 

maximum of 185 single-family residential uses. The Development is now vacant and is not 

presently served with the facilities and/or services proposed to be provided by the proposed 

District, nor does the County nor any other special district have any plans to provide such services 

within a reasonable time and on a comparable basis. It is anticipated that the property within the 

proposed District would be utilized for residential uses. At an estimated three (3) persons per 

residence, this would result in a peak daytime population estimate of 555 persons based upon 
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current zoning for the Development. In order to facilitate the development of the properties within 

the District as planned, organized provision of facilities and services proposed to be provided by 

the proposed District will be necessary. 

It is anticipated that the District's boundaries will change from time to time as it 

undergoes inclusions and exclusions pursuant to parts 4 and 5 of Article 1, Title 32, C.R.S. In 

the event the District proposes to expand its boundaries or service area, it shall provide forty-five 

(45) days prior written notice of such expansion to the Board of County Commissioners. In the 

event the County provides no written response to the forty-five (45) day notice, the District shall 

proceed with the expansion. In the event the County objects in wri~ing within the forty-five (45) 

day period, the District shall proceed only with the written consent of the County. The form of 

written consent shall be determined by the Board of County Commissioners. 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED SERVICES 

The following paragraphs provide a description of the proposed services to be 

provided by the District. 

A. Types of Improvements . 

The District plans to provide for the design, acquisition, construction, installation, 

and financing of certain street, safety protection, park and recreation, transportation, mosquito 
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control, water and sanitation improvements and services within and without the boundaries of the 

District. This Service Plan describes with specificity those improvements anticipated for 

construction within the Initial District Boundaries ("Initial Improvements"). The Initial 

Improvements will benefit the Development. A general description of the Initial Improvements 

follows this p~agraph, and Exhibit C lists the Initial Improvements planned to be provided 

relating to each type, the phasing of construction of such facilities, and the costs in current dollars. 

An explanation of the methods, basis, and/or assumptions used to prepare the above· estimates is 

also included in Exhibit C. The Initial Improvements generally depicted and described in Exhibit 

D have been presented for illustration only, and the exact design, subphasing of construction and 

location of the Initial Improvements will be determined at the time of planing and such decisions 

shall not be considered to be a material modification of the Service Plan. 

1. Streets. The proposed District shall have the power to provide for the 

acquisition, construction, completion, installation and/or operation and maintenance of street 

improvements. including curbs, gutters. culverts, and other drainage facilities, sidewalks, bike 

paths and pedestrian ways, bridges, overpasses, interchanges, median islands, paving, lighting, 

grading, landscaping and irrigation, together with all necessary, incidental, and appurtenant 

facilities, land and easements, together with extensions of and improvements to said facilities 

within and without the boundaries of the proposed District. , It is anticipated that, following 

acceptance by the County, the County will maintain the streets within the District. The District 

may supplement the County's maintenance as it deems necessary or desirable to benefit its 
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taxpayers and service users. Following acceptance, the street improvements will be owned, 

operated and maintained by the County. 

All streetscaping improvements will be maintained by the District, or an association 

of landowners within the Development, or both. 

2 . Safety Protection. The proposed District shall have the power to provide 

for the acquisition, construction, completion, installation and/or operation and maintenance of 

facilities and/or services for a system of traffic and .safety controls and devices on streets and 

highways, including signalization, signing and striping, together with all necessary, incidental, and 

appurtenant facilities, land and easements, together with extensions of and improvements to said 

facilities within and without the boundaries of the proposed District. Following acceptance, all 

safety protection improvements will be transferred to the County for ownership and maintenance. 

3. Park and Recreation. The proposed District shall have the power to provide 

for the design, acquisition, construction, completion, installation, operation and maintenance of 

parks and recreational facilities and programs including, but not limited to, parks, bike paths and 

pedestrian ways, open space, landscaping, cultural activities, community recreational centers, 

water bodies, irrigation facilities, and other active and passive recreational facilities and programs, 

and all necessary, incidental and appurtenant facilities, land and easements, together with 

extensions of and improvements to said facilities within and without the boundaries of the District. 
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All such parks and recreational facilities will be owned and maintained by the District or an 

association of landowners within the Property. 

4. · Transportation. The proposed District shall have the power for the design, 

acquisition, construction, completion, installation, operation and maintenance of a system to 

transport the public by bus, rail, or any other means of conveyance, or combination thereof, or 

pursuant to contract, including park and ride facilities and parking lots, and all necessary, 

incidental and appurtenant facilities, land and easements, together with all necessary extensions 

of and improvements to said facilities of systems within and without the boundaries of the District. 

5. Mosguito Control. The proposed District shall have the power to provide 

for the eradication and control of mosquitoes, including but not limited to elimination or treatment 

of breeding grounds and purchase, lease, contracting or other use of equipment or supplies for 

mosquito control. 

6. Water. The proposed District shall have the power to provide for the 

design, acquisition, construction, completion, installation, operation and maintenance of a 

complete potable and nonpotable water supply, purification, storage, transmission and distribution 

system, which may include, but shall not be limited to, wells, water pumps, purification plants, 

pump stations, transmission lines, distribution mains and laterals, fire hydrants, irrigation 

facilities, storage facilities, land and easements, and all necessary, incidental, and appurtenant 

facilities, together with extensions of and improvements to said system within and without the 
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boundaries of the proposed District. The water supply system will supply the water needs for the 

entire Development and future inclusion areas. 

It is anticipated that water will be provided to the development by Todd Creek 

Farms Metropolitan District No. 1 pursuant to an intergovernmental agreement. 

7. Sanitation. The proposed District shall have the power to provide for the 

design, acquisition, construction, completion, installation, operation and maintenance of a 

complete sanitary sewage collection, treatment, transmission, and disposal system which may 

include, but shall not be limited to, treatment plants, collection mains and laterals, lift stations, 

transmission lines, sludge handling and disposal facilities, and/or storm sewer, flood and surface 

drainage facilities ~d systems, including detention/retention ponds and associated irrigation 

facilities, and all necessary, incidental, and appurtenant facilities, land and easements. together 

with extensions of and improvements to said system within and without the boundaries of the 

proposed District. The sanitary sewer system will be designed to adequately serve the entire 

Development area and the Future Service Areas. 

It is anticipated that sanitary sewer service will be provided by Todd Creek Farms 

Metropolitan District No. 1 pursuant to an intergovernmental agreement. 

8. Fire Protection. The Property and the Development are wholly within the 

boundaries of the West Adams Fire Protection District No. 1 ("West Adams") and through an 
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arrangement with West Adams, the North Metro Fire Rescue Authority will provide fire and 

emergency services to the Property. The District shall not have any powers to provide fire 

protection or emergency response services. The Development will obtain its fire protection and 

emergency response services from the North Metro Fire Rescue Authority and/or West Adams 

Fire Protection District No. 1. 

9. Other Powers. 

In addition to the enumerated powers, the Board of Directors· of the District shall 

also have the following authority: 

(A) Plan Amendments . To amend the Service Plan as needed, subject 

to the appropriate statutory procedures, and to utilize, as appropriate, the forty-five (45) day notice 

provision set forth in Section 32-1-207, C.R.S. 

(B) Phasin&. Deferral. Without amending this Service Plan, to defer, 

forego, reschedule, or restructure the financing and construction of certain improvements and 

facilities, to better accommodate the pace of growth, resource availability, and potential inclusions 

of property within the District. 

(C) Additional Services. Except as specifically provided herein, to 

provide such additional services and exercise such powers as are expressly or impliedly granted 

by Colorado law. 
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B. Standards of ConstrUction/Statement of Compatibility. 

1. All streets and safety protection facilities to be dedicated to the County will 

be constructed in accordance with the standards and specifications of the County. 

2. All storm sewers and facilities will be constructed in accordance with the 

standards and specifications of the County, the Urban Drainage and Flood Control District and 

other local jurisdictions, as appropriate. 

3. All parks and recreational facilities and/or s~rvices will be constructed in 

accordance with engineering and design requirements appropriate for the surrounding terrain, and 

shall not be incompatible with standards of the County, or other local public entities, as 

appropriate. 

4. All transportation facilities and/or services will be provided in accordance 

the standards and specifications of the County, if any, or other local public entities, as appropriate. 

5. All mosquito eradication and control facilities will be designed, constructed, 

maintained and operated in accordance with the standards and specifications of the Colorado 

Department of Health, the County, if any, or other jurisdictions, as appropriate. 
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6. All water system improvements will be designed, constructed and 

maintained in accordance with the standards of the Colorado Department of Health, Todd Creek 

Fanns Metropolitan District No. 1 and any other jurisdiction, as appropriate. 

7. The sanitary sewer treatment and/or collection facilities will be designed, 

constructed and maintained in accordance with the standards of Colorado Department of Health, 

Todd Creek Fanns Metropolitan District No. l and any other applicable local, state or federal 

rules and regulations. 

Based on an analysis of jurisdictions which are interested parties in the Service Plan 

proceedings as defined in the Colorado Revised Statutes, the proposed District's Engineers have 

determined that the standards by which the facilities are to be constructed are compatible with the 

facilities of such other jurisdictions. 

C. Facilities to be Constructed and/or Acguired. 

The District proposes to provide and/or acquire the Initial Improvements and the 

improvements necessary for future included properties. A general description and preliminary 

engineering survey, as appropriate, of the Initial Improvements are shown on Exhibit D. 
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ASSESSED VALUATION 

The property within the Initial District Boundaries has an assessed valuation as of 

January 1998 of approximately Twenty One Thousand Seven Hundred Dollars ($21,700). The 

projected build-out for .the Initial District Boundaries is set forth in the Financial Plan set forth in 

Exhibit E-1 through E-4. At build-out, the assessed valuation of the property within the Initial 

District Boundaries is expected to be Five Million Nine Hundred Forty-Eight Thousand Dollars 

($5,948,000). 

ESTIMATED COSTS OF FACILITIES 

The estimated costs of the Initial Improvements are set forth in Exhibit C attached 

hereto. Exhibit D includes a facility map and preliminary drawings for the Initial Improvements. 

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE/ESTIMATED COSTS 

Subject to the applicable warranty, the proposed District intends to dedicate certain 

facilities constructed or acquired, to the appropriate jurisdiction for operations and maintenance. 

Facilities completed by the District or others within its boundaries may be owned, operated and/or 

maintained by the proposed District, pursuant to approvals being obtained from the appropriate 

jurisdiction(s). Estimated costs for operation and maintenance functions are shown on the 

Financial Plan. The District may impose a system of fees , rates, tolls, penalties or charges in 

connection with its provision of services. The estimated revenues from such fees, rates, tolls, 
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penalties, or charges are reflected in the Financial Plan, below. The earliest the District will be 

organized will be December, 1999, therefore, the Financial Plan assumes no operating expenses 

or debt will be incurred until 2000. The Financial Plan assumes the District will incur 

approximately Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) per year in operating and administrative 

expenses. 

It is anticipated that the proposed District and Todd Creek Farms Metropolitan 

District No. 1 will enter into a Regional Facilities Agreement which will set forth the rights and 

responsibilities of each District regarding the financing, operation, construction, ownership and 

maintenance of facilities needed to serve the property within the boundaries of the proposed 

District. The proposed District may also enter into other intergovernmental agreements ("IGA ") 

as necessary to provide services to and for the property within the proposed District. To the 

extent necessary to comply with statutory and/or Constitutional requirements for approval of debt 

or long-term financial obligations, the approval of the District's electorate will be obtained on the 

terms of any I GA. The District shall have the authority to obtain the required voter authorization 

in order to exercise its rights and obligations under such agreements and to enter into the IGAs 

without further approval of the County. 
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FINANCIAL PLAN/PROPOSED INDEBTEDNESS 

The Financial Plan shows how the Initial Improvements are to be financed 

including the estimated costs of engineering services, legal services, administrative services, 

proposed indebtedness and estimated proposed maximum interest rates and discounts, and other 

major expenses related to the organization and operation of the proposed District. It demonstrates 

the issuance of the debt and the anticipated repayment based on the projected development in the 

Initial District Boundaries. The Financial Plan also demonstrates that, at various projected levels 

of development, the proposed District has the ability to finance the Initial Improvements, and will 

be capable of discharging the proposed indebtedness on a reasonable basis. As property is 

included in the boundaries of the District, the District's needs for additional moneys to fund 

necessary facilities will increase as will its ability to repay additional general obligation bonds 

based on projections for the included area. 

A. General. The provision of facilities by the proposed District will be 

primarily financed by the issuance of general obligation bonds, secured by the ad valorem taxing 

authority of the proposed District with limitations as discussed below. It is anticipated· that 

property will be included within the District in phases as the land is acquired for development. 

The District, upon organization, will contain approximately 289 acres within its boundaries and 

will initially issue a maximum of One Million Nine Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,900,000) in 

general obligation bonds ("Initial Debt"). The Financial Plan demonstrates the issuance of the 

Initial Debt and the anticipated repayment based on the projected development in the Initial 

District Boundaries. As demonstrated by the Analysis attached to the Financial Plan, for every 
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38.03 acres of property subsequently included within the District's boundaries, the District will 

have the ability to support the payment of an additional Two Hundred and Fifty Thousand DQllars 

($250,000) in general obligation bonds ("Inclusion Formula"). It is anticipated that the first bond 

issue will occur in 2000. The District shall have the authority to obtain voter authority for the 

incurrence of the Initial Debt and future debt in the total amount of Thirty Million Dollars 

($30,000,000) with its ability to utilize this authority for future debt limited to the following: 

for every 38.03 acres of property subsequently included within the District's boundaries, the 

District will have the authority and ability to support the payment of an additional Two Hundred 

and Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000) in general obligation bonds. 

Pursuant to Section 32-1-1101, C.R.S., bonds would mature not more than twenty 

years from the date of issuance, with the first maturity being not later than three years from the 

date of their issuance. The proposed maximum voted interest rate is estimated at eighteen percent 

(18%) and the maximum underwriting discount at five percent (5%). The exact interest rates and 

discounts will be determined at the time the bonds are sold by the proposed District, and will 

reflect market conditions at the time of sale. The proposed District may also issue notes , 

certificates, debentures or other evidences of indebtedness long-term contracts, subject to the 

limitations set forth herein. 

The amount to be voted exceeds the amount of bonds anticipated to be sold as 

shown in the Financial Plan, to allow for the inclusion of additional properties within the District's 

boundaries, unforeseen contingencies and increases in construction costs due to inflation, and to 
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cover all issuance costs, including capitalized interest, reserve funds, discounts, legal fees and 

other incidental costs of issuance. 

B. Mill Levy. The proposed District will have a mill levy assessed on all taxable 

property in the proposed District as a primary source of revenue for repayment of debt service and 

for operations and maintenance. Although the mill levy may vary depending upon the elected 

board's decision to fund the projects contemplated in this Service Plan, it is estimated that a mill 

levy of thirty-five (35) mills will produce revenue sufficient to support the operations and 

maintenance and debt retirement throughout the bond repayment period. In addition, the proposed 

District may capitalize interest to permit payment of interest during the time lapse between 

development of taxable properties and the collection of tax levies therefrom. Interest income 

through the reinvestment of construction funds, capitalized interest and annual tax receipts will 

provide additional funds. These revenue sources should be sufficient to retire the proposed 

indebtedness if growth occurs as projected; otherwise, increases in the mill levy and/or the 

imposition of rates, tolls, fees and charges may be necessary. 

For purposes of this Section "Debt to Assessed Valuation" shall mean the ratio of 

(i) the District's total outstanding unlimited general obligation debt, including the bonds proposed 

to be issued, to (ii) the District's assessed valuation and "Mill Levy Cap" shall mean that the mill 

levy pledged for repayment of the bonds will not exceed 50 mills (adjusted to take into account 

legislative or constitutionally imposed adjustments in assessed values or the method of their 

calculation). In the event that the Debt to Assessed Valuation is 50% or greater, general 

obligation bonds may only be issued if the District's obligation to impose a mill levy sufficient to 
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pay the debt is subject to the Mill Levy Cap. In the event that the Debt to Assessed Valuation is 

less than 50%, bonds may be issued without limitation as to the District's obligation to impose a 

mill levy sufficient to pay the debt. 

The Financial Plan reflects the amount of bonds to be sold to finance the 

completion, construction, acquisition and/or installation of the Initial Improvements, including all 

costs and expenses related to the anticipated bond issuances. The amount of bonds sold will be 

based upon the final engineering estimates and/ or actual construction contracts. Organizational 

costs, including legal fees, and capitalized engineering costs, are to be paid from the proceeds of 

the each bond issue. The interest rates as set forth in the Financial Plan are based upon the advice 

of Kirkpatrick Pettis. 

The Financial Plan projects the anticipated flow of funds and is based upon estimates of 

construction and project needs for bond proceeds to finance the proposed District's Initial 

Improvements. The District's engineer has evaluated the timing and cost estimate of the Initial 

Improvements which are necessary to support the proposed absorptions of development as 

projected in the Financial Plan and has concurred with the assumptions. The Financial Plan sets 

forth the most reasonable estimate of growth within the Initial District Boundaries and allows the 

Board of Directors a measure of flexibility such that the proposed District need not incur debt in 

excess of what it needs to meet a growing population's demands for facilities and services. 

C. Projections of Assessed Valuation. For purposes of developing the Financial 

Plan set forth herein, it was assumed that residential units within the proposed District would be 
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developed and assessed at various percentages depending upon the year of construction. It is also 

assumed that the assessed valuation will be realized one year after construction and that tax 

collections will be realized two years after initial construction. 

D. Operations. Annual administrative, operational and maintenance expenses 

are estimated as shown in the Financial Plan. In years 2000 through 2020, the Financial Plan 

projects that a levy of eight (8) mills would be sufficient to meet these expenses, together with 

collection of a portion of development fees . If necessary, however, the proposed District reserves 

the right to supplement these revenues with additional revenue sources as permitted by law. The 

District shall not use bond proceeds for the payment of operations and maintenance expenses. 

However, the District shall have the authority to repay the Developer for amounts advanced for 

operations and maintenance expenses and to seek electorate approval for such obligation to be 

deemed a multi-year fiscal obligation, provided such obligation shall be subordinate to the 

District's general obligation bonds issued for capital improvements. 

The mill levy cap proposed herein for repayment of the bonds does not apply to the 

District's ability to increase its mill levy as necessary for provision of operation and maintenance 

services to its taxpayers and service users. However, there are statutory and constitutional limits 

on the District's ability to increase its mill levy for provision of operation and maintenance 

services without an election. The maintenance of landscape areas, streetscape areas and park and 

recreation areas will need to be sustained by the property owners within the boundaries of the 

District or by the same property owners through a land owners association. Through the election 
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process, it will be determined whether the property owners would prefer to maintain such 

improvements through the District or a land owners association in the future. 

The County shall not be held liable for any of the District's obligations as set forth in this 

Service Plan. 

CONCLUSION 

It is submitted that this Service Plan for the proposed Eagle Shadow Metropolitan 

District No. 1 establishes that: 

(a) There is sufficient existing and projected need for organized service 

in the area to be serviced by the proposed District; 

(b) The existing service in the area to be served by the proposed District 

is inadequate for present and projected needs; 

(c) The proposed District is capable of providing economical and 

sufficient service to the area within its proposed boundaries; 

(d) The area to be included in the proposed District does have, and will 

have, the financial ability to discharge the proposed indebtedness on a reasonable basis; 
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(e) Adequate service is not, and will not be, available to the area through 

the County or other existing municipal or quasi-municipal corporations, including existing special 

districts, within a reasonable time and on a comparable basis; 

(f) The facility and service standards of the proposed District are 

compatible with the facility and service standards of the County within which the proposed special 

district is to be located and each municipality which is an interested party under Section 32-l-

204(1), Colorado Revised Statutes; 

(g) The proposal is in substantial compliance with a master plan adopted 

pursuant to Section 30-28-106, C.R.S.; and 

(h) The proposal will be in compliance with the regional clean water plan 

in accordance with state requirements; and 

(i) The creation of the proposed District is in the best interests of the 

area proposed to be served. 

W·\Ciients\406 Equmox Group\EagleShadowlservice plan.wpd 
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EXBIB:X::':t' -A-

PARCEL A: 

TB:B NORTX ONB·IIALlP (N l/2) OF SXCTION 5, TOWN'SlliP 1 S01J'l'K, RAHGZ 67 WBST 9F TD 
6TH P • H. , BXCBP'l' . 'l'ltB BAST 3 0 PDT Tlt!DUIOF FOR COCHTY ROAD, AND BXCXPT TD 
RIGBTS·OF·WA!' FOR HOLLY S'1'llDT AND ZAST l68TX AVENOE, AND, BXOP'1"DlG -rmaua'ROM 'l'lm 
FOLLOWZNG :CBSOUBBD PAilCZL: 

Tn'l' PART OP TD NEl./4 OF SEC"l"rON 5, 'l'OWSXIP 1 SOtrm, RAHGB 67 WEST OF 'l'lm 6'l'l! 
P.M. , :CBSClUBBD AS BEGINNXNG AT 'l'lm ZAS'l' Q'O'AR'l'D CORNER OP SAID SEC'l'J:ON" 5; ~ 
NORTH: ALONG TlD!! BAST LDm OF SAID NEl./4 A OIS'rANO OF l.47. 85 J'UT '1'0 'l'lm 'rll'OE 
POINT OF BBQDml:NG 1 'rHBHC3 WES'1' AT RJ:Gll'r ANGLES A DIS'r.AHCX OF 97 3 • 23 P'"KI!lr; 'l'lDDfC3 
N04•oa•w, 579 FEET; TBBNCB N32.02'B, 83 . 00 FE3'l' ; r.a&NCB N69•42'E, S7l..4 PEBT; 
'l'BENCE N8l•22'Z, 440.00 PDT 'l'O A POnn' ON Tlm BAST LINB OF SAJ:I> NBl/ 4; Tl!J!!Na 
SOtrrll 9ll.l.S P'EE'l' TO ·~: ~tm PODrr OF BEGINNXNG, COON'l'Y OP ADAMS, STA'l'% OP 
COLORADO. 

PARCEL B: 

TnT PART OF Tlm NEl./4 OF SP:C'l':ION S, TOWSXZP 1 SOtiTll, RANGE 67 WEST OF TD 6'l'l! 
P.M. , OESClUBED AS BZGnm:tNG AT TB:Z ZAST QUAR'l'D. CORNER OP SAID SBC'l'J:ON 5 ; Tl'IENCZ 
NORTX ALONG 'l'XE l!!A.ST Lnm OP SAID NEl./4 A OIS'r.ANa OF l.47 . 85 FEET TO 'l'HP: 'l'lUJP: 
POINT OF BEGnm:t:NG; 'l"B:ENC3 WEST AT lUGK'l' ANGLES A DIS'r.ANC% OF 973.23 .FEET; '1'DNCE 
N04•08'W, 579 FEET ; TBkNC3 NJ2•02'B, SJ . OO FXB'l'; TBENCB N69•42'E, 57l. . 4 FEET; 
THENCE N81•22 1 E, 440 . 00 PDT TO A POnn' ON TD BAST LINK OF SAJ:D NBl./4 ; '1'lmNCB 
SOtrm 912 . 15 FD'l' TO 'l'D TRUE POnrl' OF BEGDmnlG, COON'l'Y OF ADAMS, STATE OF 
COLORADO. 
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EXIUBIT B-1 

District Boundary and Vicinity Map 
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EXIUBITB-2 

Zoning and Three Mile Radius Map 
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EXHIBIT B-3 

List of Services by Other Entities 

Although Thornton and Brighton provide street and safety protection improvements to their 

constituents, adequate street and safety protection improvements are not, or will not be, available 

to the property within the District by such entities within a reasonable time and on a comparable 

basis. 

Todd Creek Farms Metropolitan District No. 1 will provide water and, to the extent it 

provides sewer, will also provide sewer to the property within the District. The property within 

the District is wholly within the boundaries of West Adams Fire Protection District No. 1 ("West 

Adams"). West Adams has an arrangement with North Metro Fire Rescue Authority ("North 

Metro") whereby North Metro will provide fire protection and emergency response services to 

areas within the boundaries of West Adams (including Eagle Shadow) in exchange for a share of 

the property taxes collected by West Adams. 
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EXIDBITB-4 

Property Ownership 

Marcus A. and Sophia S. Degenhart (SeDer/Lender) 
6505 E. 160th Avenue 
Brighton, CO 80601 

Eagle Shadow LLC (Buyer/Owner) 
(address) 
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EXHIBIT C 
Description of Facilities and Costs 
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ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION IMPROVEMENTS FOR 
EAGLE SHADOW DISTRICT NO. 1 

DESCRIPTION 

East 168th Ave- Minor Arterial 
I ) Topsoil stripped, grading 
2) 9.0" full depth asphalt 
3} Survey & compaction testing 
4) Permit fees 
5) Engineering 
6) Supervision 
7) Landscaping 
TOTAL 

Holly Street- Section Line Arterial 
1) Topsoil stripped, grading 
2) 9.0" full depth asphalt 
3) Survey & compaction testing 
4) Permit fees 
5) Engineering 
6) Accel/Decel Lane 
7) Supervision 
8) Landscaping 
TOTAL 

QUANTITY 

17,200 SY@ $3.20 
17,200 SY@ $13.00 
LS 
LS 
LS 
LS 
LS 

14,200 SY@ $3.20 
14,200 SY@ $13.00 
LS 
LS 
LS 
LS 
LS 
LS 

AMOUNT 

$55,040.00 
$223,600.00 
$13,000.00 
$4,000.00 
$5,500.00 
$29,500.00 
$53,000.00 
$383,640.00 

$45,440.00 
$184,600.00 
$11,500.00 
$3,500.00 
$4,500.00 
$65,000.00 
$31,000.00 
$53,000.00 
$398,540.00 
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Quebec Street- Section Line Arterial 
1) Topsoil stripped, grading 14,200 SY@ $3.20 
2) 9.0" full depth asphalt 14,200 SY@ $13.00 
3) Survey & compaction testing LS 
4) Permit fees LS 
5) Engineering LS 
6) Accel/Decel Lane LS 
7) Supetvision LS 
8) Landscaping LS 
TOTAL 

Storm Drainage- Eagle Shadow phases 1 & 2 
I) C~ crossings 360 lots @ $700.00 
2) Reinforced box culverts 2@ $50,000.00 

Total 
5% Contingency 

TOTAL 

$45,440.00 
$184,600.00 
$11,500.00 
$3,500.00 
$4,500.00 
$65,000.00 
$35,000.00 
$68,000.00 
$413,540.00 

$252,000.00 
$100,000.00 

$1,547,720.00 
$77,400.00 

$1,625,120.00 
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0 
Financial Plan 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
a 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

J 

J 



0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

J 
J 
] 

Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District 

Forecasted Statement of Sources 
and Uses of Cash 

For the Years Ending 
December 31,2000 through 2020 
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Jv\s _..;;.J.;...w_. _Si_m_m_oos_&_Assoc __ ia_t_es...;.,_P_.c_. _________ C_e_rt_ifi_a_ed_Pu_b_lic_A_cc_o_u_n_ta_n_ts_. _ 

Petitioners 
Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District 

We have compiled the accompanying forecasted statements of sources and uses of cash of the Eagle Shadow 
Metropolitan District (Schedule l) and the related projected debt service schedule (Schedule 2) for the years 
ending December 31, 2000 through 2020, in accordance with standards established by the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants. 

A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of a forecast information that is the representation of 
management and does not include evaluation of the support for the assumptions underlying the forecast. We 
have not examined the forecast and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the 
accompanying statements or assumptions. Furthermore, there will usually be differences between the forecasted 
and actual results, because events and circumstances frequently do not occur as expected, and those differences 
may be material. We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the 
date of this report. 

May 11, 1999 

5670 Greenwood Plaza Blvd. 11505. Englewood. Colorado 80111·2409 
Telephone (303) 689-0833 Fax (303) 689-0834 



[ . 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

] 

J 

Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District 

Summary of Significant Assumptions and Accounting Policies 
December 31, 2000 through 2020 

The foregoing forecast presents, to the best of the Developer's knowledge and belief, the expected cash receipts 
and disbursements for the forecast period. Accordingly, the forecast reflects its judgement as of May 11, 1999. 
The assumptions disclosed herein are those that management believes are significant to the forecast. There will 
usually be differences between the forecasted and actual results, because events and circumstances frequently 
do not occur as expected, and those differences may be material. 

The purpose of this forecast is to show the amount of funds available for District operations and debt retirement 
(Schedules 1 and 2). 

Note 1: Ad Valorem Taxes 

The primary source of revenue for the District will be the collection of ad valorem taxes. Residential 
property is currently assessed at 9.74% of market values. Market values for residential homes are 
estimated to be $325,000 for 2000 and are assumed that to inflate at 2% per annum thereafter. No 
inflation is provided for existing homes. 

Property is assumed to be assessed annually as of January 1st. Homes are assumed to be assessed on 
the next January 1st. The forecast recognizes the related property taxes as revenue in the subsequent 
year. 

The County Treasurer currently charges a 1.5% fee for the collection of property taxes. These charges 
are reflected in the accompanying forecast as tax collection fees. 

The forecast assumes that Specific Ownership Taxes collected on motor vehicle registrations will be 6% 
of property taxes collected. 

The mill levy imposed by District is proposed to equal 8 mills for operating and a minimum of 27 mills 
for debt service. 

Note 2: Development Fees 

It is anticipated that the District will impose a development fee in the amount of $4,000 which will 
be collected on each detached single family equivalent upon the conveyance of a lot. $3,000 of 
each fee will be pledged for the payment of debt service. $1 ,000 of each fee will be allocated to 
the General Fund for operating and administrative expenses. The development fee will not 
increase over the life of the forecast. 

Note 3: Interest Income 

Interest income is assumed to be earned at 4% per annum. Interest income is based on the year's 
beginning cash balance and an estimate of the timing of the receipt of revenues and the outflow of 
disbursements during the course of the year. 
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Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District 

Summary of Significant Assumptions and Accounting Policies 
December 31,2000 through 2020 

Note 4: Bond Assumotions 

The financing plan estimates that $1,900,000 of Limited General Obligation Bonds will be issued in 
2000. The Series Bonds will be issued in denominations of $5,000 or multiples thereof and carry an 
interest coupon of 7.5% per annum. Of the total proceeds, $1,629,250 will be available for capital 
construction. Issuance costs for the Bonds are estimated to be $57,000 and $213,750 will be available 
for capitalized interest. Schedule 2 reflects a projected debt retirement schedule for the Bonds. The 
Bonds are secured by a limited mill levy and the development fees discussed in Note 2. 

Note 5: Operating and Administrative Expenses 

Administrative expenses for legal, accounting, audit, management and maintenance are forecasted to be 
$50,000 for 2000 and thereafter. No inflation is provided for operating and administrative expenses. 
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Beginning cash available 

Revenues: 
PJoperty taxes 
Specific ownenhip taxes 
Oevelopmetll fees 
Transfer lrom Capital Projects 
Interest income 

Expenditures: 
Delli service 
Issuance costs 
Tax collection fees 

Ending cash available 

MiU Levy _ _ __ _ -- -

ASsessed valuation lOOO's) 
B - -egtllfllllg ' 
Increase for l1t!W construction 

Ending 

c:l 

Total 

0 

2,923,910 
175,435 
555,000 
270,750 
100,469 

4,025,563 

3,752,125 
57,000 
43,859 

c:=J 

2000 

0 

0 
0 

225,000 
270,750 

495,750 

71,250 
57,000 

0 

3,852,984 --- 128.250 

) 72.~80 367,500 

27.000 

5,948 

.,~.948 0 

c:::::J c::::::J c::::J t::::] c::::J c::::J c::;::J c:::J CJ c::::J 

2001 

367,500 

0 
0 

225,000 

7,350 

232,350 

142,500 
0 
0 

142.~0 

hgle Shadow Metrepolitan District 
Sources and Uses of Cash 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2000 thruugh 2020 

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009_ 

Debt Service Fund 
457,350 440,983 391,139-- -37~.159 353,705 333;f4o--313!624 293,732 

64,101 
3,846 

105,000 
0 

9,147 

182,094 

129,485 
7,769 

0 
0 

8,820 

146,074 

197,500 193,375 
0 

962 ____ 1.~L _ 

198,46? __ ~~.17 

160,607 160.607 160.607 160,607 
9,636 9,636 9,636 9,636 

0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 

160.607 
9,836 

0 

160,607 
9,836 

0 

7!~3L _____ 7~~~~--7!!rr!_ __ 6,675 ~!Y1. ____ M75 

178,078 _ 177.707 177,318 ~76,919 176,518 176,118 

194,250 194,750 194,875 194,625 194,0001 193,000 
0 0 0 0 0 

2,409 ____ 2,409 --_ } .409 - _2.~0!!_ __ - 2,409 ____ 2,409 

196,659 __ !~!!~-9 - 197,284 196.409 _ _!_95~~ 

457,~~0 c=~~t983_ 3~}!l~i.~-=~~~n 159 3~~.708 ~~7_40 

197.034 

313,~~4 ~~!32 274!~! 

_P-991!_ __ 2!_.91!_~ --~~-----27-~QO _ _l?_:~ 27.0Q9 ___ 2_?.!oo~ __ 17.oo~ __ ll.:9!!0. 

0 

Assessed Valu1tion and ~bsorption 

0 

---- -~·~74 -
2.374 
2!4~2_-

=PL4=~-=-~ 4,796 

4,796 

1 !..1~3-
5.948 

0 

5,948 5,948 
r'-: -==-....:."="""=-. • .• · ..., 

5,948 5,948 
0 0 

5,948 
0 

5,948 
0 

5,94~~~~-~=~" s,948 --;_,.,.. _ _,M:4J. 

Ab~orptiiJI! residential units 185 75 75 35 -=9--~=- 0 0 - 0 0 0 0 
.' :.:.=..: • ---- .::·-- .- ~-.;.-=-=:.~:::-::-·----~ -

See Swnmary of Significant Ass~tions and Acc0111ting Policies 

:---1 

Schedule 1 
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Beginning cash available 

Revenues: 
Property tales 
Specific ownership taxes 
Development fees 
Interest income 

Expenditures: 
Tax c:olection lees 
Operating and Admin expenses 

Ending cash available 

Mill levy 

Beginning cash an~able 

Revenues: 
Bond p~oceeds 

Expendit .. es: 
T ransler to Debt Service 
CDI'Istruction 

Ending cash av~ilable 

Ellie Shllfaw Metrepolitan District 
Sources ••If Uan of Cnla 

For the Years Ended December 31,2000 through 2020 

Total 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 

General find 
o o 25,ooo - 5D,5Dii 56,358- - 47.57] __ 48,257 --~8.951 _ __!9.659 • .. 50,3~!_- sq~~-

866,344 0 18,993 38,366 47,587 47,587 47,587 47,587 47,587 47,587 
51,981 0 1,140 2,302 2,855 2,855 2,855 2,855 2,855 2.855 

185,000 75,000 75,000 35,000 
20,863 0 500 1,010 _ _J!1~L _ 952 _ __ 9~~- -~7_9___ 993 __ J.~8 --~·!22 

1,124.187 75,000 75,500 56,143 41,795 ~1!3~-- 51.408 _ __ ~~.422_ 5M_36 ___ 51,450 __ 5!._465 

12,995 0 285 575 714 714 714 714 714 714 
1,050,000 50.000 50.000 50,000 50.9QO_ _ ~0.000 ~.000 - - · 50,1100 ___ 50,001! - 50,000 __ 50.000 

1,062,995 50,000 50,001!_ ___ 50,285 ~0,515 ___ 5Q,714 ·-~~!714 _ _ 50,714_ 50,714 5~?_~4 50,714 

61,192 25,000 --~50,500~- 56,3~ _ ~7!~77__, ____ 48,2~L ~~~~! .4~~9 5DL38~1 ~-~J!L- 51,8§~ 

8.000 8.ooo 8.ooo 8!_got._ 8.~oo 8.ooo _ _ 8:.~o __ 8.ooo 8.ooo __ 8.~00 

0 
___ ----- -~~~~ Pr~!! Fund"="---:-:-:=--

0 4,130 4,130~ __ 4.!_39_ 4,130 4!130 ~l(J __ 4,130 --- 4.1~9- 4.1;ro 

1,900,000 1,900!000 _ _ _____ 0 -- •• 

1!900,000 - __ 1.900,000 0 0 ---=o ___ o~ ___ o -~.o._ ___ o -·-- o o 

270,750 270.750 
_1.~25, 120 11625.120 0 0 

1,895,870 1,895,870 0 0 --- - 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 

4,130 4,130 . 4,130 4,130==-_4,};w_,..=- 4,131} _ 4,J3D -=1.1~P, 4,130 - . 4.!~1t-~ 4,130 

See SUmmary ol Significant Ass~tions and Accounting Policies 

Schedule 1 
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BegiOOing cash available 

Revenues: 
Property tun 
Specific ownership tares 
Development fees 
Interest income 

Expenditures: 
Tax colection fees 
Operating and Admin expenm 

Ending cash available 

MiHlevy 

Betinnin!l cash available 

Revenues: 
Bond proceeds 

E1penditures: 
Transfer to Debt Service 
Constructicm 

Ending cash IVaiable _ _ 

c::J c:::J c:::J c::::J c:::J c:::::J r:::::l c::::J c:::J c::::J c:::J c:::J I I c:l c::J 

Eagle Sllldow Metre11olitan District 
Sources and Usn of Cash 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2000 through 2020 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 20l8 2019 2020 

Ge~eralfuad 
51.869 52.635 53,416 .54.2_13__ 55.02_& ·-- 55,856 ___ 56:702 ___ g5~-58,444 ___ __ ss.34i __ _ 60.258 

47,587 47,587 47,587 47,587 47,587 47,587 47,587 47,587 47,587 47,587 47.587 
2,855 2,855 2,855 2,855 2,855 2,855 2,855 2,855 2,855 2,855 2,855 

1,037 t,053 1,068 1,084 ___ 1~101__ _ 1.111 ___ _..],134 _1!1~!_ __ 1,1&9 ·-- q87 __ 1 !~05 

51,480 51,495 51,511 51,527 51.543 51,560 _ - -~1.577 51,594_- - _51,611 5j,6?9_ 51_~64~ 

714 714 714 714 714 714 714 714 714 714 714 
so.ooo so.ooo so.ooo so.ooo so.~o _ so.oOC!_ ____ ~.ooo SQ,ooo ____ so.ooo __ so!(!)O __ so,~ 

so.714 so.714 50.714 ?0,714 50,714 _ _ 50,714_ 50,71_4 _ ___j11?14 50,71_4 ___ 5!1714_ -~o.!.n~ 

52,635 53,416 54,213 _ .. 55,026 ~-5~8~-~ 56,70~o..=~ ~7.$4 ,...,..,... 58,44t_--~ ~9!14.l. .,.. .,..,__ 60~t_.61L192 

8.000 8.000 8.000 8.000 8.000 -~..:.00..0 __ • 8.000 _ 8_.~- _ 8.000 _ _ 8}!0Q~ 8.000 

4,130 4,130 4,1jo··- 4 .13'0-
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Beginning cash available 

Revenues: 
Propetty taxes 
Specific oMtership taxes 
Development lees 
T ransler from Capital Projects 
Interest income 

Expenditures: 
Debt service 
Issuance c:osts 
Ta1 collection fees 

Ending cash available 

Mill Levy 

Assessed nluatiGn iOOO'sl 
&eplning 
lnc:rease for new constructiOfl 

Ending 

IAbsorptiotl resic!_~t!_al units _ 

c::J c::J c::J 

I 
I 

I 
i 

I 

1 

I 

2010 

274,441 

160,607 
9,636 

5.489 

175,733 

196,625 

2.409 

199,034 

251,139 

27.000 

5,948 
0 

'"""' =~-5,948 I - =-
0 

2011 

251 ,139 

160,607 
9,638 

0 

5,023 

175,266 

194,500 

2.409 

198,909 

229,497 

27.000 

5,948 
0 

5,948 

See Summary of Significant Ass~tiGns and Ac:counting Policies 

c::::::J 

2012 

229.497 

160,607 
9,636 

0 

4,590 

174,834 

197,000 

2,409 

199,409 

204,921 

27.000 

5,948 
0 

c:::::l c:::J c::J a::::::ll c:::::J c:::1 c::::J c:J c:J 

Eagle Shldaw Metropolitan District 
Sa•rces 111d Uses ol Cash 

for the Years Ended Decemller 31, 2000 through 2020 

2013 2014 2015 2016 

DOt Service Faa• 

2017 2018 2019 2020 

204.92T--18~1D4 • 159.476- - _ 134,]50 --109,655 ----a4~9n-61,341 ____ 4.652 

160,607 
9,638 

4,098 

174,342 

193,750 

2,409 

198.159 

160,807 
9,636 

3,662 

173,906 

195,125 

2,4Q~ _ -

_!97,~~-

160,607 
9,636 

3,190 

160,607 
9,636 

__ 2,695 

173,433 - J 72,939 

195,750 195,625 

2.409 2.4~9 __ 

198{ 1~_J9~.~~ 

160,807 
9,638 

180,607 
9,636 

160,607 
9,636 

160,607 
9,636 

2,193 - _1,699 -- q~_7- 93 

172.437 171.942 

194,750 193,125 

2,409 - _2!~0~ 

197.J~L_195,534 

171,471 _170,337 

225,750 

2,4~~---2,409 

22_8. ~~--- 2.409 

1 .~3.~~ -- ) 59,478 1~t~9·-·= tD9,655 ~ .......... ~~3t~-"- 81,34 ~,.-=,4,65~" 172,5~Q 

27.000 21.000 27.Q®_ 27.000 ___ 2?:!!00 27.000 __ 27.000 27.000 

__ As~e~_!l Valuation and ~sorp~on _ 

5,948 
0 

5,948 5,948 5,948 5,948 5,948 5,948 5,948 

5,948- -"~---.,_-!!t.~48_=.... 5,948~: 5,~8=-~. 5,948,....o=.:-:~948~ 5,948 : .... 5,~8 - 5,948 
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0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
a 
0 
0 
0 

I 
I 

I 
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I 

I 
I 

i 
I 
I 

I 

I 

1999 
2000 
2000 
2001 
2001 1 
2002 
2002! 
2003, 
2003! 
2004J 
20041 
2005 
2005 
2006 
2006 
2007j 
2007: 
20081 
2008! 
20091 
2009 
20101 
2010! 
2011 . 
2011 1 

2012 
2012 
2013, 
2013 
2014. 
2014 
2015 
2015 
2016 
2016 
2017 
2017 
2018 
2018 
2019 

Principal 

55,000 

55,000 

60,000 

65,000 

70,0001 

75,000! 

I 
80,000 

85,000 
I 

95,000! 

100,000: 
I 
I 

110,000' 
I 

I 
115,000 

125,000 

135,000 
I 

145,000. 

155,000 

165,000 

210,000 2019 _ __;;;..;.,;;.:.;~ 

1,900,000 

Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District 
Debt Service Schedule -Issue #1 

for the Years ended 2000 through 2019 

Coupon 

I 
7.50%1 

:::1 
7.50%1 

7.50% . 

I 
7.50%1 

I 
7.50%1 

7.50% 

7.50% 
! 

7.50%i 
I 

7.50% 

7.50% 

7.50% 

7.50% 

7.50% 

7.50% 

7.50% 

7.50% 

Interest 

71,250 
71,250 
71,250 
71,2501 
71,250 
69,188 
69,188 
67,125 
67,125 
64,875 
64,875 
62,438 
62,438 
59,813 
59,813· 
57,000 
57,000 
54,000j 
54,0001 
50,813 
50,813 
47,250 
47,2501 

I 43,5001 
43,500 
39,375 
39,375, 
35,063 
35,063 
30,375 
30,375 
25,313 
25.313 
19,875 
19,875 
14,063 
14,063 
7,875 
7,875 

1,852.125 

Total 
Payment 

0 
71,250 
71,250 
71,250 
71,250 

126,250 
69,188 

124,188 
67,125 

127,125 
64,875 

129,875 
62,438 

132,438 
59,813 

134,813 
57,000 

137,000 
54,000 

139,000 
50,813 

145,813 
47,250! 

147,2501 
43.5001 

153,5001 
39,375j 

154,375; 
35,0631 

160,063, 
30,375: 

165,375i 
I 

25,313: 
170,313: 

19,875; 
174,875 

14,063! 
179,0631 

I 
7,875; 

217,875! 

See Summary of Significant Assumptions and Accounting Policies 

Annual 
Pavment 

71,250 

142,500 

197,5001 

193,375 

194,250 

194,750 

194,875 

194,625 

194,000 

193,000 

196,625 

I 194,5001 

197,000 

193,750 

195,1251 

195,7501 

195,625l 
I 

I 
194,7501 

I 
193,1251 

225,7501 

3.752,125 

Balance 

I 
1,900,0001 
1,900,000 
1,900,000 
1,900,000 
1,900,000 
1,845,000 
1,845,000 
1,790,000! 
1,790,000i 
1.730,000 
1,730,000 
1,665,000 
1,665,000 
1,595,000 
1,595,0001 

1,520,000 
1,520,000 
1,440,000 
1,440,000 
1,355,000 
1,355,000 
1,260,000 
1,260,0001 
1,160,0001 
1,160,000 
1,050,000 
1,050,000 

935,0001 
935,000 
810,000i 
810,000: 
675,000! 
675,000, 
530,000i 
530,0001 
375,oool 
375,0001 
210,000. 

I 

210,000J 

oi 

Schedule 2 
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E1111 Shadow Metropolitan District 
Analysis for Detennination of Subsequent Debt per Acre of Included Property 

Inclusion Formula 

The financing plan demonstrates the abWty of the District to support $1,900,000 on 289 acres. This equates to $6,574 
per acre ($1,900,000 divided by 289). Therefore for each acre included, the District will support an additional $6,574 of 
debt given the assumptions below. 

Assumptions: 

Acres 
Included 

1.00 
10.00 
38.03 

100.00 
200.00 

Debt 
Supported 

6,574 
65,740 

250,009 
657,400 

1,314,800 

Number of homes per acre in the included property is assumed to be .64 {289 acres divided by 185 homes) 
The market value of an included home is assumed to be $325,000 
Residential property is assumed to be assessed at 9.74% of market values 
The mill levy for debt service is assumed to be 27 mills 
A development fee of $3,000 per residential unit will be available for debt service 
The coupon rate on the new bond issue will not exceed 7.5% 
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EXIDBITE-2 

Mill Levies of Overlapping Entities 
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EXHIBITE-2 

Overlappin~ milllevv for the proposed Eiiile Shadow Metropolitan District No. 1 

School District No. 27 
Adams County Library 
West Adams Fire Protection District 
Urban Drainage & Flood Control 
Urban Drainage South Platte 
Adams County 
Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District No. 1 

TOTAL 

W:\Ciients\406 Equinox GrouplfagleShadow\Eagle Shadow overlapping milllevy.wpd 

51.806 
1.335 
8.600 
0.676 
0.080 

26.168 
35.000 

123.665 
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EXIUBIT E-3 

List of Indebtedness of Overlapping Entities 
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EXHIBITE·3 

OUTSTANDING GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT FOR CITIES, 
COUNTIES, AND SPECIAL DISTRICT WITHIN WHICH THE 

PROPOSE DISTRICT WILL BE INCLUDED 

Adams County 
School District 27J 
West Adams FPD 

$0.00 
$1,558,525.00 
$1,510,000.00. 

*(only $770,855 overlaps Adams County) 

W:\CIIents\406 Equinox Group\obligations debts for Cities, counties, etc.wpd 
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EXIUBITE-4 

List of Mill Levies for Districts in Region 
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EXHIBIIE-4 

Overhmping mill levies for Districts supplying similar 
services for a similar market located in the region 

Wright Farms Metropolitan District 

School District No. 12 
Adams County Library 
Adams County 
Wright Farms Metropolitan District 
Urban Drainage & Flood Control 
Urban Drainage South Platte 
West Adams Fire District No. 1 

TOTAL 

Hi-Land Acres Water and Sanitation Pistrict 
(Tax Area Code 295) 

School District No. 27 
Adams County 
Brighton Fire Protection District 
Hi-Land Acres Water and Sanitation District 
Urban Drainage and Flood Control 
Urban Drainage and Flood Control South Platte 
RID 
Adams County Library 

TOTAL 

68.939 
1.335 

26.168 
23.000 

.676 

.080 
8.600 

128.798 

51 .806 
26.168 

5.005 
5.221 

.676 
.080 
.000 

1.335 

90.291 
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Bromley Park Metropolitan District No. 1 
(Tax Area Code 304) 

(Mill levy depends on location of parcel. There are four separate tax areas withing Bromley Park 
Metropolitan District No. 1) 

City of Brighton 
School District No. 27 
Adams County Library 
Brighton Fire Protection District No. 6 
Central Colorado Water Conservancy District 
Central Colorado Ground Water District 
Bromley Park Metropolitan No. 1 
Urban Drainage 
Urban Drainage- South Platte 
RTD 
Adams County 

TOTAL 

Hunters Glen 
Schedule# 157326303056 
13015 Emerson 

Adams County 
Adams County Schools 
Adams County Library 
Northern Metro 
City ofThomton 
Urban Drainage 
Urban Drainage South Platte 

TOTAL 

Todd Creek Farms 
School District No. 27 
Adams County Library 
Brighton Fire Protection District 
Urban Drainage and Flood Control 
Urban Drainage South Platte 
Adams County 
Todd Creek Farms Metropolitan District No.2 

TOTAL 

8.861 
51.806 

1.335 
5.005 
1.144 
0.000 

38.000 
.676 
.080 
.000 

26.168 

133.075 

26.168 
68.939 

1.335 
25.000 
10.210 

.676 

.080 

132.408 

51 .806 
1.335 
5.005 
0.676 
0.080 

26.168 
30.000 

115.070 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO SERVICE PLAN 

EAGLE SHADOW 
METROPOLITAN DISTRICT No.1 

ADAMS COUNTY, COLORADO 

Prepared by 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
EAGLE SHADOW METROPOLITAN DISTRICT No.1 

MURRAY DAHL KUECHENMEISTER 
&RENAUDLLP 
240115th Street 

Denver, Colorado 

As submitted to the County of Adams 
January 27, 2006 



LIST OF EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT A- Service Plan 

EXHIBIT B- Map of District 

EXHIBIT C - District Legal Description 

EXHIBIT E-1 (to Service Plan)- Financing Plan 

ESMD014J 



PART! 
Background, Basis for First Amendment 

Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District No. 1 (the "District") was organized in 1999 pursuant 

to a service plan approved by the Board of County Commissioners of Adams County, which 

granted the District legal authorization to furnish street, safety protection, park and recreation, 

transportation and other services and facilities permitted by state law for metropolitan districts (the 

"Service Plan"). A copy of the text of the Service Plan is attached as Exhibit A. 

The area of the District originally consisted of approximately 289 acres located in the North 

one-half of Section 5, Township 1 South, Range 67 West of the 6th P.M. in Adams County. The 

maximum amount of general obligation debt the District would issue was initially set at $1,900,000 

based upon the 289 acres then within its legal boundaries. However, it was contemplated from the 

outset that the District would include additional areas within its legal boundaries, and the Service 

Plan provided for the general obligation debt limitation to be increased as additional areas were 

included into the District. The analysis attached to the original Financial Plan demonstrated that for 

every 38.03 acres of property subsequently included into the District, it would have the ability to 

support the payment of an additional $250,000 in general obligation bonds (the "Inclusion 

Formula"). Anticipating significant inclusions, the Service Plan permitted the District to vote 

authorization for up to $30,000,000 in general obligation bonds, with its ability to utilize this 

authority for future debt limited by the Inclusion Formula. See, Service Plan pp. 15-16. 

Since the District was organized, its area has increased to approximately 1,377 acres, and its 

assessed valuation has grown to $12,727,330 in 2005. Its current boundaries are shown on the Map 

attached hereto as Exhibit B. A legal description of the area of the District as of the date of this 

First Amendment to Service plan is attached as Exhibit C. Based upon the additional included area, 

ESMD014.3 



the District is presently authorized by the Inclusion Formula to issue up to approximately 

$9,052,000 in general obligation debt. The total general obligation debt presently issued by the 

District and outstanding is $8,900,000, as represented by the $8,900,000 Eagle Shadow 

Metropolitan District No. I, Adams County, Colorado, General Obligation Bonds (Limited Tax 

Convertible to Unlimited Tax), Series 2005A (the "Series 2005A Bonds"), which were issued on 

February 16,2005. Approximately $6,113,750 of the Series 2005A Bond proceeds were used to 

refund bonds previously issued by the District. Approximately $2,250,000 1 of the Series 2005A 

Bonds, and approximately $63,000 remaining in the District's Capital Projects Fund (total: 

approximately $2,313,000) are presently available for expenditure on capital improvements 

which the District desires to construct in 2006 and subsequent years to support the proposed 

absorptions of development as projected in the Financial Plan. 

The costs of those improvements are currently estimated at approximately $4,455,000. In 

order to raise the balance of those funds, pay issuance costs and fund necessary reserves, the 

District estimates that it must issue additional general obligation bonds in the amount of 

approximately $2,505,000. In order to accommodate that and an additional safety margin, the 

District requires Service Plan authority for an aggregate general obligation debt limit of 

$14,000,000, including the Series 2005A Bonds, outstanding at any single time. The primary 

purpose of this First Amendment to Service Plan is to increase the limitation on aggregate 

outstanding general obligation debt to that amount, and to provide that that limit may be 

increased in the reasonable discretion of the Board of County Commissioners without such 

action being deemed a material modification of the Service Plan. 

$815,000 of this is subject to escrow pending approval of plats for the Bartley and Shook areas of the District. 
See, Note 4, Financial Plan (Exhibit E-1). 
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Additionally, in order to avail the District of the flexibility granted to issuers of public 

securities by the Supplemental Public Securities Act, §§11-57-201 et seq., C.R.S., enacted by the 

Colorado General Assembly in 2000, this First Amendment to Service Plan also increases the 

20-year maximum maturity limitation on general obligation bonds issued by the District to thirty 

(30) years. 

This First Amendment to Service Plan does NOT affect the Mill Levy Cap established in the 

Service Plan, authorize any additional powers or services to the District, alter any design or 

construction standards required or imposed by the Service Plan, or effect any other material 

modification of the Service Plan. It is limited expressly to the following: 

(i) Increase the limit on general obligation debt to $14,000,000, and 

(ii) Change the limitation on maximum maturity of District general obligation debt from 
20 years to thirty (30 years. 

PART II 
Text of Amendments 

The section of the Service Plan entitled FINANCIAL PLAN/PROPOSED 

INDEBTEDNESS, beginning at the top of page 15 of the Service Plan, is amended to read in its 

entirety as set forth below, and Exhibit E-1 attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference is 

substituted for Exhibit E~ 1 attached to the Service Plan as originally approved: 

FINANCIAL PLAN/PROPOSED INDEBTEDNESS 

The Financial Plan attached as Exhibit E-1 shows how the Improvements are to be 

financed including the estimated costs of engineering services, legal services, administrative 

services, proposed indebtedness and estimated proposed maximum interest rates and discounts, 

and other major expenses related to the design, construction and installation of the 
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Improvements, and the operation of the District. It demonstrates the issuance of the debt and the 

anticipated repayment based on the projected development in the District as presently 

constituted. The Financial Plan also demonstrates that, at various projected levels of 

development, the District has the ability to finance the Improvements, and will be capable of 

discharging the proposed indebtedness on a reasonable basis. As property in the District is 

developed, the District's ability to repay additional general obligation bonds will increase, based 

on projections for the included area. 

A. General. In order to support absorptions of development as projected in 

the Financial Plan, the District may in 2006 and subsequent years design, construct and install 

certain street, safety protection, and park and recreation facilities (the "Improvements").2 The 

Improvements will be primarily financed by the issuance of general obligation bonds, secured by 

the ad valorem taxing authority of the District with limitations as discussed below. Pursuant to 

authority granted by the Service Plan as originally approved, the District has issued $8,900,000 

in general obligation debt. In order to fund the Improvements, pay issuance costs and fund 

necessary reserves, the District estimates that it needs to issue additional general obligation debt 

in the approximate amount of$2,505,000.3 

Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Board of County 

Commissioners, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned, the 

District's general obligation debt shall be subject to an aggregate limit offourteen million dollars 

($14,000,000) outstanding at any single time. This limitation is established based upon current 

financial market conditions, current projections of needed improvements, and current 

construction costs generally. District requests for increase in the general obligation debt 

2 

3 

Streets, sidewalks, curbs, gutters and associated drainage improvements, traffic safety protection facilities and 
devices such as signals, signage, striping, area identification, driver information, directional signs, and street 
lighting, landscaping and streetscape features, monwnentation and entryway features 

The Financial Plan refers to this additional debt as the "Series 2006 Bonds." 
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limitation based upon changes in these and other relevant and appropriate factors shall be given 

favorable consideration. No such change approved in writing by the Board of County 

Commissioners shall be deemed a material modification of the Service Plan. Nothing in this 

paragraph shall limit the authority of the District to refund or refinance its general obligation 

debt at a lower rate of interest. 

The maximum maturity limitation on general obligation bonds issued by 

the District shall not exceed thirty (30) years. 

B. Mill Levv. The District will have a mill levy assessed on all taxable 

property in the District as a primary source of revenue for repayment of debt service and for 

operations and maintenance. Although the mill levy may vary depending upon the elected 

board's decision to fund the projects contemplated in this Service Plan, it is estimated that a mill 

levy of forty-three (43) mills will produce revenue sufficient to support the operations and 

maintenance and debt retirement throughout the bond repayment period. In addition, the District 

may capitalize interest to permit payment of interest during the time lapse between development 

of taxable properties and the"collection of tax levies therefrom. Interest income through the 

reinvestment of construction funds, capitalized interest and annual tax receipts will provide 

additional funds. These revenue sources should be sufficient to retire the proposed indebtedness 

if growth occurs as projected; otherwise, increases in the mill levy and/or the imposition of rates, 

tolls, fees and charges may be necessary. 

For purposes of this Section, "Debt to Assessed Valuation" shall mean the 

ratio of (i) the District's total outstanding unlimited general obligation debt, including the bonds 

proposed to be issued, to (ii) the District's assessed valuation, and "Mill Levy Cap" shall mean 

that the mill levy pledged for repayment of the bonds will not exceed 50 mills (adjusted to take 

into account legislative or constitutionally imposed adjustments in assessed values or the method 

of their calculation). In the event that the Debt to Assessed Valuation is 50% or greater, general 
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obligation bonds may only be issued if the District's obligation to impose a mill levy sufficient to 

pay the debt is subject to the Mill Levy Cap. In the event that the Debt to Assessed Valuation is 

less than 50%, bonds may be issued without I imitation as to the District's obligation to impose a 

mill levy sufficient to pay the debt. 

The Financial Plan reflects the amount of bonds sold and to be sold to 

finance the completion, construction, acquisition and/or installation of the Improvements, 

including all costs and expenses related to the anticipated bond issuances. The amount of bonds 

sold will be based upon the final engineering estimates and/or actual construction contracts. 

Costs of issuance, including legal fees, and funding of reserves, are to be paid from the proceeds 

of each bond issue. The interest rates as set forth in the Financial Plan are based upon the advice 

of Piper Jaffray & Co., and upon the District's actual experience with the Series 2005A Bonds. 

The Financial Plan projects the anticipated flow of funds and is based 

upon estimates of construction and project needs for bond proceeds to finance the Improvements. 

The District's engineer has evaluated the timing and cost estimate of the Improvements which are 

necessary to support the proposed absorptions of development as projected in the Financial Plan 

and has. concurred with the assumptions. The Financial Plan sets forth the most reasonable 

estimate of growth within the District and allows the Board of Directors a measure of flexibility 

such that the District need not incur debt in excess of what it needs to meet a growing 

population's demands for facilities and services. 

C. Projections of Assessed Valuation. For purposes of developing the 

Financial Plan set forth herein, it was assumed that residential units within the District would be 

developed and assessed at various percentages depending upon the year of construction. It is also 

assumed that the assessed valuation will be realized one year after construction and that tax 

collections will be realized two years after initial construction. 

D. Operations. Annual administrative, operational and maintenance expenses 
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are estimated as shown in the Financial Plan. In years 2006 through 2035, the Financial Plan 

projects that a levy of five (5) mills would be sufficient to meet these expenses, together with 

collection of a portion of development fees. If necessary, however, the District reserves the right 

to supplement these revenues with additional revenue sources as permitted by law. The District 

shall not use bond proceeds for the payment of operations and maintenance expenses. However, 

the District shall have the authority to repay the Developer for amounts advanced for operations 

and maintenance expenses and to seek electorate approval for such obligation to be deemed a 

multi-year fiscal obligation, provided such obligation shall be subordinate to the District's 

general obligation bonds issued for capital improvements. 

The Mill Levy Cap provided herein for repayment of the bonds does not 

apply to the District's ability to increase its mill levy as necessary for provision of operation and 

maintenance services to its taxpayers and service users. However, there are statutory and 

constitutional limits on the District's ability to increase its mill levy for provision of operation 

and maintenance services without an election. The maintenance of landscape areas, streetscape 

areas and park and recreation areas will need to be sustained by the property owners within the 

boundaries of the District or by the same property owners through a land owners association or 

another special district. The property owners will determine whether it is in their best interests to 

maintain such improvements through the District, a land owners association or another special 

district in the future. 

The County shall not be held liable for any of the District's obligations as set forth in this 

Service Plan. 
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PART III 
Conclusion 

Insofar as relevant to the modifications to the Service Plan proposed hereby, as required by 

Section 32-1-203(2), C.R.S., this first Amendment to Service Plap establishes that: 

a. The District is capable of providing economical and sufficient service to the 
area within its boundaries; 

b. The area included in the District has and will have the financial ability to 
discharge the proposed indebtedness on a reasonable basis; 

c. The ongoing existence of the District is in the best interests of the area 
proposed to be served. 

Therefore, it is requested that the Board of County Commissioners adopt a resolution 

approving this First Amendment to Service Plan as submitted. 
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SERVICE PLAN FOR THE PROPOSED 

EAGLE SHADOW 

METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 

INTRODUCTION 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Special District Control Act, Section 32-1-201, 

et ~-. Colorado Revised Statutes, this Service Plan consists of a financial analysis and an 

engineering plan showing how the proposed facilities and services of the proposed Eagle Shadow 

Metropolitan District No. 1 ("District") will be provided and frnanced. The following items are 

included in this Service Plan: 

1. A description of the proposed services; 

2. A financial plan showing how the proposed services are to be financed, 

including the proposed operating revenue derived from property taxes for the first budget year of 

the District; 

3. A preliminary engineering or architectural survey showing how the proposed 

services are to be provided; 

1 



4. A map of the proposed District boundaries and an estimate of the population 

and valuation for assessment of the proposed District; 

5. . A general description of the facilities to be constructed and the standards of 

such construction, including a statement of how the facility and service standards of the proposed 

District are compatible with facility and service standards of Adams County, Colorado ("County") 

and of any municipalities and special districts which are interested parties pursuant to Section 32-

1-204(1), Colorado Revised Statutes; 

_j 
6. A general description of the estimated cost of acquiring land, engineering 

services, legal services, administrative services, initial proposed indebtedness and estimated 

i proposed maximum interest rates and discounts, and other major expenses related to the 
i 

... ! 
organization and initial operation of the proposed District; and 

7. A description of any arrangement or proposed agreement with any political 
__ i 

subdivision for the performance of any services between the proposed District and such other 

i __ J political' subdivision, and if applicable a form of the agreement is attached hereto. 

! 
.. .1 

... J 
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PURPOSE OF THE DISTRICT 

Services will be provided to the approximately 289-acre Eagle Shadow development 

(the "Development") by a metropolitan district that will be created pursuant to Section 32-1-101, 

et ~ .• C.R.S. The district will be named Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District No. 1 ("the 

District"). The District will provide the following: (1) street improvements, (2) parks and 
' i 

.! recreation, (3) safety protection, (4) transportation, (5) mosquito control, (6) water service to 

! 
' 

property within its boundaries, (7) sanitary sewer services to property within its boundaries and 
I 

i 
any other services that may be provided by a metropolitan district within and without the District's 

I 

"' boundaries as will be determined by the District's Board of Directors to be in the best interest of 

I the District. __ ; 

The major purpose of the District is to finance and construct public improvements 

and to dedicate, when appropriate, such public improvements to the County or to such other entity 

as appropriate for the use and benefit ofthe District's taxpayers. 
_j 

J The District is expected to finance the construction of improvements and provide 

such other services as are described in this Service Plan. 

I 
__j 
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PROPOSED DISTRICT BOUNDARIES/MAPS 

The area to be initially served by the proposed District is located in the County 

generally north of State Highway 7, south of !68th A venue, east of Holly Street and west of 

Quebec Street. The total area to be initially included in the proposed District is approximately 289 

acres (the "Initial District Boundaries"). A legal description of the Initial District Boundaries is 

attached hereto as Exhibit A. A map of the Initial District Boundaries and vicinity of the District 

is attached as Exhibit B-1. See Exhibits B-2 through B-4 for a map showing the zoning; the 

location of other special districts, municipalities and counties within a three mile radius of the 

proposed District; a list of services provided by the other entities and a list of property owners. 

It is anticipated that as property is acquired and/or processed for development, it :will be included 

in the boundaries of the proposed District. 

PROPOSED LAND USE/POPULATION PROJECTIONS 

At present, the Development is zoned A -1 by the County, which allows for a 

maximum of 185 single-family residential uses. The Development is now vacant and is not 

presently served with the facilities and/ or services proposed to be provided by the proposed 

Distriet, nor does the County nor any other special district have any plans to provide such services 

within a ·reasonable time and on a comparable basis. It is anticipated that the property within the 

proposed District would be utilized for residential uses. At an estimated three (3) persons per 

residence, this would result in a peak daytime population estimate of 555 persons based upon 
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current zoning for the Development. In order to facilitate the development of the properties within 

the District as planned, organized provision of facilities and services proposed to be provided by 

the proposed District will be necessary. 

It is anticipated that the District's boundaries will change from time to time as it 

undergoes inclusions and exclusions pursuant to parts 4 and 5 of Article 1, Title 32, C.R.S. In 

the event the District proposes to expand its boundaries or service area, it shall provide forty-five 

(45) days prior written notice of such expansion to the Board of County Commissioners. In the 

event the County provides no written response to the forty-five (45) day notice, the District shall 

proceed with the expansion. In the event the County objects in writing within the forty-five (45) 

day period, the District shall proceed only with the written consent of the County. The form of 

written consent shall be determined by the Board of County Commissioners. 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED SERVICES 

The following paragraphs provide a description of the proposed services to be 

provided by the District. 

A. Types of Improvements. 

The District plans to provide for the design, acquisition, construction, installation, 

and financing of certain street, safety protection, park and recreation, transportation, mosquito 

5 



control, water and sanitation improvements and services within and without the boundaries of the 

District. This Service Plan describes with specificity those improvements anticipated for 

construction within the Initial District Boundaries ("Initial Improvements"). The Initial 

Improvements will benefit the Development. A general description of the Initial Improvements 

follows this paragraph, and Exhibit C lists the Initial Improvements planned to be provided 

relating to each type, the phasing of construction of such facilities, and the costs in current dollars. 

An explanation of the methods, basis, and/or assumptions used to prepare the above· estimates is 

also included in Exhibit C. The Initial Improvements generally depicted and described in Exhibit 

D have been presented for illustration only, and the exact design, subphasing of construction and 

location of the Initial Improvements will be determined at the time of platting and such decisions 

shall not be considered to be a material modification of the Service Plan . 

. _] 
1. Streets. The proposed District shall have the power to provide for the 

acquisition, construction, completion, installation and/or operation and maintenance of street 

improvements, including curbs, gutters, culverts, and other drainage facilities, sidewalks, bike 

paths and pedestrian ways, bridges, overpasses, interchanges, median islands, paving, lighting, 

grading, landscaping and irrigation, together with all necessary, incidental, and appurtenant 

facilities, land and easements, together with extensions of and improvements to said facilities 

within and without the boundaries of the proposed District. · It is anticipated that, following 

acceptance by the County, the County will maintain the streets within the District. The District 

may supplement the County's maintenance as it deems necessary or desirable to benefit its 
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taxpayers and service users. Following acceptance, the street improvements will be owned, 

operated and maintained by the County. 

All streetscaping improvements will be maintained by the District, or an association 

of landowners within the Development, or both. 

2. Safetv Protection. The proposed District shall have the power to provide 

for the acquisition, construction, completion, installation and/or operation and maintenance of 

facilities and/or services for a system of traffic and .safety controls and devices on streets and 

highways, including signalization, signing and striping, together with all necessary, incidental, and 

appurtenant facilities, land and easements, together with extensions of and improvements to said 

facilities within and without the boundaries of the proposed District. Following acceptance, all 

safety protection improvements will be transferred to the County for ownership and maintenance. 

3. Park and Recreation. The proposed District shall have the power to provide 

for the design, acquisition, construction, completion, installation, operation and maintenance of 

parks and recreational facilities and programs including, but not limited to, parks, bike paths and 

pedestrian ways, open space, landscaping, cultural activities, community recreational centers, 

water bodies, irrigation facilities, and other active and passive recreational facilities and programs, . 

and all necessary, incidental and appurtenant facilities, land and easements, together with 

extensions of and improvements to said facilities within and without the boundaries of the District. 
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All such parks and recreational facilities will be owned and maintained by the District or an 

association of landowners within the Property. 

4. ·Transportation. The proposed District shall have the power for the design, 

acquisition, construction, completion, installation, operation and maintenance of a system to 

transport the public by bus, rail, or any other means of conveyance, or combination thereof, or 

pursuant to contract, including park and ride facilities and parking lots, and all necessary, 

incidental and appurtenant facilities, land and easements, together with all necessary extensions 

of and improvements to said facilities of systems within and without the boundaries of the District. 

5. Mosquito Control. The proposed District shall have the power to provide 

for the eradication and control of mosquitoes, including but not limited to elimination or treatment 

of breeding grounds and purchase, lease, contracting or other use of equipment or supplies for 

mosquito control. 

6. Water. The proposed District shall have the power to provide for the 

design, acquisition, construction, completion, installation, operation and maintenance of a 

complete potable and nonpotable water supply, purification, storage, transmission and distribution 

system, which may include, but shall not be limited to, wells, water pumps, purification plants, 

pump stations, transmission lines, distribution mains and laterals, fire hydrants, irrigation 

facilities, storage facilities, land and easements, and all necessary, incidental, and appurtenant 

facilities, together with extensions of and improvements to said system within and without the 
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boundaries of the proposed District. The water supply system will supply the water needs for the 

entire Development and future inclusion areas. 

It is anticipated that water will be provided to the development by Todd Creek 

Farms Metropolitan District No. 1 pursuant to an intergovernmental agreement. 

7. Sanitation. The proposed District shall have the power to provide for the 

design, acquisition, construction, completion, installation, operation and maintenance of a 

complete sanitary sewage collection, treatment, transmission, and disposal system which may 

include, but shall not be limited to, treatment plants, collection mains and laterals, lift. stations, 

transmission lines, sludge handling and disposal facilities, and/or storm sewer, flood and surface 

drainage facilities and systems, including detention/retention ponds and associated irrigation 

facilities, and all necessary, incidental, and appurtenant facilities, land and easements, together 

with extensions of and improvements to said system within and without the boundaries of the 

proposed District. The sanitary sewer system will be designed to adequately serve the entire 

Development area and the Future Service Areas. 

It is anticipated that sanitary sewer service will be provided by Todd Creek Farms 

Metropolitan District No. 1 pursuant to an intergovernmental agreement. 

8. Fire Protection. The Property and the Development are wholly within the 

boundaries of the West Adams Fire Protection District No. 1 ("West Adams") and through an 
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arrangement with West Adams, the North Metro Fire Rescue Authority will provide fire and 

emergency services to the Property. The District shall not have any powers to provide fire 

protection or emergency response services. The Development will obtain its fire protection and 

emergency response services from the North Metro Fire Rescue Authority and/or West Adams 

Fire Protection District No. 1. 

9. Other Powers. 

In addition to the enumerated powers, the Board of Directors of the District shall 

also have the following authority: 

(A) Plan Amendments. To amend the Service Plan as needed, subject 

to the appropriate statutory procedures, and to utilize, as appropriate, the forty-five (45) day notice 

provision set forth in Section 32-1-207, C.R.S. 

(B) Phasing, Deferral. Without amending this Service Plan, to defer, 

forego, reschedule, or restructure the financing and construction of certain improvements and 

facilities, to better accommodate the pace of growth, resource availability, and potential inclusions 

of property within the District. 

(C) Additional Services. Except as specifically provided. herein,· to 

provide such additional services and exercise such powers as are expressly or impliedly granted 

by Colorado law. 

10 



B. Standards of Constniction/Statement of Compatibility. 

1. All streets and safety protection facilities to be dedicated to the County will 

be constructed in accordance with the standards and specifications of the County. 

2. All storm sewers and facilities will be constructed in accordance with the 

standards and specifications of the County, the Urban Drainage and Flood Control District and 

other local jurisdictions, as appropriate. 

3. All parks and recreational facilities and/or services will be constructed in 

accordance with engineering and design requirements appropriate for the surrounding terrain, and 

shall not be incompatible with standards of the County, or other local public entities, as 

appropriate. 

4. All transportation facilities and/or services will be provided in accordance 

the standards and specifications of the County, if any, or other local public entities, as appropriate~ 

5. All mosquito eradication and control facilities will be designed, constructed, 

maintained and operated in accordance with the standards and specifications of the Colorado 

Department of Health, the County, if any, or other jurisdictions, as appropriate. 

11 
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6. All water system improvements will be designed, constructed and 

maintained in accordance with the standards of the Colorado Department of Health, Todd Creek 

Farms Metropolitan District No. 1 and any other jurisdiction, as appropriate. 

7. The sanitary sewer treatment and/or collection facilities will be designed, 

constructed and maintained in accordance with the standards of Colorado Department of Health, 

Todd Creek Farms Metropolitan District No. 1 and any other applicable local, state or federal 

rules and regulations . 

Based on an analysis of jurisdictions which are interested parties in the Service Plan 

proceedings as defined in the Colorado Revised Statutes, the proposed District's Engineers have 

determined that the standards by which the facilities are to be constructed are compatible with the 

facilities .of such other jurisdictions . 

C. Facilities to be Constructed and/or Acquired . 

The District proposes to provide and/or acquire the Initial Improvements and the 

improvements necessary for future included properties. A general description and preliminary 

engineering survey, as appropriate, ofthe Initial Improvements are shown on.Exhibit D. 

12 
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ASSESSED VALUATION 

The property within the Initial District Boundaries has an assessed valuation as of 

January 1998 of approximately Twenty One Thousand Seven Hundred Dollars ($21, 700). The 

projected build-out for the Initial District Boundaries is set forth in the Financial Plan set forth in 

Exhibit E-1 through E-4. At build-out, the assessed valuation of the property within the Initial 

District Boundaries is expected to be Five Million Nine Hundred Forty-Eight Thousand Dollars 

($5,948,000). 

ESTIMATED COSTS OF FACILITIES 

The estimated costs of the Initial Improvements are set forth in Exhibit C attached 

hereto. Exhibit D includes a facility map and preliminary drawings for the Initial Improvements. 

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE/ESTIMATED COSTS 

Subject to the applicable warranty, the proposed District intends to dedicate certain 

facilities constructed or acquired, to the appropriate jurisdiction for operations and maintenance . 

Facilities completed by the District or others within its boundaries may be owned, operated and/or 

maintained by the proposed District, pursuant to approvals being obtained from the appropriate 

jurisdiction(s). Estimated costs for operation and maintenance functions are shown on the 

Financial Plan. The District may impose a system of fees, rates, tolls, penalties or charges in 

connection with its provision of services. The estimated revenues from such fees, rates, tolls, 

13 



penalties, or charges are reflected in the Financial Plan, below. The earliest the District will be 

organized will be December, 1999, therefore, the Financial Plan assumes no operating expenses 

or debt will be incurred until 2000. The Financial Plan assumes the District will incur 

approximately Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) per year in operating and administrative 

expenses. 

It is anticipated that the proposed District and Todd Creek Farms Metropolitan 

District No. 1 will enter into a Regional Facilities Agreement which will set forth the rights and 

responsibilities of each District regarding the financing, operation, construction, ownership and 

·; 
maintenance of facilities needed to serve the property within the boundaries of the. proposed 

District. The proposed District may also enter into other intergovernmental agreements ("IGA") 

as necessary to provide services to and for the property within the proposed District. To the 

.. } 
extent necessary to comply with statutory and/or Constitutional requirements for approval of debt 

or long-term financial qbligations, the approval of the District's electorate will be obtained on the 

terms of any IGA. The District shall have the authority to obtain the required voter authorization 

in order to exercise its rights and obligations under such agreements and to enter into the I GAs 

. J 
without further approval of the County . 

. ' 
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FINANCIAL PLAN/PROPOSED INDEBTEDNESS 

The Financial Plan shows how the Initial· Improvements are to be financed 

including the estimated costs of engineering services, legal services, administrative services, 

proposed indebtedness and estimated proposed maximum interest rates and discounts, and other 

major expenses related to the organization and operation of the proposed District. It demonstrates 

the issuance of the debt and the anticipated repayment based on the projected development in the 

Initial District Boundaries. The Financial Plan also demonstrates that, at various projected levels 

of development, the proposed District has the ability to finance the Initial Improvements, and will 

be capable of discharging the proposed indebtedness on a reasonable basis. As property is 

included in the boundaries of the District, the District's needs for additional moneys to fund 

necessary facilities will increase as will its ability to repay additional general obligation bonds 

based on projections for the included area. 

A. General. The provision of facilities by the proposed District will be 

primarily financed by the issuance of general obligation bonds, secured by the ad valorem taxing 

authority of the proposed District with limitations as discussed below. It is anticipated· that 

property will be included within the District in phases as the land is acquired for development. 

The District, upon organization, will contain approximately 289 acres within its boundaries and 

will initially issue a maximum of One Million Nine Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,900,000) in 

general obligation bonds ("Initial Debt"). The Financial Plan demonstrates the issuance of the 

Initial Debt and the anticipated repayment based on the projected development in the Initial 

District Boundaries. As demonstrated by the Analysis attached to the Financial Plan, for every 

15 



38.03 acres of property subsequently included within tbe District's boundaries, the District will 

have the ability to support the payment of an additional Two Hundred and Fifty Thousand D<;>llars 

($250,000) in general obligation bonds ("Inclusion Formula"). It is anticipated that the first bond 

issue will occur in 2000. The District shall have the authority to obtain voter authority for the 

incurrence of the Initial Debt and future debt in the total amount of Thirty Million Dollars 

($30,000,000) with its ability to utilize this authority for future debt limited to the following: 

for every 38.03 acres of property subsequently included within the District's boundaries, the 

District will have the authority and ability to support the payment of an additional Two Hundred 

and Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000) in general obligation bonds. 

Pursuant to Section 32-1-1101, C.R.S., bonds would mature not more than twenty 

years from the date of issuance, with the first maturity being not later than tbree years from the 

date of their issuance. The proposed maximum_ voted interest rate is estimated at eighteen percent 

(18%) and the maximum underwriting discount at five percent (5%). The exact interest rates and 

discounts will be determined at the time the bonds are sold by the proposed District, and will 

reflect market conditions at the time of sale. The proposed District may also issue notes, 

certificates, debentures or other evidences of indebtedness long-term contracts, subject to the 

limitations set forth herein . 
... 1 

The amount to be voted exceeds the amou.nt of bonds anticipated to be sold as 

shown in the Financial Plan, to allow forthe inclusion of additional properties within the District's 

boundaries, unforeseen contingencies and increases in construction costs due to inflation, and to 
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cover all issuance costs, including capitalized interest, reserve funds, discounts, legal fees and 

other incidental costs of issuance. 

B. Mill Levy. The proposed District will have a mill levy assessed on all taxable 

property in the proposed District as a primary source of revenue for repayment of debt service and 

for operations and maintenance. Although the mill levy may vary depending upon the elected 

board's decision to fund the projects contemplated in this Service Plan, it is estimated that a mill 

levy of thirty-five (35) mills will produce revenue sufficient to support the operations and 

maintenance and debt retirement throughout the bond repayment period. In addition, the proposed 

District may capitalize interest to permit payment of interest during the time lapse between 

development of taxable properties and the collection of tax levies therefrom. Interest income 

through the reinvestment of construction funds, capitalized interest and annual tax receipts will 

provide additional funds. These revenue sources should be sufficient to retire the proposed 

indebtedness if growth occurs as projected; otherwise, increases in the mill levy and/or the 

imposition of rates, tolls, fees and charges may be necessary. 

For purposes of this Section "Debt to Assessed Valuation" shall mean the ratio of 

(i) the District's total outstanding unlimited general obligation debt, including the bonds proposed 

to be issued, to (ii) the District's assessed valuation and "Mill Levy Cap" shall mean that the mill 

levy pledged for repayment of the bonds will not exceed 50 mills (adjusted to take into account 

legislative or constitutionally imposed adjustments in assessed values or the method of their 

calculation). In the event that the Debt to Assessed Valuation is 50% or greater, general 

obligation bonds may only be issued if the District's obligation to impose a mill levy sufficient to 
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pay the debt is subject to the Mill Levy Cap. In the event that the Debt to Assessed Valuation is 

less than 50%, bonds may be issued without limitation as to the District's obligation to impose a 

mill levy sufficient to pay the debt. 

The Financial Plan reflects the amount of bonds to be sold to finance the 

completion, construction, acquisition and/or installation of the Initial Improvements, including all 

costs and expenses related to the anticipated bond issuances. The amount of bonds sold will be 

based upon the final engineering estimates and/or actual construction contracts. Organizational 

costs, including legal fees, and capitalized engineering costs, are to be paid from the proceeds of 

the each bond issue. The interest rates as set forth in the Financial Plan are based upon the advice 

of Kirkpatrick Pettis • 

The Financial Plan projects the anticipated flow of funds and is based upon estimates of 

construction and project needs for bond proceeds to finance the proposed District's Initial 

Improvements. The District's engineer has evaluated the timing and cost estimate of the Initial 

Improvements which are necessary to support the proposed absorptions of development as 

projected in the Financial Plan and has concurred with the assumptions. The Financial Plan sets 

forth the most reasonable estimate of growth within the Initial District Boundaries and allows the 

Board of Directors a measure of flexibility such that the proposed District need not incur debt in 

excess of what it needs to meet a growing population's demands for facilities and services. 

C. Projections of Assessed Valuation. For purposes of developing the Financial 

Plan set forth herein, it was assumed that residential units within the proposed District would be 
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developed and assessed at various percentages depending upon the year of construction. It is also 

assumed that the assessed valuation will be realized one year after construction and that tax 

collections will be realized two years after initial construction. 

D. Operations. Annual administrative, operational and maintenance expenses 

are estimated as shown in the Financial Plan. In years 2000 through 2020, the Financial Plan 

projects that a levy of eight (8) mills would be sufficient to meet these expenses, together with 

collection of a portion of development fees. If necessary, however, the proposed District reserves 

the right to supplement these revenues with additional revenue sources as permitted by law. The 

District shall not use bond proceeds for the payment of operations and maintenance expenses. 

However, the District shall have the authority to repay the Developer for amounts advanced for 

operations and maintenance expenses and to seek electorate approval for such obligation to be 

deemed a multi-year fiscal obligation, provided such obligation shall be subordinate to the 

District's general obligation bonds issued for capital improvements. 

The mill levy cap proposed herein for repayment of the bonds does not apply to the 

District's ability to increase its mill levy as necessary for provision of operation and maintenance 

services to its taxpayers and service users. However, there are statutory and constitutional limits 

on the District's ability to increase its mill levy for provision of operation and maintenance 

services without an election. The maintenance of landscape areas, streetscape areas and park and 

recreation areas will need to be sustained by the property owners within the boundaries of the 

District or by the same property owners through a land owners association. Through the election 

19 



_j 

I 
.I 

.I 
! 

,J 

' i 
J 

I 

I 

' I 
I 

·-1 
.. _j 

process, it will be determined whether the property owners would prefer to maintain such 

improvements through the District or a land owners association in the future. 

The County shall not be held liable for any of the District's obligations as set forth in this 

Service Plan. 

CONCLUSION 

It is submitted that this Service Plan for the proposed Eagle Shadow Metropolitan 

District No. I establishes that: 

(a) There is sufficient existing and projected need for organized service 

in the area to be serviced by the proposed District; 

(b) The existing service in the area to be served by the proposed District 

is inadequate for present and proJected needs; 

(c) The proposed District is capable of providing economical and 

sufficient service to the area within its proposed boundaries; 

(d) The area to be included in the proposed District does have, and will 

have, the financial ability to discharge the proposed indebtedness on a reasonable basis; 
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(e) Adequate service is not, and will not be, available to the area through 

the County or other existing municipal or quasi-municipal corporations, including existing special 

districts, within a reasonable time and on a comparable basis; 

(f) The facility and service standards of the proposed District are 

compatible with the facility and service stimdards of the County within which the proposed special 

district is to be located and each municipality which is an interested party under Section 32-1-

204(1), Colorado Revised Statutes; 

(g) The proposal is in substantial compliance with a master plan adopted 

pursuant. to Section 30-28-106, C.R.S.; and 

(h) The proposal will be in compliance with the regional clean water plan 

in accordance with state requirements; and 

(i) The creation of the proposed District is in the best interests of the 

area proposed to be served. 

W:\Ciients\406 Equinox Group\EagleShadow\service plan.wpd 
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DESCRIPTION OF BOUNDARIES 1 

EAGLE SHADOW METROPOLITAN DISTRICT No. I 

All parcels are located in Township I South, Range 67 West of the 6"' P.M., Adams 
County, Colorado. 

Section 2: 

Parcels included by Order of Inclusion recorded November 15,2002 as Reception No. Cl053863, 
Adams County Records: 

The Southeast \4 of Section 2, Township I South, Range 67 West of the 6"' P.M., EXCEPT those 
portions conveyed in deeds recorded: 

and 

A. Aprill4, 1956, in Book 604 at Page 109; 
B. July 22, 1963 in Book 1082 at Page 383; 
C. April 19, 1971 in Book 1686 at Page 53; 
D. July 12, 1973inBook 1875atPages909and910; 
E. July 29, 1999 in Book5630 at Page 380; 

and EXCEPT that part conveyed to the State Department of Highways in Deed recorded 
June 19, 1967 in Book 1370 at Page 40; and except any part lying within the Plat of Brines 
Tract recorded June 24, 1968 in File 12, Map 101, County of Adams, State of Colorado. 

The Southwest \4 of Section 2, Township I South, Range 67 West of the 6"' P.M., except that part 
conveyed to the State Department of Highways in Deed recorded June 222 [sic], 1967 in Book 
1370 at Page 380, County of Adams, State of Colorado. 

Section 3: 

Parcels included by Order of Inclusion recorded November 15, 2002 as Reception No. C1053863, 
Adams County Records: 

The Southwest \4 of the Southeast \4 and the West Y, of the Southeast \4 of the Southeast \4 of 
Section 3, Township 1 South, Range 67 West of the 6th P.M., County o[ Adams, State of 
Colorado, excepting therefrom that portion deeded to the Department of Highways, State of 
Colorado by Deed recorded October 3, 1966 in Book 1323 at Page 91 as Reception No. 796191. 

and 

Beginning at the Southwest corner of Section 3, thence East 95 118 feet, thence North 630 feet; 
-thence West 95 118 feet; thence South 630 feet to the Point of Beginning, except the South 30 feet 
and except the West 30 feet and except Highway 3/1/67 10/58A 16070##Yosemite Street [sic] .. 

1 This Description of Boundaries-is not a legal description prepared by a ~urveyor licensed in the State of 
Colorado. It is an abstract of descriptions of property contained in court orders organizing the district, and 
including property into and excluding property from it. 
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Section 4: 

Parcel included in District by Order of Inclusion recorded May 31, 2000 in book 6143 at Page 
0517 (Reception No. C0675503), Adams County Records: 

The SEl/4 of Section 4, Township I South, Range 67 West of the 6th P.M., County of Adams, 
State of Colorado, EXCEPT the following Tracts and Parcels: 

A Parcel conveyed to the County of Adams, State of Colorado, for road purposes, m 
Instrument Recorded March 6, 1923 in Book 101 at Page 527; 

B. Parcel conveyed to the Department of Highways, State of Colorado in Instrument 
Recorded September 2, 1966 in Book 1317 at Page I 71; 

C. Parcel conveyed to Sam A. Amato and Charlotte W. Amato in Deed Recorded February 
16, 1972 in Book 1781 at Page 224; 

D. Parcel conveyed to Noel Hubert and Paula Hubert in Deed Recorded February 4, 1954 in · 
Book 486 at Page 578; 

E. "Plot 11-112", as identified and described in Instrument Recorded September 18, 1954 in 
Book 219 at Page 13, and as otherwise appearing in various Instruments of Record; 

F. Parcel conveyed to Melvin F. Porterfield and Patricia Ann Porterfield in Deed Recorded 
March 13, 1969 in Book 1501 at Page 318; 

G. That part of the Southeast One-Quarter of Section 4, Township 1 South, Range 67 West 
of the 6th P.M., County of Adams, State of Colorado, described as: 

Beginning at the Southeast Comer of said Section 4; thence N00°06'54"E along the East 
Line of said Southeast One-Quarter, a distance of 110.00 Feet to the NORTH Right-of­
Way Line of Colorado State Highway 7; thence S89°00'27"W a distance of20.00 Feet to 
the West Right-of-Way Line of Yosemite Street as Recorded in Book 486 at Page 578, 
the True Point of Beginning; thence S89°00'27"W along said North Right-of-Way Line, 
and Parallel with the South Line of said Southeast One-Quarter, a distance of 329.06 
Feet; thence N00°06'54"E and Parallel with the East Line of said Southeast One-Quarter a 
distance of273.11 Feet; thence N89°00'27"E a distance of329.06 Feet to the West Right­
of-Way Line of Yosemite Street; thence S00°06'54"E along said Right-of-Way line a 
distance of273.11 Feet to the True Point of Beginning. 

Section 5: 

Parcels included by Order and Decree dated January 3, 2000 and recorded January 13, 2000, in 
Book 6009 at Page 880 (Reception No. C0631757), Adams County Records: 

The North one-half (N 112) of Section 5, Township 1 South, Range 67 West of the 6th P.M., 
except the East 30 Feet thereof for County Road, and except the rights-of-way for Holly Street 
and East !68th Avenue, and, EXCEPTING therefrom the following described Parcel: 

2 



That part of the NEl/4 of Section 5, Township 1 South, Range 67 West of the 6th P.M., 
described as beginning at the East Quarter Comer of said Section 5; thence North along the 
East line of said NEl/4 a distance of 147.85 feet to the True Point of Beginning; thence West 
at right angles a distance of 973.23 Feet; Thence N04°08'W, 579 Feet; thence N32°02'E, 
83.00 Feet; thence N69°42'E, 571.4 Feet; thence N81 °22'E, 440.00 Feet to a point on the East 
Line of said NEl/4; thence South 912.15 Feet to the True Point of Beginning, County of 
Adams, State of Colorado. 

That part of the NEl/4 of Section 5, Township 1 South, Range 67 West of the 6th P.M., Described 
as beginning at the East Quarter Comer of said Section 5; thence North along the East Line of 
said NEl/4 a distance of 147.85 Feet to the True Point of Beginning; thence West at Right Angles 
a distance of 973.23 Feet; thence N04°08'W, 579 Feet; thence N32°02'E, 83.00 Feet; thence 
N69°42'E, 571.4 Feet; thence N81°22'E, 440.00 Feet to a point on the East Line of said NEl/4; 
thence South 912.15 Feet to the True Point of Beginning, County of Adams, State of Colorado. 

EXCEPT parcel excluded from District by Order for Exclusion dated April 6, 2001 and recorded 
April20, 2001 as Reception No. C0789495 Adams County Records: 

and 

Outlot A, Eagle Shadow Subdivision, according to the Plat thereof recorded January 19, 
2000, in File 18, Map 164, County of Adams, State of Colorado. 

. Parcels included by Order of Inclusion recorded November 15, 2002 as Rece;ption No. Cl053863, 
Adams County Records: 

Section 5, Township 1, Range 67 Description: A tract lying South and East of centerline signal 
DT SD CII described as beginning at the Southeast corner of Section 5, thence West 437/08 feet 
to the True Point of Beginning; thence North 04°28'E 51120 feet/ thence North 10°31 'E 92/90 feet; 
thence North 06°37'E 157/02 feet; thence North 25°49'E 342/44 feet; thence North 25°49'E 342/44 
feet; thence North 39°43'E 71/32 feet; thence N4T05'E 278/81 feet to a point along the East line 
851117 feet from the Southeast comer 5/880 [sic]. 

Section 5, Township 1, Range 67 Description: West Y, Southeast \4 together with East Y, East Y, 
Southwest \<! and that portion of resvervoir in West Y, East Y, described as beginning at the 
Southwest comer E Y, East Y, Southwest 4; thence Westerly 181 feet; thence Northerly 748 feet; 
thence Easterly 181 feet; thence Southerly 748 feet to the Point of Beginning, except parcel 
29/895 A. 

Section 5, Township 1, Range 67 Description: West Y, Southwest \4 and West Y, East Y, 
Southwest \4 except a parcel in the Southeast corner and except Road and except ESC Highway 
111158A [sic]. 

Section 10: 

Parcel included by Order ofinclusion recorded November 15, 2002 as Reception No. Cl053863, 
Adams County Records: 

NE \4 of the NE \<!of Section 10, Township 1 South, Range 67 West of the 6th P.M., except the 
East 20 feet thereof, and except the West 20 feet of the East 40 feet conveyed in instrument 
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recorded April 8, 1999 in Book 5709 at Page 907, as corrected by instrument recorded May 4, 
1999 in Book 5740 at Page 248, County of Adams, State of Colorado. 

Section 16: 

Parcel included by Order of Inclusion recorded May 31, 2000 in Book 6143 at Page 0519 
(Reception No. C0675504), Adams County Records: 

That part of the Southeast One-Quarter of Section 16, Township I South, Range 67 West of the 
6cl'P.M., County of Adams, State of Colorado, described as follows: 

Beginning at the Southeast Comer of said Southeast One-Quarter; thence S89'48'25"W along the 
South Line of said Southeast One-Quarter, a distance of 910.90 Feet to the proposed Northerly 
Right-of-Way Line of proposed E-470 (Parcel TX-217 of E-470 Public Highway Authority; 
thence N64'33'06"W along said proposed Northerly Right-of-Way Line, a distance of 1,238.76 
Feet to the beginning of a Tangent Curve to the Left, the Radius of said Curve is 7,789.44 Feet, 
the Central Angle of said Curve is 04'53'35", the Chord of said Curve Bears N67'00'53"W, 
669.54 Feet; thence along the Arc of said Curve and along said proposed Northerly Right-of-Way 
Line, a distance of 669.75 Feet to the West Line of said Southeast One-Quarter; thence 
N00'01'46"W along said West Line, a distance of 1,778.57 Feet to the South Right-of-Way Line 
of Ehler Parkway (East !48th Avenue) as described in Book 4781 at Page 177, Adams County 
Records, being 40.00 Feet, as measured along said West Line, from the Northwest Comer of said 
Southeast One-Quarter; thence N89'32'43"E, along said South Right-of-Way Line, a distance of 
1,479.26 Feet, being 1,170.00 Feet West of; as measured along said South Right-of-Way Line, 
from the East Line of said Southeast One-Quarter; thence S00'03'13"W Parallel with said East 
Line, a distance of 360.00 Feet; thence N89'32'43"E Parallel wit)l the North Line of said 
Southeast One-Quarter, a distance of 450.00 Feet; thence N32'58'08"E, a distance of 44.80 Feet 
to the begimring of a Tangent Curve to the Left, the Radius of said Curve is 101.36 Feet, the 
Central Angle of said Curve is 61'14'45", the Chord of said Curve bears N02'20'45"E, 103.26 
Feet; thence along the Arc of said Curve, a distance of 108.35 Feet to the beginning of a Tangent 
Curve to the right, the Radius of said Curve is 237.72 Feet, the Central Angle of said Curve is 
28'19'50", the Chord of said Curve bears N14'06'42"W, 116.35 Feet; thence along the Arc of said 
Curve, a distance of 117.55 Feet to the end of said Curve;· thence N00003'13"E Tangent with the 
last described course and Parallel with the East Line of said Southeast One-Quarter, a distance of 
106.40 Feet to the South Right-of-Way Line of said Ehler Parkway (East !48th Avenue); thence 
N89'32'43"E along said South Right-of-Way Line, a distance of680.00 Feet to the West 
Right-of-Way Line of Yosemite Street as described in said Book 4781 at Page 177, being 40.00 
Feet West of the East Line of said Southeast One-Quarter; thence S00'03'13"W along said West 
Right-of-Way Line, a distance of 491.09 Feet to a point on a Non-Tangent Curve to the Left, the 
Radius ofsaid Curve is 374.80 Feet, the Central Angle of said Curve is 11'25'19", the <;::hord of 
said Curve Bears N32'28'40"E, 74.59 Feet; thence along the Arc of said Curve, a distance of 
74.72 Feet to the East Line of said Southeast One-Quarter; Thence S00'03'13"W along said East 
Line, a distance of2,161.79 Feet to the Point of Beginning. 

Section 22: 

Parcel included by Order ofinclusion recorded November 15, 2002 as Reception No. C1053863, 
Adams County Records: 

The NE ~of Section 22, Township 1 South, Range 67 West of the 6th P.M., County of Adams, 
State of Colorado. 
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EXCEPT parcel excluded by Amended Order to RatifY Exclusion of Property dated February 24, 
2004 and Recorded July 6, 2004 as Reception No. 20040706000580950 Adams County Records. 

That Part of the East one-half of Section 22, Township 1 South, Range 67 West of the 6" 
P.M., County of Adams, State of Colorado, Described as follows: 

Beginning at the Center of said Section 22; thence N00°02'23"W along the West line NEl/4 
said Section 22 a distance of 780.71 feet to a point on the South line of the E-4 70 easement; 
thence S75°09'02"E along said South line a distance of 307.17 feet; thence S81 °44'07"E 
along said South line a distance of 907.53 feet to the beginning of a curve to the right, the 
radius of said curve is 2999.04 feet, the delta of said curve is 17°11'40", the chord of said 
curve bears S73°08'17"E 896.63 feet; thence along the arc of said curve and along said South 
line a distance of900.01 feet to a point; thence S24.18'49"Ealong said South line a distance 
of 54.92 feet; thence Sl4°53'07"W along said South line a distance of 354.83 feet to a point 
on the East line of the Wl/2 NEl/4 SEl/4 said Section 22; thence S00°05'43"E along said 
East line a distance of296. 74 feet to a point on the westerly right-of-way line of the 
proposed E-470; thence Sl4°32'41 "W along said right-of-way line a distance of 223.41 feet; 
thence S69°27'59"E along said right-of-way line a distance of 20.18 feet to a point on the 
West right-of-way line of Riverdale Road; thence S20°l9'36"W along said right-of-way line 
a distance of 50.60 feet to the beginning of a curve to the right, the radius of said curve is 
3270.00 feet, the delta of said curve is.05°l6'11 ",the chord of said curve bears S22°57'41 "W 
300.65 feet; thence along the arc of said curve and along said right-of-way line a distance of 
300.75 feet to the end of said curve; thence S25°35'47"W along said right-of-way line a 
distance of 423.69 feet to a point on the South line NE 114 SEl/4 said Section 22; thence 
S89°27'43"W along said South line a distance of 304.92 feet to the Southeast comer NWl/4 
SEl/4 said Section 22; thence S89°27'50"W along the South line said NWl/4 SEl/4 a 
distance of 1323.14 feet to the Southwest comer of said NWl/4 SEl/4; thence N00°03'43"W 
along the West line said NWl/4 SEl/4 a distance of 1323.23 feet to the point of beginning. 
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Financing Plan 



Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District No. 1 
Forecasted Statement of Sources 

and Uses of Cash 

For the Years Ending 
December 31, 2005 through 2035 



J. W. Simmons & Associates, P. C. 

Board of Directors 
Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District No. 1 
Adams County, Colorado 

Certified Public Accountants 

We have compiled the accompanying forecasted statements of sources and uses of cash of the Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District 
No. 1 (Exhibit 11. the related projected debt service schedules (Exhibits II through IV) and the analysis of absorption, development fees 
and assessed values (Exhibit V) for the years ending December 31, 2005 through 2035, in accordance with standards established 
by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of a forecast information that is the representation of management and does not 
include evaluation of the support for the assumptions underlying the forecast. We have not examined the forecast and, accordingly, 
do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the accompanying statements or assumptions. Furthermore, there will 
usually be differences between the forecasted and actual results, because events and circumstances frequently do not occur as 
expected, and those differences may be material. We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances 
occurring after the date of this report. 

PRELIMINARY DRAFT .... SUBJECT TO CHANGE 

January 26, 2006 

9155 East Nichols Avenue., Suite 330, Centennial, Colorado 80112-3443 
Telephone (303) 689-0833 Fax (303) 689-0834 



Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District No. 1 

Summary of Significant Assumptions and Accounting Policies 
December 31. 2005 through 2035 

The accompanying forecast presents, to the best of the District's knowledge and belief, the expected cash receipts 
and disbursements for the forecast period. Accordingly, the forecast reflects its judgement as of January 26, 2006. 
The assumptions disclosed herein are those that management believes are significant to the forecast. There will 
usually be differences between the forecasted and actual results, because events and circumstances frequently do not 
occur as expected, and those differences may be material. 

The purpose of this forecast is to show the amount of funds available for the future construction of infrastructure 
within the District by the issuance of general obligation refunding bonds and the anticipated funds available for 
repayment of the bonds. 

Note 1: Ad Valorem Taxes 

The primary source of revenue for the District will be the collection of ad valorem taxes. Residential property 
is forecasted to be assessed at 7.96% of market values. Market values for 951 residential homes are 
estimated to range from value from $252,500 to $388,850 as of 2004. Market values are forecasted to 
inflate at 1% per year. All property is assumed· to inflate at 2% biennially thereafter. Exhibit IV details the 
forecasted absorption, market values and related assessed values. 

Property is assumed to be assessed annually as of January 1st. Property included in this forecast is assumed 
to be assessed on the January 1" subsequent to completion. The forecast recognizes the related property 
taxes as revenue in the subsequent year. 

The County Treasurer currently charges a 1.5% fee for the collection of property taxes. These charges are 
reflected in the accompanying forecast as tax collection fees. 

The forecasi assumes that Specific Ownership Taxes collected on motor vehicle registrations will be 7% of 
property taxes collected. 

The mill levy imposed by the District is proposed to equa15.000 mills for operations and 38.000 mills for debt 
service for a total mill levy of 43.000 mills. 

Note 2: Interest Income 

Interest income is assumed to be earned at 2.0% per annum. Interest income is based on the year's beginning 
cash balance and an estimate of the timing of the receipt of revenues and the outflow of disbursements during 
the course of the year. 



Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District No. 1 

Summary of Significant Assumptions and Accounting Policies 
December 31, 2005 through 2035 

Note 3: Bond Assumptions 

The District issued general obligation refunding bonds totaling $8,900,000 on February 16, 2005 to current 
refund the Series 2001 Bonds and provide additional funds for capital improvements. The bonds have a 
maturity of 30 years from the date of issuance. The Series 2005A bonds are carry a coupon rate of 7.25% 
through November 15, 2035. Exhibit II reflects the proposed repayment schedule of these bonds. The Series 
2005A bonds are not subject to optional redemption until November 15, 2014 except for $815,000 as 
discussed in Note 4. The District anticipates the issuance of $2,505,000 of general obligation improvement 
bonds on July 1, 2006 to pay for additional improvements described in Note 4. The Series 2006 bonds are 
also assumed to carry a coupon rate of 7.25% and will have a maturity of 20 years from the date of issuance. 
The Series 2005A and 2006 bonds are anticipated to be secured by a limited mill levy not to exceed 50.000 
mills, all specific ownership taxes collected by the District, $3,000 of each development fee collected and a 
total reserve fund of $1,020,151. Until the outstanding debt to assessed valuation ratio is less than 50%, 
the mill levy imposed for the Series 2005 Bonds may not be less than 38.000 mills. The minimum and 
maximum mill levies may be adjusted for changes in the methodology of assessing property. Exhibits II and 
Ill detail the principal and interest requirements of the Series 2005A and proposed Series 2006 bonds. 

The following is a summary of the sources and uses of the Series 2005A and the proposed Series 2006 
bonds: 

Sources: 

Bond Proceeds 
Existing Reserve Fund 

Total Sources 

Uses: 
Current refund Series 2001 Bonds 
Issuance costs 
Reserve Fund 
Capital improvements 
Capital improvements 

Subject to escrow (Note 4) 

Total Uses 

Series 2005A 

$8,900,000 
500,000 

$9,400.000 

$6,113,750 
26~,358 

762,463 
1,439,429 

815.000 

$9,400,000 

Series 2006 

$2,505,000 

$2,505,000 

100,200 
257,688 

2, 147,112 

$2,505,000 



Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District No. 1 

Summary of Significant Assumptions and Accounting Policies 
December 31, 2005 through 2035 

NoteA: Construction Costs 

Construction costs are forecasted to total $4,456,499 and are forecasted to be paid in 2006. A portion of 
the construction costs totaling $815,000 (from the Series·2005A bonds) have been placed in escrow until 
final plat approval for the Bartley and Shook parcels into not less than 204 single family units. As of January 
26, 2006 the final plats had not been approved. It is anticipated that the final plat will be approved prior to 
the issuance of the Series 2006 bonds. And the escrow funds will be available for improvements. 

Note 5: Operating and Administrative Expenses 

Administrative expenses for legal, accounting, audit, management and insurance are forecasted at $100,000 
for 2006. Inflation is provided for operating and administrative expenses at 2% per year commencing in 2007. 

Note 6: Development Fees 

The forecast assumes that a development fee in the amount of $4,000 will be collected on each equivalent 
residential unit upon the sale of a lot to a builder. $3,000 of each development fee is pledged for the 
repayment of the Series 2005A and the proposed Series 2006 Bonds. $1,000 of each development fee is 
forecasted to be used for general operations. As of December 31, 2005, the District has collected 76 
development fees for which a home has not started. It is forecasted that these "credits" will be utilized at 
the rate of 20 per yeat commencing in 2006 until all the "credits" are used. From 2010 it is forecasted that 
development fees will coincide with the construction of a home. Development fees are not anticipated to be 
collected on the lots know as Baseline lakes. 



Eagle Shadow Metropolitan Disttil:t No 1 
Foraeastad Sourcas and Uses of Cast 

Far the Years Ended December 31. 2000 through 203! 
A:tual Actual '"'" Actual Actual Attual 

Iolal 200ll lllJ!1 mz - lllJ!1 - - ZQ2Z - - 2rull llil 2QJ.Z 

General Fund 
Begirding cash available 0 0 0 78,108 67,749 8,247 25,908 12.766 27,544 43,323 81,021 130,549 178,046 198,997 

Revenues: 
Property taxes 3,996,870 5,850 12.673 25,331 38,502 49,988 63,637 68,602 77.577 90,397 65,036 96.471 108,440 
Specific ownership taxes 12,015 3,340 1,699 2.856 4,120 
Development less 758,000 0 59,0£10 97,000 61,0£10 70,000 82.000 82.000 73,000 65,000 66,000 71,000 35,000 17,000 
Developer adyance 98,880 4.S.007 50,853 
lnttrest income 52,902 19 3,359 652 143 401 !58 " 201 325 '" '" 1,335 1.492 

4,916,647 46,026 122.202 112,024 89,930 113,029 132,144 125,732 141,808 142,902 157,005 157,015 132,807 126,932 

Expenditures: 
Tax collection fm 59,987 " '" "' 584 152 955 1,029 1,164 1,356 1,276 1,447 1.627 
Repay developer advanCi!s 9B,860 0 0 50,653 0 13,007 10,000 23,000 
Operating and Admin expenses 4,593,541 46,026 46,009 120,196 98,191 94.784 131,527 100,0011 102.000 104,040 106,121 108,243 110,408 112.616 

4,750,368 4&.026 46,094 120,383 149,432 95,368 145,286 110,955 126,029 105,204 107,477 109,519 111,855 114,243 

Ending cash B'laUable 166,260 0 76,108 67,749 8,247 25,908 12,766 27,544 43,323 8\,021 130,549 178,046 188,997 211.687 

MiR levy 8.000 8.000 8.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.1JOO 4.001J 4.0£10 4.000 

Capital Projetts fund 
Beginning cash aYBilable 0 0 0 2.235,646 2,713,795 970,343 793,165 2,313,904 4,518 4,518 4,518 4,518 4,518 4,518 

Revenues: 
Bofld proceeds existing 3,00£1,000 3,000.000 
Bond proceeds Series 2005 A 14,900,000 6,000,000 8,900,000 
Bond proceeds Series 2006 2,5{15,000 0 2.505,000 
Developer advances 33,379 33,379 
Interest income 194,152 "' 6D,361 34,652 13,242 10,450 75,082 

20,632,531 ' 33,744 3,060,361 6,034,652 13,242 10.450 8,975,082 2,505,000 0 0 

Expenditures: 
Transfer to Debt Service 352,770 352,770 
Payoff developer 33,379 33,379 
Transfer to Debt Service 10,506,749 3,869,348 6,379.713 257,688 
Issuance costs 765,161 197,080 192.760 1,962 3,801 269,358 100,200 
Construction 8,969,955 33,744 274,865 1,481,016 1,754,732 183,827 805,272 4,456.499 ' 

20,628,014 33.744 824,715 5,556,503 1.756,694 187,628 7.454,343 4.814,387 0 ' 0 0 0 0 

Ending mh ava~able 4,518 0 2,235,646 2.713,795 970,343 793,165 2.313,904 4,518 4,518 4,518 4,518 4.518 4,518 4,518 

Exhibit I 
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Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District No 1 
Forecasted Sources and Uses of Cast 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2000 throuuh 203! 

221:1 lOll 2ruJi 2Q1i 2l!11 2Q1i Mil 2Jl22 2021 lJ!lz 2m - = 
Debt Service Fund 

Beginning tash available 1,774,730 1,604,419 1,503,746 1.434,625 1.378,055 1,327,862 1,294,323 1.260,180 1.241,811 1,232,006 1,247,239 1,254,428 1.091,195 

Revtnues: 
Property taxes 782,576 846.391 877,911 894,838 894,838 912.735 912.735 930,99(1 930,990 949,61(1 949,610 789,231 789,231 
Specific ownership taxes 62,896 68.025 70,558 71,918 71,918 73,357 73.357 74,824 74,824 76,320 76,320 65,291 65,291 
Devtlopmenl fees 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
TrMsfet !tom Capital Proietti 
lntetest income 11,944 11,194 ID.680 10,258 9,885 9.635 9.381 9,244 9,171 9,285 9,338 8.123 5,529 

857,416 925,610 959,148 977.015 976,642 995,127 995,473 l.D15,058 1,014,985 1.035,215 1,035.268 862.645 860,051 

Expenditures: 
Debt servica Series 2002 
Debt ser~iee Series 2005 A 754,8DO 754,650 758,775 761.813 753,763 755,350 755,850 760,263 753,225 750.463 756,613 755,950 758,838 
Debt setvica Seties 2008 257,888 255,438 252,825 254,850 256,150 256,725 258,575 255.700 254.100 251,715 253,725 254,588 434.363 
Debt service Seties 200 I 
Debt servica · payolf Series 2001 
Paying agent fees 3,500 3,500 3,500 3.500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 
Tax collection fees 11,739 12,696 13,169 13.423 13,423 13,691 13,691 13.965 13,965 14,244 14,244 11,838 11.838 

1,027,726 1.026,283 1,D28,269 1,033,585 1,026,835 1.029,266 1,029.616 1,033,427 1.024.790 1,019,962 1.028,082 1,025,876 1.208.538 

Ernfng cash avaaal:de 1.604.419 1,503,746 \,434,625 1.378,D55 1,327,862 1.294,323 1.260,160 1,241.811 1,232.0!16 1,247.239 1,254.426 1.091,195 742.707 

Raser~e included in above amounl 1,020.151 1,020,151 1,020.151 1,020,151 1.020,151 1,020,151 1.020.151 1,020,151 1,020.151 1,020.151 1,020,151 762,463 762.463 

Mil levy 27.000 27.000 27.000 27.000 27.000 27.000 27.000 27.000 27.000 27.000 27.000 22.000 22.000 

Total MiD levy 31.000 31.000 31.000 31.000 31.000 31.000 3!.000 31.000 31.000 31.000 31.000 26.000 26.000 

Oustanding Debt 8,340,000 8,\90,000 8,025,000 7,845,000 7,660,DDD 7,460,DOO 7,245,000 7,010.DDD 8,765,000 6,505,000 6,220,000 5,915,000 5.585,000 

Debt I Assessed Value Ratio 28.77% 2&.13% - 24.68'/o 23.67'/o 23.11% 22.07% 21.43'/o 20.33'/o 19.62% 18.50'/o 17.69'/o 16.49% 15.57"/o 

Assessed Valuation and Ahoretion 
Assessed valuation !ODD's) 

Beginning 27,110 28,984 31,348 32.515 33,142 33,142 33,805 33,805 34.481 34,481 35,171 35,171 35,874 
lnctease !tom teauessement 542 '" 663 676 '" 103 
Increase for new coosttuction 1,874 1,821 1,167 

"""' 2B,98L __ 31.348 32,5_15 __ 33,142 33,_142 33,805 33,8D5 34.481 34.481 35,171 35,171 35,874 35,874 
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Eagla Shadow Metropolitan District No 1 
S ourcas and Uses of Cash 

For the Yeats Ended December 31, 20011 through 203! 

lQli Z!IZl lQli lQli 2Jl.lQ 2Jlll 2lll 2Jlll - 2Q3j 

General Fund 
Be~innillg cash available 274,717 272,353 267,0011 261.459 252,785 243.832 231,596 218,987 202.936 186.411 

Revenues: 
Property taxes 146,366 145,366 149,2B4 149,2B4 152.280 152,280 155,325 155,325 158.432 158,432 
Specific ownership taxes 
Development fees 
Developer advance 
lntertst income 2,060 2.043 2,003 1.961 1.896 1.829 1,737 1.642 1,522 1,398 

148,427 148.409 151,296 151.255 154,176 154,108 157,062 156,968 159.954 159,830 

Expenditure:: 
Tax collection lees 2.195 2,195 2,239 2,239 2.284 2.284 2,3311 2.330 2.376 2,376 
Repay developer advances 
Operating and Admin expenses 148,595 151,567 154,598 157,690 160,844 164.061 167,342 170,G89 174.102 177,584 

150,790 153,762 156,831 159,929 163,128 166.345 169,672 173,019 176.479 179,961 

Ending cash anlable 272,353 267,000 261.459 252,785 243,832 231.596 218,987 202,936 186.411 166,2811 

MiD levy 4.000 4.000 4.000 4.000 4.000 4.000 4.000 4.000 4.000 4.000 

Ca ita! Pro ects Fund 
Beginning cash available 4,518 4,518 4,5\8 4,518 4.518 4.518 4,518 4,518 4,518 4,518 

Revenues: 
Bond PfOCeeds existing 
Bond proceeds Series 2005 A 
Bond proceeds Series 2006 
Developer advances 
Interest intOI!I1! 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Expenditures: 
Transfer to Debt Service · 
Payoff dev~er 
Transfer to Debt Service 
Issuance costs 
Construction 

0 0 0 0 0 

Ending cash available 4,518 4,518 . 4,518 4,518 4,518 4,518 4,518 4,518 4,518 4.518 
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2006 
2007 
2007 
2008 
2008 30,000 
2009 
2009 65,000 
2010 
2010 70,000 
2011 
2011 120,000 
2012 
2012 135,000 
2013 
2013 140,000 
2014 
2014 150,000 
2015 
2015 165,000 
2016 
2016 180,000 
2017 
2017 185,000 
2018 
2018 200,000 
2019 
2019 215,000 
2020 
2020 235,000 
2021 
2021 245,000 
2022 
2022 260,000 
2023 
2023 285,000 
2024 
2024 305,000 
2025 
2025 330,000 
2026 
2026 350,000 
2027 
2027 375,000 
2028 
2028 405,000 
2029 
2029 430,000 

460,000 

495,000 

Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District 
Debt Service Schedule. Series 2005A 

for the Years ended 2005 through 2035 

Total 

321,538 
321,538 386.538 
319,181 319,181 
319,181 389,181 
316,644 316,644 
316,644 436,644 
312,294 312.294 
312,294 447.294 
307,400 307,400 
307,400 447,400 
302,325 302,325 
302.325 452.325 
296,888 296,888 
296,888 461,888 
290,906 290,906 
290,906 470,906 
284,381 284.381 
284,381 469,381 
277,675 277,675 
277.675 477,675 
270,425 270.425 
270,425 485.425 
262,631 262.631 
262,631 497,631 
254,113 254,113 
254,113 499,113 
245,231 245,231 
245,231 505,231 
235,806 235,806 
235,806 520,806 
225.475 225,475 
225,475 530.475 
214,419 214.419 
214,419 544.419 
202.456 202.456 

. 202,456 552.456 
189,769 189,769 
189,769 564,769 
176,175 176,175 
176,175 581,175 
161.494 161,494 
161.494 591,494 
145,906 145,906 
J45,906 605,906 
129,231 129,231 
129,231 624,231 
111,288 111,288 
111,288 641.288 
92,075 92,075 
92.075 667,075 
71,231 71,231 
71,231 691.231 
48,756 48,756 

Annual 

8,900,000 
645,250 8,900,000 

8,900,000 
645,250 8,900,000 

8,900,000 
675,250 8,870,000 

8,870,000 
708,075 8,805,000 

8,805,000 
708,363 8,735,000 

8,735,000 
753,288 8,615,000 

8,615,000 
759,588 8,480,000 

8,480,000 
754,800 8,340,000 

8,340,000 
754,650 8,190,000 

8,190,000 
758,775 8,025,000 

8,025,000 
761,813 7,845,000 

7,845,000 
7,660,000 
7,660,000 
7,460,000 
7,460,000 

755,850 7,245,000 
7,245,000 

760,263 7,010,000 
7,010,000 

753,225 6.765,000 
6.765,000 

750,463 6,505,000 
6,505,000 

756,613 6,220,000 
6,220,000 
5,915,000 
5,915,000 
5,585,000 
5,585,000 
5,235,000 
5,235,000 
4;860,000 
4.860,000 

757.350 

752.988 

751.813 

753,463 

752.575 
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05 
05 
06 
06 
07 
07 
08 
08 
09 
09 
10 
10 
11 
11 
12 
12 
13 
13 
14 
14 
15 
15 
16 
16 
17 
7 

18 
8 
9 
9 
0 
0 
1 
1 
2 

3 
3 
4 
4 
5 
5 

' ' 7 
7 
8 
8 
9 
9 
0 
0 
1 
1 
2 
2 
3 

20 
20 
20 
20 
20 
20 
20 
20 
20 
20 
20 
20 
20 
20 
20 
20 
20 
20 
20 
20 
20 
20 
20 
20 
20 
201 
20 
201 
201 
201 
202 
202 
202 
202 
202 
2022 
202 
202 
202 
202 
202 
202 
202 
202 
202 
202 
202 
202 
202 
202 
203 
203 
203 
203 
203 
203 
203 
2033 
2034 
2034 
2035 
2035 

Principal 

75,000 

80,000 

85.000 

90,000 

100,000 

105,000 

110,000 

120,000 

130,000 

140,000 

150,000 

160,000 

170,000 

180,000 

195,000 

210,000 

405,000 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

2,505,000 

Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District 
Debt Service Schadule ·Series 2006 

For the Yaars ended 2006 through 2025 

Total Annual 
Coupon Interest Pavment Payment 

0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 

90,806 90,806 90.806 
90,806 90,806 
90,806 90,806 181.613 
90,806 90,806 
90,806 90,806 181.613 
90,806 90,806 

7.25% 90,806 165,806 256,613 
88,088 88,088 

7.25% 88,088 168.088 256,175 
85,188 85.188 

7.25% 85,188 170,188 255.375 
82.106 82.106 

7.25% 82.106 172,106 254,213 
78,844 78,844 

7.25% 78,844 178,844 257,688 
75,219 75,219 

7.25% 75,219 180,219 255.438 
71.413 71.413 

7.25% 71.413 181.413 252.825 
67.425 67.425 

7.25% 67.425 187.425 254,8~0 

63,075 63,075 
7.25% 63,075 193.075 256,150 

58,363 58,363 
7.25% 58,363 198.363 256.725 

53,288 53,2~8 

7.25% 53,288 203,288 256.575 
47,850 47,850 

7.25% 47,850 207,850 255,700 
42,050 42.050 

7.25% 42,050 212.050 254,100 
35,888 35,888 

7.25% 35,888 215,888 251,775 
29,363 29,363 

7.25% 29,363 224,363 253.725 
22.294 22.294 

7.25% 22,.294 232.294 254.588 
14,681 14,681 

7.25% 14,681 419,681 434.363 
0 0 

7.25% 0 0 0 
0 0 

7.25% 0 0 0 
0 0 

7.25% 0 0 0 
0 0 

7.25% 0 0 0 
0 0 

7.25% 0 0 0 
0 0 

7.25% 0 0 0 
0 0 

7.25% 0 0 0 
0 0 

7.25% 0 0 0 
0 0 

7.25% 0 0 0 
0 0 

7.25% 0 0 0 

2.4ss,oos I 4.970.906 I 4,970,906 

B~lance 

0 
0 

2,505,000 
2,505,000 
2.505,000 
2.505,000 
2,505,000 
2,505,000 
2.505,000 
2,430,000 
2,430,000 
2,350,000 
2,350,000 
2.265,000 
2.265,000 
2,175,000 
2,175.000 
2,075,000 
2.075.000 
1,970,000 
1.970,000 
1,860,000 
1,860,000 
1,740,000 
1,740,000 
1.610,000 
1,610,000 
1.470,000 
1,470,000 
1,320,000 
1,320,000 
1,160,000 
1.160,000 

990,000 
990,000 
810,000 
810,000 
615,000 
615.000 
405,000 
405.000 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
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Eagle Shadow Metropolitan District No 1 
Schedule of Foraeastad Absorption, Marltet Values and Assessed Valuation 

For the Y&ars Ended Det&mber 31, 2003 through 2013 

Schedule of Absorption 
Market Thm 
Values Total 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Eagle Shadow I 388,8?c0 185 70 30 40 25 10 10 
Eagle Shadow II 378,750 187. 0 1 30 40 40 40 3S 
Todd Creek Vistas 373,700 71 70 1 
Hawk Ridg~ 328,250 39 5 8 18 
Todd Creek Meadows I 383,800 12 48 10 10 4 
Bartley • 353,500 172 0 5 25 25 30 35 35 17 0 
Shook 353,500 32 0 0 10 10 12 
Baseline lakes 353,500 193 0 15 25 25 25 35 35 33 
lopez 252,500 0 

Total 951 188 46 59 82 108 110 107 96 70 52 33 

Schedule of Market Values 758 

Eagle Shadow I 72,563,901 27,219,500 11,665,500 15,709,540 9,916,647 4,006,325 4,046,369 0 0 0 
Eag!e·Shadow 11 73,744,284 0 0 382,538 11.590,886 15,609,060 15,765,151 15.922,802 14,473,827 0 
Todd Creek Vistas 26,273,700 25,900,000 373,700 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Hawk Ridge 13,026,341 0 1,641,250 2,652,260 6,027,261 2,705,570 0 0 0 0 
Todd Creek Meadows I 27,520,438 18,240,000 3,838,000 3,876,380 1,566,058 0 0 0 0 0 
Bartley 64,156,691 0 0 0 1,803,027 9,105,285 9,196,338 11,145,962 13,133,658 13,264,995 6,507.427 0 
Shook 11,779,034 0 0 0 0 3,642,114 3,678,535 4,458,385 0 0 
Baseline lakes 72.750,019 0 0 0 0 5,463,171 9,196,338 9,288,301 9,381,184 13,264,995 13.397,645 12.758,386 
lopez 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Platted lots (29%) 0 8,432,199 (1,074,202) {1,955.000) {2,341,000) 11.454,000) !771,997) {440,000) (396,000) 0 
Gas Wells (87 .5%1 0 2,221.401 1250,000) {275,000) (275,000) (275,000) 1275.000) {300,000) 1300,000) 1271.4011 0 

Total Market Value 361,814,389 82.013.101 16,194,248 20,390,718 28,287,878 38.802.526 40,835,753 40,075,450 36,292,670 26,258,588 19,905,072 12.758,386 

Increase in Assessed Valuation 29,189,121 10,069,280 864,200 993,034 1,540,434 2,564,024 2,869,363 2,858,810 2,566,958 1,874.311 1.821.314 1.167,392 

Ctnm1ulative Assessed Valuation 10,069,280 10,933,480 11.926.514 13.466,948 16,030,972 18,900,335 21.759.145 24,326,103 26,200,4·14 28,021,728 29,189,121 
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MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

TODD CREEK VILLAGE PARK AND RECREATION DISTRICT 

HELD: Tuesday, the 191
h day of June, 2018, at 4:00 p.m. in the Community Room of the 

Greater Brighton Fire Protection District Station 55, 15959 Havana Street, Brighton, 
Colorado 

ATTENDANCE: 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Todd Creek Village Park & Recreation 
District, Adams County, Colorado, was held as shown above and in accordance with the 
applicable statutes of the State of Colorado, with the following directors present and acting: 

Cheryl A. Gibson, President 
Fred Brown, Asst. Secretary 

George A. Nightingale, Asst. Secretary (via telephone) 
Darrell S. Jennings, Treasurer/Asst. Secretary 

Jeffery A. Walsh, Asst. Secretary 

Also present were Barney Fix of Merrick and Company, Diane Wheeler of Simmons and Wheeler, 
P.C., Josh Schultz of Schultz lndustries, lnc., Blair Dickhoner of White Bear Ankele Tanaka and 
Waldron P.C. and Russell W. Dykstra of Spencer Fane LLP. 

CALL TO ORDER: 

Director Gibson noted that a quorum was present for the purpose of conducting a meeting of the 
Board of Directors of the Todd Creek Village Park & Recreation District and called the regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors of the District to order at 4:00p.m. 

AGENDA: 

The Directors reviewed the Agenda for the meeting. Upon motion duly made, seconded and 
upon vote unanimously carried, the Board approved the Agenda as amended moving the public 
hearing on the exclusion of property from Attorney's Items to the beginning of the meeting. 

DISCLOSURE OF POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST: 

Mr. Dykstra noted that transactional disclosure statements had been tiled on behalf of the 
members of the Board of Directors with the office of the Colorado Secretary of State and with 
the Secretary of the District. Upon motion duly made, seconded and upon vote unanimously 
carried, the Board directed that said Disclosures be incorporated herein. The members noted for 
the record that the only conflict each of them has is ownership of a home and property with-in 
the District. 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

There was none. 

PUBLIC HEARING ON EXCLUSION OF PROPERTY: 
ON 3137291 I 



Mr. Dykstra reported that proper publication of notice for the exclusion petition hearing had been 
made in order to allow the Board to hold a public hearing on the petition for exclusion of 
property. The hearing was opened and public comment was taken in regard to the exclusion 
petition after which the hearing was closed. Mr. Dykstra reviewed the petition for exclusion of 
property and reviewed the statutory requirements with the Board. The Board requested an 
executive session to receive specific legal advice regarding the exclusion requirements. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

The Board entered into executive session pursuant to 24-6-402(4)(b) in order to obtain specific 
legal advice from Mr. Dykstra pertaining to the requirements for exclusion of property within the 
district boundaries. Upon motion duly made, seconded and upon vote unanimously carried, the 
board exited the executive session and re-convened the regular board meeting proceedings. Mr. 
Dykstra certified for the record that the matters discussed in executive session were appropriate 
and specific to legal advice as required by statute. 

Upon further discussion by the Board regarding the specific statutory requirements for exclusion 
and motion duly made, seconded and upon vote unanimously carried, the Board moved to 
approve the resolution denying the petition for exclusion of property noting that there are 
adequate services currently provided by the Todd Creek Village Park and Recreation District 
improvements to the property and that the exclusion of such property would be a financial 
hardship on the existing residents and taxpayers of the District and exclusion would not be in the 
District's best interest. The Resolution Denying the Petition for Exclusion is incorporated into 
these minutes. Mr. Dickhoner left the meeting. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

The Board reviewed the minutes of the regular meeting of the Board held on May 15, 2018. 
Upon motion duly made, seconded, and upon vote unanimously carried, the Board approved the 
minutes as presented and authorized the execution of the Minutes as constituting a true and 
correct record of the proceedings of the meeting 

LANDSCAPE REPORT: 

Mr. Schultz presented his monthly report noting that there were no current issues outstanding 
and that the water district staff had turned-on the water service to Eagle Shadow Park. 
Discussion ensued regarding irrigation in the parks and fence repairs. Mr. Schultz left the 
meeting. 

FINANCIAL ITEMS: 

a. Disbursements. Ms. Wheeler reviewed the claims to be ratified and approved with 
accompanying documentation for checks numbered 2639 through 2647 in the amount of 
$16,216.29 and noted that an additional amount of $622.50 had been paid in online 
payments. Following discussion, and upon motion duly made, seconded and upon vote 
unanimously carried, the Board approved the claims as presented and authorized the 

2 DN 3137291 I 



disbursement of check numbers 2639 through 2647 and online payments in the total 
amount of $16,838.79. 

b. Accountant's Report. Ms. Wheeler reviewed the monthly accountant's report and 
cash position dated May 31, 2018 with the Board. Upon motion duly made, seconded 
and upon vote unanimously carried, the Board accepted and approved the cash position 
and accountant's report as presented. 

ENGINEER'S ITEMS: 

Mr. Fix reported that there are no current projects within the District at this time. 

ATTORNEY'S ITEMS: 

Mr. Dykstra presented his monthly report noting the status of the proceedings with the Water 
District. 

OLD BUSINESS: 

There was none. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

There was none. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

Following discussion, upon motion duly made, seconded and upon vote unanimously carried, the 
Board moved to adjourn the meeting at 5:30p.m. 

The foregoing Minutes constitute a true and correct copy ofthe Minutes of the above-referenced 
regular meeting and were approved by the Board of Directors of the Todd Creek Village Park & 
Recreation District. 

3 ON 3137291 I 
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RESPONSE TO BRIEF IN SUPPORT OF EAGLE SHADOW METROPOLITAN 

DISTRICT NO. 1 AND TODD CREEK VILLAGE PARK AND RECREATION 

DISTRICT AND THEIR DENIALS OF PETITIONS FOR EXCLUSION FILED BY 

PETITIONER SEC. 2-3 PHOENIX, LLC 

INTRODUCTION 

 As permitted by the Deputy County Attorney for Adams County (the “County”), Sec. 2-

3 Phoenix LLC (the “Petitioner”) offers this Response to the Brief in Support of Eagle Shadow 

Metropolitan District No. 1 (“ESMD”) and Todd Creek Village Park and Recreation District 

(“TCVPRD”) (collectively, the “Districts”) and their Denials of Petitions for Exclusion Filed by 

Petitioner Sec. 2-3 Phoenix, LLC (the “Districts’ Brief”) submitted to the County on August 17, 

2018.  

Summary of Districts’ Argument 

The Districts’ Brief presents three arguments in support of the Districts’ decisions to deny 

the Petitions for Exclusion of Certain Real Property (the “Petitions for Exclusion”) after a public 

hearing on June 19, 2018: 

1. The Districts argue that the denial of the Petitions for Exclusion was justified by the lack 

of supporting documentation submitted with the Petitions for Exclusion and the failure of 

Petitioner to testify at the public hearing. 

2.  The Districts argue that the Resolutions Denying Petitions for Exclusion (the “Denial 

Resolutions”) and Minutes of the Districts’ June 19, 2018 Meeting (the “Minutes”) demonstrate 

that the statutory factors laid out in§ 32-1-501(3), C.R.S. (the “Statutory Factors”) favor denial 

of the Petitions for Exclusion and require no substantiation. 



2 
 

3. The Districts argue that the existence of an alternative to exclusion (the creation of a 

sub-district) justifies the denial of the Petitions for Exclusion. 

Additionally, as a preliminary matter, the Districts argue that the transcript Petitioner has 

submitted as part of the record developed at the hearing before the Districts (the “Record”) should 

not be considered part of the record. 

ARGUMENT 

Transcript as Part of the Record 

Petitioner has submitted a transcription of an audio recording of the public hearing on the 

Petitions for Exclusion on June 19, 2018 (the “Transcript”). The Districts argue that the 

Transcript should not be included as part of the Record for two reasons: (1) the Districts were not 

notified that the hearing was being recorded and did not authorize a recording and (2) the 

Transcript does not name each of the speakers.  Neither of these arguments is a valid reason to 

strike the Transcript from the Record. 

The Districts first argue that the Transcript should not be included as part of the Record 

because District was not notified of or authorize the recording. The hearing on the Petitions for 

Exclusion was a public hearing conducted at a meeting required to be open to the public under the 

Colorado Open Meetings Law, §24-6-401, et seq., C.R.S. Recordings of public meetings are 

permitted under the Colorado Open Meetings Law and there is no requirement that a member of 

the public notify the government body that a recording is being made. Neither is there a 

requirement that the government body authorize a recording. To impose such restrictions on the 

public would directly violate the purpose of the Colorado Open Meetings Law. “[T]he open 

meetings law articulates an interest in having public business conducted openly and provides a 

mechanism for private citizens to protect that interest.” Weisfield v. City of Arvada, 2015 COA 43, 
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361 P.3d 1069 (2015). The Districts’ attempt to suppress the Transcript by striking it from the 

Record is an unlawful attempt to limit the public’s rights under the Colorado Open Meetings Law 

and should not be permitted.  

Second, the Districts argue that the Transcript should not be included as part of the Record 

because it is unclear who is speaking when. Although the Transcript does not always identify each 

member of the Districts’ Boards of Directors (the “Directors”) or Mr. Dykstra by name, the 

Transcript does consistently identify when counsel for the Petitioner, Mr. Dickhoner, is speaking. 

Additionally, the Transcript identifies the other distinct speakers by number. As counsel for the 

Petitioner was the only party speaking during the hearing not directly associated with the Districts, 

the lack of names for the Directors is not material to the content or usefulness of the Transcript. It 

is not material whether one certain Director or Mr. Dykstra made a certain statement because Mr. 

Dykstra and all of the Directors represent the Districts. What is material is that one of the Districts’ 

representatives made the statement. Furthermore, the Transcript reflects the full discussion had by 

the Directors and therefore documents the entirety of their fact finding efforts.  On the one hand, 

the Districts argue that the Transcript documenting the discussions of the Directors should not be 

included but on the other hand they cite to the Transcript when it benefits them.  It appears that the 

Districts only consider the Transcript to be of public importance when they believe it suits their 

needs but otherwise it impermissibly documents the discussions of the Directors.  Clearly, that is 

not the way a public record works and if the Directors review of the Petitions for Exclusion “clearly 

favor denial” as they allege then the Transcript would reflect that and be supportive of their 

position, not something to selectively disregard when it establishes a lack of support for their 

position.  Therefore, the Transcript should be considered part of the Record for appeal. 

Supporting Documentation not Required by Statute 
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In their substantive argument, the Districts argue first that their decision to deny the 

Petitions for Exclusion was justified because the Petitioner did not attach supporting 

documentation to the Petitions for Exclusion and the Petitioner did not testify at the public hearing. 

This argument is essentially an argument that the Petitioner bears the burden of proof regarding 

the statutory factors for considering a petition for exclusion contained in § 32-1-501, C.R.S. (the 

“Statute”).  The Statute does not support this argument.  

In describing the petition for exclusion that a property owner must submit to a special 

district, the Statute states “The petition shall set forth a legal description of the property, shall state 

that assent to the exclusion of the property from the special district is given by the fee owner or 

owners thereof, and shall be acknowledged by the fee owner or owners in the same manner as 

required for conveyance of land.” § 32-1-501(1), C.R.S. This provision does not provide that the 

petition will include documentation to influence a district’s review and decision of a petition for 

exclusion. 

Regarding the hearing on the petition for exclusion, the Statute states, “all persons 

interested shall appear at the designated time and place and show cause in writing why the petition 

should not be granted or the resolution should not be finally adopted. . . . The failure of any person 

in the existing special district to file a written objection shall be taken as an assent on his or her 

part to the exclusion of the area described in the notice.” § 32-1-501(2), C.R.S.  No written 

objections to exclusion were filed related to the Petitions for Exclusion.  Therefore, the Statute 

dictates that the persons within the Districts are deemed to assent to the exclusion.  This provision 

clearly provides for written arguments against exclusion to be presented at the hearing, but does 

not contemplate additional written arguments or testimony in favor of exclusion at the hearing. 
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This provision also indicates that the district’s default position should be to grant the petition, 

absent timely filed written objections.   

In laying out the Statutory Factors for considering a petition for exclusion, the Statute 

states, “The board shall take into consideration and make a finding regarding all of the following 

factors when determining whether to grant or deny the petition or to finally adopt the resolution or 

any portion thereof.” § 32-1-501(3), C.R.S.  This provision lays the burden on the Boards for the 

Districts to evaluate the enumerated factors and make findings. It does not place the burden on the 

Petitioner to present its own findings regarding the Statutory Factors in the Petition or during 

testimony at a hearing.  As such, the Districts lack statutory support for their argument that the 

Petitions for Exclusion were rightfully denied for lack of supporting documentation and testimony. 

Furthermore, counsel for the Petitioner was present at the hearing to provide the Districts 

with information upon request. The exchanges between counsel for the Petitioner and the Districts’ 

representatives were captured in the Transcript and the Districts arguably used the information 

provided in response to their questions by counsel for the Petitioner in their consideration of the 

statutory factors.  If the Districts wished for additional information from the Petitioner, the 

Districts could have requested such additional information and continued the hearing to a 

subsequent meeting pursuant to § 32-1-501(2), C.R.S.   The Districts asked few questions of 

counsel for Petitioner and did not request additional information from the Petitioner.  That the 

Districts chose not to continue the hearing indicates that they did not require additional information 

to consider the Statutory Factors. This contradicts the argument that the Petitioner should have 

submitted additional documentation presented in the Districts’ Brief and indicates that the Districts 

made their decision based on pre-determined views and bias against the Petitioner. 

No Deference for Districts’ Conclusory Statements Regarding Statutory Factors 
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The Districts argue that the Denial Resolutions and Minutes demonstrate clearly that the 

Statutory Factors favor denial of the Petitions for Exclusion.  The Districts’ statements in both 

Denial Resolutions and the Districts’ description of the findings in the Minutes are purely 

conclusory reiterations of the Statutory Factors.  The Districts point to no support in the Record 

for their conclusory statements, relying solely on the statements of their conclusions in the Minutes 

and Denial Resolutions as adequate reason for the Board of County Commissioners of Adams 

County (the “Board of Commissioners”) to uphold the Districts’ decision.  However, as the 

Petitioner explained in its Position Statement Regarding Denials of Certain Exclusion Petitions 

Submitted to the Eagle Shadows Metropolitan District No. 1 and Todd Creek Village Park and 

Recreation District (the “Petitioner’s Brief”), under the Statute, the Board of Commissioners 

reviews the Record and considers the Statutory Factors de novo.  Therefore, the Board of 

Commissioners need not give any deference to the Districts’ conclusory statements and should 

instead review the Record and consider the Statutory Factors itself. As demonstrated in detail in 

the Petitioner’s Brief, the Record clearly shows that the Statutory Factors weigh heavily in favor 

of exclusion. 

Creation of Sub-District Is Not Adequate Alternative to Exclusion  

The Districts’ final argument is that the option to create a sub-district as an alternative to 

exclusion justifies the denial of the Petitions for Exclusion. This argument fails for two reasons: 

(1) the ability to possibly create a sub-district is not one of the Statutory Factors and (2) even if 

this fell under one of the Statutory Factors, the creation of a sub-district is not an adequate 

alternative to exclusion for the Petitioner. The Districts do not, but could possibly argue that the 

option to create a sub-district should be considered under Statutory Factor (g), “Whether an 

economically feasible alternative service may be available.” § 32-1-501(3)(g), C.R.S. (emphasis 



7 
 

added). However, that Statutory Factor calls for consideration of an alternative service rather than 

an alternative arrangement. Services through a sub-district would still be controlled and provided 

by the Districts and, therefore, could not be considered alternative services. Even if this possible 

alternative fell under Statutory factor (g), as Petitioner explained in Petitioner’s Brief, the option 

to create a sub-district is not a suitable solution in this instance because the possible sub-district 

would be controlled by a board comprised of the current Boards of Directors of the Districts.  

Petitioner would have no reason to expect any different results than the lack of development that 

has occurred through the Districts. Furthermore, Petitioner has been informed that the entirety of 

ESMD’s remaining debt authorization under its Service Plan will be utilized by the sub-district 

Mr. Dykstra referenced at the end of the June 19th public hearing.  Utilizing the sub-district 

arrangement offered by Mr. Dykstra means that not only would the Petitioner’s property be subject 

to a board that has been historically unwilling to support the financing of additional public 

improvements on the property, but it would also not have access to any bonding capacity to finance 

the needed public improvements, even if the sub-district board suddenly became willing to support 

the property.  As such, the District’s argument that the creation of a sub-district would be an 

alternative to exclusion is not relevant or valid. 

CONCLUSION 

 In its Brief, the Petitioner argued and demonstrated that the Record shows that the Statutory 

Factors weigh heavily in favor of exclusion. The Districts’ Brief, on the other hand, relies 

predominantly on mere conclusory statements and an irrelevant alternative to support the Districts’ 

decision to deny the Petitions for Exclusion. As the Board of Commissioners considers the 

Statutory Factors de novo, the Districts’ conclusory statements should be given no deference. The 

Districts can point to nothing in the Record to support their decision to deny the Petitions for 
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Exclusion, while the Petitioner has presented ample evidence from the Record to demonstrate that 

the Statutory Factors support exclusion. Therefore, the Petitioner respectfully requests that the 

Board of County Commissioners reverse the Districts’ decision to deny the Petitions for Exclusion. 

 

Respectfully Submitted to the Adams County Board of County Commissioners on August 23, 
2018. 

 

Blair M. Dickhoner  

Legal Counsel to Petitioner 
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